Ancestors of Dorothy Dean Fowler

| Ancestors of Dorothy Dean Fowler

| Generation No. 1

1. Dorothy Dean Fowler, born November 04, 1931 in Boxley, Newton County, Arkansas; died May
11, 1994 in Ft Smith, AR * Buired Morrow, Arkansas *Bethesda Cemetery. She was the daughter of 2.
William Audie Fowler and 3. Nettie Cranford. She married (1) Charles Ray Goldman November
20, 1949 in Little Rock, Pulaski County, Arkansas. He was the son of Charles Tolbert (Chad) Goldman
and Ruby Jane Forsyth.

Notes for Dorothy Dean Fowler:
"Our One True Thing"
Children of Dorothy Fowler and Charles Goldman are:

« i. Dwight Douglas Goldman, born <restricted> in Prairie Grove, Arkansas; married Debra Joan
Casey.

e ii. Ruby Rae Goldman, born <restricted> in Fayetteville - Washington County, Arkansas; married
(1) Joseph Calvin Fourkiller <restricted> in Stilwell- Adair County, Oklahoma *Fairfield Baptist
Church; married (2) Johnnie Charles Garrett <restricted> in Sallisaw - Sequoyah County,
Oklahoma.

e iii. Sandra Lynn Goldman, born <restricted> in Ft. Smith (Fort Chaffee), Sebastian County,
Arkansas; married Robert Lelan Speight <restricted> in Morrow AR, Washington County.

« iv. Charles Stuart Goldman, born <restricted> in Augsburg, Germany. Second son of Dorothy
Dean Fowler and Charles Ray Goldman. Graduated from Stilwell High School. Works as a
carpenter in the Northwest Arkansas area. No wife or children at this time (1997).

« V. Nina Kay Goldman, born <restricted> in Ft. Smith (Fort Chaffee), Sebastian County, Arkansas;
married Ricky Lane Doherty J<restricted> in Van Buren, Crawford County, Arkansas.

« Vi. Myla Jean Goldman, born <restricted> in Ft. Smith, Sebastian County, Arkansas; married (1)
Keith Cox <restricted> in Lincoln, Washington County, Arkansas *Baptist Church; married (2)
Harvey Lee <restricted> in Thorn Crown Chaple Eureka Springs, Arkansas; married (3) Irwin
Lee Davis <restricted>.

« Vii. Jill Ann Goldman, born <restricted> in Ft. Smith, Sebastian County, Arkansas *Sparks
Hospital; married Joe Dale Cosper <restricted> in Lincoln, Arkansas.

| Generation No. 2

2. William Audie Fowler, born October 21, 1902 in Newton County, Arkansas; died June 07, 1969
in Evansville, Arkansas *Buired Cave Mt. - Boxley, Arkansas. He was the son of 4. Edwin Leander
Fowler and 5. Emily Bell Wyatt. He married 3. Nettie Cranford October 17, 1926 in Red Star,
Newton County, Arkansas.

3. Nettie Cranford, born October 01, 1908 in Newton County, Arkansas; died July 22, 1973 in
Fayetteville, Washington County, AR * Buired Cave Mt. Cemetery Boxley, AR. She was the daughter of
6. Cornelius (Neil) Cranford and 7. Sarah Jane (Sallie) Bryant.

Notes for William Audie Fowler:

« Grandpa Audie worked in the coal mines in Pitcher, Oklahoma after he married Nettie Cranford.
Then they moved back to Newton County for a while. Their next move was to California for
about a year. They returned to Newton County, but did live in Kansas City during WWII where
Nettie worked in a parachute factory and Audie worked on planes. After the war they bought a
section of land at Evansville, Arkansas and he raised cattle and sold stave bolts that he cut off
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his land. He was a diabetic and eventually died from a heart attack as he was walking through
his lower field after lunch one day. Nannie (Nettie) found him and ran to the neighbor's for help.
He only had a fifth grade education, but had full command of the English language and math.

« Audie Fowler was an extremely intelligent man who enjoyed working with the land. He liked
kitten's and shot most of his deer from the front porch of his house as they feed in his nearby
garden. He liked to listen to the Grand Ole Opry on the radio at night and talk of politics and
religion. He had a good sense of humor and loved to laugh. Nannie only acted aggravated when
he'd talk about stealing kisses from her out behind the church when she was just a girl. She'd
scold him and swear it wasn't true, but there was just enough sparkle in her eye, and a half
smile that you'd have to wonder. | spent many a grand summer's with them on the farm. We
had wonderful picnics in the orchard and often drove the cows on foot to Ashbee Hollow were
the grazing was better. Paw Paw would ride the horse and Nannie and | would each get a long
stick and off we'd go. The old dog Bulger would follow barking only occasionally. For me it was
an adventure with nothing to fear, but the snakes. He and Nettie worked side-by-side and
raised most of what they ate. They only bought their staples like sugar, coffee, tea, lard, and
flour. Paw Paw drove an old rusted truck about 30 miles an hour. We'd often go to the cattle
auction in Fayetteville and have a hot roast beef sandwich at the cafe while we were waiting for
the check that his cattle would bring. When he died he had a new truck, completely paid for,
parked out in front of the house.

« Nannie dried her laundry outside and canned everything out of her huge garden. Nothing will
ever taste as good as her fried chicken and dinner rolls. She worked so hard all her life and
always said she preferred the outside chores to being in the house. | loved the fresh smell of her
ivory soaped skin and damp brow under her wide brimmed straw hat. Her lap held many a
tearful child, and the leathery hands could provide all the safety that a little kid needed when
the world would get a little scarry. | don't know how many times she'd call me back from my
hiding place to go back home to Ft. Smith with my family after two weeks of vacation on the
farm. I'd have stayed with them forever. Life will never be that simple and sweet again.

« Nettie Cranford Fowler died from kidney disease a few years after Grandpa. They were both
just in their early 60's when they passed away. Everyone who knew them said, "They were the
salt of the earth, and best people. They were good neighbor's and they bothered no one. They
were always ready to lend a helping hand when there was a need.”

Notes for Nettie Cranford:

« Uncle Clint said that Nettie and all the family worked very hard. He said that once Nettie and
Oscar got into trouble with the school master and some visitors that had come to the school.
They gave them a whipping. It was suppose to have Bud Cranford a pretty penny to get them
out of trouble.

Children of William Fowler and Nettie Cranford are:

o i. Clint Fowler, born July 11, 1927 in Pitcher, Ottawa County, Oklahoma; died July 04, 1999 in
Stilwell, Adair County, Oklahoma *Buried at New Hope Cemetery; married (1) Josephine Ina
Louise Feathers October 03, 1949 in Van Buren, Crawford County, Arkansas; married (2) Ginger
Northington April 08, 1999 in Van Buren , Crawford County, Arkansas.

Notes for Clint Fowler:

« Clint was a Marine and he was stationed in China just after WWII ended. He was employed at
American Airlines as a structural mechanic until he retired. He was a member of the
Professional Rodeo Cowboy Association (PRCA) as a bull rider in his younger years and enjoyed
roping when he got older. He was a member of the Lincoln Baptist Church. He had been a
deacon at the Riverview Baptist Church in Bixby, Oklahoma. He loved to dance and was quite
good at it as well.

« The loss of his beloved wife, Josephine, was hard on him but the tragic death of his son Audie
Dean Fowler in a car wreck surely almost crushed his spirit. He has survived his losses and
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always has a smile and interesting conversation whenever you see him. He has been a wealth
of knowledge about the Fowler/Cranford family history and appeared to enjoy talking with the
other members of the Fowler family that he met through the years.

» After the death of Josephine he also developed colon cancer which was removed without
consequence.

« Seven years later he discovered the he had an undiagnosed melanoma behind an ear. By
(February 1999) it had gone to his lungs and after an exploratory surgery he was told that there
was nothing more that could be done. He told me that he wasn't afraid of death and that his life
seemed to be full of misery and struggle anyway. He expected the next life might be a better
one. He told me that he thought that death was hardest for those we leave behind. They seem to
suffered the most. He was disappointed that the cancer had spread, but intended to live as long
as he could without all the radiation and chemotherapy that he had seen destroy his wife and
sister, Dorothy Dean Fowler Goldman. Those treatments wouldn't have saved him anyway. He
had no kidney function and was on dialysis. He had high blood pressure and diabetes. His
body was just worn out with this life. It's very difficult to face one's own mortality, but he did it
with grace and dignity.

» Clint's father, Audie Fowler, was working in the coal mines in Pitcher, Oklahoma when he was
born. The Irish doctor that delivered him asked Audie Fowler and Nettie "Cranford" Fowler what
they were going to name their new first born child and they told him that they hadn't decided.
Later they found out that the doctor wrote on the birth certificate that his name was "Patrick”
Fowler. The birth certificate was never changed.

« He was buried on July 7, 1999 with Brother Vernon Fowler of Jasper, Arkansas officiating.
Music was provided by his brother-in-law, Leo Feathers. Pallbearers included Leo Feathers,
Eddie Fowler, Bobby Fowler, Dennis Neely, Jim Mullins, and Wayne Hughes. Honorary: Nate
Holmes and John Garrett.

Notes for Josephine Ina Louise Feathers:

« Josephine Feathers (Fowler) was a blue eyed Cherokee form the Greasy community in Adair
County, Oklahoma. She loved Rodeo and was a champion barrel racer. Clint rode bulls when he
was young and became a roper in his later years. They raised their children, Matt. Audie, and
Latonna around the Bixby, Mounds, Oklahoma area before moving back to Evansville to retire.
Josephine had been married before and had two children named Danny and Jan with her first
husband, Richard Jones. Clint raised them and loved them as if they were his blood children.
He was always their father.

« Matt and Audie were also part of the rodeo scene. Matt was a member of the PRCA and Indian
associations. Audie also rode bulls in the Indian Association. Both were champion bull riders in
their own right and were well known by all Rodeo people in the state of Oklahoma and other
places as well.

« Latonna, like her mother she had stark blue eyes and was quite beautiful.

« After Jo retired she and Clint bought the Audie Fowler home place at Evansville, Arkansas. Jo
became ill with lymphoma before Clint could retire from American Airlines and died after a long
struggle with the cancer. Her immune system was so compromised that pneumonia killer her in
the end. She certainly did everything she could to live and Clint was at her side the entire time.

Notes for Ginger Northington:

« She had been a friend of Clint's for almost 8 years when he got his diagnosis of terminal
cancer.

« ii. Conard Fowler, born 1930; died September 06, 1930 in Fayetteville City Hospital *Buried at
Ryker, AR - Cave Mt. Cemetery.

Notes for Conard Fowler:
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« Conard died as a 6 month old infant of bronchial pneumonia. His death certificate has his name
as "Conrad" and no middle name. Clint Fowler said that he could remember that the child cried
a lot and that his mother would tell him to go and rock Conard's crib so she could get dinner
ready. Nannie said that he just got a high fever. Although the weather was bad Grandpa Audie
took the baby on to the Fayetteville City Hospital where he was pronounced dead upon arrival.

« On her death bed Nettie Cranford Fowler spoke of this child as if she could see him and as if
she had gone back in time when she had this baby. He is buried in the Cave Mountain
Cemetery with nothing to mark his grave but a field stone. I'm sure that she went to met this lost
baby and her beloved Audie when she died. When Audie Fowler passed away she began to die
herself.

» Conard died as a 7 or 8 month old infant child. On her death bed Nettie Cranford Fowler spoke
of this child as if she could see him. Im' sure that she went to met this lost baby. He was born
inbetween Clint and Dorothy.

« 1iii. Dorothy Dean Fowler, born November 04, 1931 in Boxley, Newton County, Arkansas; died
May 11, 1994 in Ft Smith, AR * Buired Morrow, Arkansas *Bethesda Cemetery; married Charles
Ray Goldman November 20, 1949 in Little Rock, Pulaski County, Arkansas.

« iv. Barbara Jean Fowler, <restricted>; married Nick Skirvannos in Fort Smith, Arkansas.

| Generation No. 3

4. Edwin Leander Fowler, born November 10, 1877 in Chautauqua, Kansas; died April 01, 1956 in
Ryker, Newton County, Arkansas *Buried at Cave Mt. Cemetery. He was the son of 8. William
Calvin Fowler and 9. Nancy Lucinda Field. He married 5. Emily Bell Wyatt January 30, 1899 in
Newton County, Arkansas.

5. Emily Bell Wyatt, born July 14, 1883 in Newton County, Arkansas; died March 10, 1975 in Fulton
County, Arkansas *Buried in the Cave Mt. Cemetery.. She was the daughter of 10. William Stanton
"Stant” Wyatt and 11. Sophina Ward.

Notes for Edwin Leander Fowler:

« Ed Fowler was a mule trader and singer. As a teacher he taught shaped notes and was by all
accounts very musically talented as were many of the Fowlers. He chose to remain in the
Arkansas hills after marrying Belle Wyatt. Ed worked in the Ozark woods as a timber boss and
a skilled sharpener of crosscut saws ( "misery-whips" on which loggers depended for felling the
big trees, prior to the advent of chain saws near the mid-twentieth century.) His sons, Troy,
Audie, Walter, Chester, and Efton were all "timber men", horse and mule loggers, stave-buckers,
and tie hackers. It was hard, dangerous work.

Notes for Emily Bell Wyatt:

« Bell was a very neatly put together woman that sort of reminded me of Whistler's Mother
because of the black lace that she wore on her head. There was a softness about her. Once
when she'd been to visit Mintie after she'd broken a shoulder, Uncle Clint was going to take her
back to Newton County and they were crossing the Arkansas River bridge at Muskogee, she told
him that she remembered crossing that river in a covered wagon. They say she walked to
church every Sunday and that she died quietly in her sleep.

« Bell's home is still intact and just about the way she left it. Her dresses still hang in the closet. It
must have been very sad for her to have seen so many of her children die. No mother is
prepared to bury her children.

« One research has that show died in Fulton County, Arkansas.

Children of Edwin Fowler and Emily Wyatt are:
« i. Bessie Fowler, born 1900; married Alexander Edwards.
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o 2 ii. William Audie Fowler, born October 21, 1902 in Newton County, Arkansas; died June 07,
1969 in Evansville, Arkansas *Buired Cave Mt. - Boxley, Arkansas; married Nettie Cranford
October 17, 1926 in Red Star, Newton County, Arkansas.

o lii. Troy Fowler, born April 12, 1905 in Boxley, Newton County, Arkansas; died March 23, 1985
in Boxley in Newton County, Arkansas - *Buried in the Walnut Grove Cemetery; married Dixie
Carrol.

Notes for Troy Fowler:

« In 1943 Troy joined Walter Fowler in the timber business. Troy acquired an army truck to
supplement his four mules in hauling timber up and down the Big Buffalo River.

« A major flood occurred in the valley in 1945. According to Dixie, "....As Troy watched the river
slowly rising, he remembered the brand new truck and manure spreader sitting near the
barn.....Troy, his son Bill, and three older men rushed down to the barn to try to get the vehicles
moved to higher ground but it was too late.. They didn't even reach the barn before the water got
too high. Then it cut them off from the house. They retreated to the highest part of the field, but
he water continued to rise. Their only escape was to climb a big walnut tree. Dixie watched from
the house and saw the light that they carried go up into the tree, so she knew where they were.
They had to stay there until midnight (4 hours).

Notes for Dixie Carrol:

« Dixie Fowler spent most of her years living along the Buffalo River at Boxley played her
five-string banjo and could play "Cripple Creek" with the best of them. As a youngster of about 5
she learned to play chords with her father, and they played duets on the fiddle and banjo and
singing.

« iv. Charlie Fowler, born <restricted>.

« V. Mintie F. Fowler, born September 15, 1910 in Boxley in Newton County, Arkansas - *Buried in
the Walnut Grove Cemetery; died December 19, 1995 in Tulsa, Tulsa County, Oklahoma *Buried
at Hallet, Bethany Cemetery Pawnee, OK; married Joe F. Flager March 10, 1931.

« Vi. Walter Fowler, born January 01, 1913 in Boxley in Newton County, Arkansas; died
December 23, 1974 in Boxley in Newton County, Arkansas - *Buried in the Walnut Grove
Cemetery; married Ava Willa Edgemon.

Notes for Walter Fowler:

« Walter and Ava settled into the Frank Scroggins house, after Frank and Barbara moved to
Ponca which was a mining community down-river end of the Boxley Valley. Walter was also a
logger all his adult life.

Notes for Ava Willa Edgemon:

« (a Marion and Tennessee Edgmon granddaughter)

« Vii. Efton Fowler, born April 10, 1915 in Boxley in Newton County, Arkansas; died September
19, 1991 in Ryker, Newton County, Arkansas *Buried at Cave Mt. Cemetery; married (1) Beulah
Friend; married (2) Oleta Cowan.

« Viii. Chester Vernon Fowler, born February 18, 1918 in Newton County, Arkansas; died June 01,
1998 in Newton County, Arkansas *Buried Walnut Grove Cem.; married Belle Begley.

« iX. Hershel Fowler, born November 1920; married Dorothy Carrol.
6. Cornelius (Neil) Cranford, born May 04, 1856 in Troy, Montgomery County, North Carolina; died
July 24, 1942 in Boxley, Newton County, Arkansas. He was the son of 12. Ambrose Cranford and

13. Caroline Hurley. He married 7. Sarah Jane (Sallie) Bryant December 20, 1893 in Madison
County, Arkansas.
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7. Sarah Jane (Sallie) Bryant, born May 1875 in Laurel County, Kentucky; died December 25, 1951
in Madison Co., Arkansas *Buried Boxley, Newton County, Arkansas. She was the daughter of 14.
William M. Bryant and 15. Rachel Florence Lickliter.

Notes for Cornelius (Neil) Cranford:

« Cornelius Cranford's father, Ambrose died in the Civil War with his brother(?) Nettie Cranford
Fowler always said of her grandfather and an uncle, "One fought for the North and one fought
for the South."” She called her father, Neil, Pap.

« Oral family history says that Cornelius Cranford's mother, Caroline Hurley, died when he was 3
days old, and by age 7 his father, Ambrose had died in the Civil War along with an uncle and
many more of his cousins. Cornelious was raised by a grandmother and was also known as "
Neil or Bud" Cranford. Clint Fowler said that he didn't weigh more than 140 Ibs. The Bryant's
were supposed to be dark complected, with high check bones and some of the children had dark
hair.

« Neil Cranford had been all over the United States before he turned 38 and got married. He
traveled first to Florida and then went west where he was a cattle drover on the Chisom Trail
and he even was said to have panned some gold in northern California and Canada. He had
been to most of the western states and there wasn't much that he hadn't seen in that part of the
country. He could give very detailed land descriptions of the places that he had been.

« Itis said that in Salt Lake he had a quarrel with a Chinese cook over the way that his steak
was prepared. The cook began to chase him with a knife and Neil said had he had to defend
himself. He shot the man dead. After that he left Utah without much ado and just wandered for
a while until he reached the Ozark Mountains in Arkansas where he met and married 18
year-old Sallie Bryant. That ended his world travels.

« Although he and Sallie raised a large family he never went to a bank to borrow money or
worked out away from the home. Maybe there was for a very good reason for that, but in any
case, they got by. One of the few times he went into town was to pay his yearly taxes.

« Neil and his son Lenoard had been a drinking men until Lenoard was shot and killed. They had
both decided to try to quite without much success. After Lenoard's death, Bud never touched
another drop of alcohol the rest of his life.

Notes for Sarah Jane (Sallie) Bryant:

o After Cornelious died Oscar took care of Sallie. When Oscar went to California she moved in

with Ora and her husband until her death.
Children of Cornelius Cranford and Sarah Bryant are:

« i. Lillie Cranford, born October 23, 1894; married Charles W. Hawley July 02, 1913.

o ii. John Cranford, born March 25, 1896; married Pearl.

« iii. Molly Cranford, born May 05, 1897; married John Dixon.

« iv. Della (Dollie) Cranford, born May 15, 1899.

« V. Leonard Cranford, born January 07, 1901.

Notes for Leonard Cranford:

« Leonard was shot and killed.

« Vi. Lottie Cranford, born <restricted>; married (1) Roy Walter; married (2) George Dixon.
« Vii. Ollie Cranford, born <restricted>; married Lloyd Hale.

« Viii. Oscar Cranford, born <restricted>.

Notes for Oscar Cranford:

file:///C|/My Documents/My Webs/Ruby/FAncestory.htm (6 of 78) [06/07/2000 17:48:57]



Ancestors of Dorothy Dean Fowler

Oscar Cranford took care of his mother, Sallie after his father, Cornelious died. They sold the
home place and bought a place at Aball near Red Star, Arkansas. It had three houses on it and
they lived in one of them and rented the others. Oscar went off to California and was killed by a
hit-and-run driver. Sallie went to live with her daughter, Ora, until her death.

3 ix. Nettie Cranford, born October 01, 1908 in Newton County, Arkansas; died July 22, 1973 in
Fayetteville, Washington County, AR * Buired Cave Mt. Cemetery Boxley, AR; married William
Audie Fowler October 17, 1926 in Red Star, Newton County, Arkansas.

X. Laura Cranford, born <restricted>.
xi. Cora Cranford, <restricted>.
xii. Ora Cranford, born August 16, 1917; died 1995; married Clifton Brown.

Notes for Ora Cranford:

At the point of her retirement or shortly there after, Aunt "Orie" as we called her, got dementia
and within a month she didn't know anyone. Her son put her in a rest home and she died
sometime after Mother, (Dorothy D. Fowler Goldman) in about 1995.

Generation No. 4

8. William Calvin Fowler, born March 18, 1840 in McNairy County, Tennessee; died April 02, 1891
in Boxley, Newton County, Arkansas *Cave Mt. Cemetery. He was the son of 16. Joseph "Solomon"
Fowler and 17. Elizabeth R. Low(e)ry. He married 9. Nancy Lucinda Field November 15, 1866 in
McDonald County, Missouri.

9. Nancy Lucinda Field, born November 10, 1842 in McMinn County, Tennessee; died August 08,
1932 in Pawnee County, Oklahoma *Buried in the Maramec Cemetery.. She was the daughter of 18.
Beeson Field and 19. Nancy Lankaster.

Notes for William Calvin Fowler:

He built school's in Ryker, Arkansas and Sedan, Kansas named the "Fowler School". He was
the first clerk in July 31, 1879 and his brother Bennett taught in 1881 through 1888 and was
clerk in 1884 - 1886- 1887. W.C.'s children had to walk 8 miles to school before the Fowler
school was built.

W.C. went west to avoid the Civil War draft. He fought and hated Indians instead because they
took his horse and left him afoot. Some say he was part Indian, but he didn't claim it.

W.C. Also supplied the land for the school at Ryker. He was the first to be buried at the Cave
Mountain

"Boxley". His grave is located on the east side in the middle of the cemetery. After settling on the
1g hill in Boxley, Nancy said, "Like a butterfly fluttering from flower to flower, he landed on a
pile of manure". She knew what she was talking about because after his death she had to raise
her children on that hill.[fowler.ftw]

One researcher says that William Calvin went west to avoid the civil war draft. (Allred says that
he was a Civil war Veteran???) But he fought and hated Indians instead. They took his horse
and left him on foot. He was suppose to be part Indian but he wouldn't claim it. "The only good
Indian was a dead Indian in his book," according to Wilbur Robertson.

William Calvin Fowler built a school in Ryker, AR. The land was donated to him. He was the
first person to be buried in the Cave MT Cemetery at Boxley. His grave is on the east side in the
middle of the cemetery. He built schools in Sedan, KS and Ryker, AR named "Fowler School"
where he was the first clerk in July 31, 1879. Before he built the school his children were having
to walk 8 miles to the nearest facility.

After settling on the 1g hill in Boxley, Nancy said, "Like a butterfly fluttering from flower to
flower, W.C. landed on a pile of manure." She knew what she was talking about because after
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his death, she had to raise her children on that hill.

1830 Census: McNairy County, Tennessee

Fowler, Hiram (One male up to 5; 1 male 20-30; 2 females 20-30
Fowler, Hiram D. 1 male up to 5; 1 male 5-10; 1 male 30-40; 1 female
Fowler, Solomon 1 male 20-30; 1 female up to 5; 1 female 15-20

In the book "Old Folks Talking" by Jim Liles the Fowlers appear to have arrived in the Buffalo
River region of the Arkansas Ozarks after the Civil War. William Calvin Fowler was listed on the
1870 census with a wife and three young children, living near the "Boston Post Office" in
Newton County. Arkansas between the Buffalo and Kings Rivers, about 15 miles southwest of
the Big Buffalo Valley. He had come to Arkansas from McDonald County, Missouri.[Vilines.ftw]

William Calvin went west to avoid the civil war draft. But he fought and hated Indians instead.
They took his horse and left him on foot. He was suppose to be part Indian but he wouldn't
claim it. "The only good Indian was a dead Indian," in his book.

He built a school in Ryker, AR. The land was given to him. He was the first person to be buried
in the Cave MT Cemetery at Boxley. His grave is on the east side in the middle of the cemetery.
He built schools in Sedan, KS, Ryker, AR (named "Fowler" school" where he was the first clerk in
July 31, 1879.

Before he built the school his children were having to walk 8 miles to the nearest school.

After settling on the 1g hill in Boxley, Nancy said, "Like a butterfly fluttering from flower to
flower, W.C. landed on a pile of manure." She knew what she was talking about because after
his death, she had to raise her kids on that hill.

Notes for Nancy Lucinda Field:

After W.C died she and the children applied for enrollment with the Cherokee Nation through the
Guion Miller Rolls through her grandfather "Joseph Field" but they were ultimately rejected. All
of them were living in Eufaula, Western District - Indian Territory at the time of their application
on July 26, 1910. Research tells me that they simply filed too late.

According to a personal interview with Bill Fowler December 11, 1995, in the family Bible of Bill
and Nina Lee Fowler the Field's family in east Tennessee were related to John Sevier, the first
Govenor of Tennessee. *John Sevier was the uncle of Nancy (Lankaster)Lancaster, the wife of
Beeson Fields.

Rejected Cherokee Roll # 38335 for Nancy Lucinda Field - John Vaughn Library - Northeastern
State University - Tahlequah, Oklahoma

Children of William Fowler and Nancy Field are:

i. David Beeson Fowler, born April 22, 1869 in Tiff City, McDonald County, Missouri; died July
10, 1956 in Maramec, Pawnee County, Oklahoma; married (1) Nancy Elizabeth Villines 1890 in
Newton County, Arkansas; married (2) Judith Mathes.

Notes for David Beeson Fowler:

David's mother called him "Beas" He and Nancy joined the increasing exodus to Oklahoma.

Notes for Nancy Elizabeth Villines:

Nieces called her Aunt Nan
ii. Lula Bell Fowler, born March 22, 1871; married Harvey Downing.
iii. Minnie May Fowler, born May 18, 1873; died August 1902; married Tom Palmer.

iv. Emma Elizabeth Fowler, born August 06, 1874 in Chautauque, KS; died July 27, 1961 in
Sapulpa in Creek Co. Oklahoma; married George Mathew Stanburry March 15, 1894.
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o 4 v. Edwin Leander Fowler, born November 10, 1877 in Chautauqua, Kansas; died April 01,
1956 in Ryker, Newton County, Arkansas *Buried at Cave Mt. Cemetery; married Emily Bell
Wyatt January 30, 1899 in Newton County, Arkansas.

« Vi. Christine Maude Fowler, born November 24, 1880; married Perry Turner.

« Vii. Laura Dale Fowler, born March 16, 1883 in Ryker- Boxley, Newton County, Arkansas; died
December 04, 1964 in Backwell, Kay County, Oklahoma; married William Alexander "Alec"
Ayers December 16, 1908 in Eufaula, Mclntosh County, Oklahoma.

« Viii. Oscar Bennett Fowler, born March 1886 in Ryker, Newton County, Arkansas; died in New
Plymouth, ID; married Bertha Hale.

10. William Stanton "Stant” Wyatt, born January 22, 1852 in Whitley County, Kentucky; died
January 16, 1923 in Newton County, Arkansas *Buried Cave MT Cemetery. He was the son of 20.
Marshall Wyatt and 21. Emity Mahan. He married 11. Sophina Ward.

11. Sophina Ward, born March 21, 1856 in Whitley County, Kentucky; died December 29, 1937 in
Newton County, Arkansas *Buried Cave MT Cemetery. She was the daughter of 22. Nathan Ward ,
Jr and 23. Ellander Jones.

Notes for William Stanton "Stant” Wyatt:
« The 1813 Grayson County, Virginia Personal Property Tax Lists
« Transcribed by Jeffrey C. Weaver, June, 1998
« Name Tithes Slaves Slaves Horses Tax
e 12-16 16+
« Ward, William 1 2 .32
« Wyatt, John 1 2 .32
« Wyatt, William 11 .16
« Ward, Wells, Exempt - 2 1.32 one grist mill
« Ward, Stephen 1 3 .48
« Ward, Nathan 2 5 .80

Notes for Sophina Ward:

« Many of the WARDs in Newton Co AR have origins in Grayson Co VA. Some of these came to
Newton Co AR by way of Whitley Co KY. Johnson Co AR which joins on the south hosts a
number of WARDs connecting to those in the Tazewell/Wythe Co VA area.

« Nathan Ward's last will and testiment was written 14 Mar. 1803 Grayson Co., VA; wife's name
was not mentioned. Ch: 1. William - b. 1779 VA, d. 1863, m. 17 Sep. 1800 Grayson Co., VA,
Elizabeth Wilson; 2. Margaret - d. 31 Mar. 1840, m. 18 Aug. 1792 Grayson Co., VA, Morris Davis
Sr.; 3. Wells; 4. Nathan - b. 1770-80, d. 20 Mar. 1835 Grayson Co., VA, m. Sarah; 5. Enoch - m.
14 Dec. 1825 Grayson Co., VA, Nancy Hash.

« A Wells Ward who had a son Nathan that lived in Hawkins Co., TN.
« Nathan WARD born in approx. 1877 in KY father and mother born in KY

« Nathan & Nancyis family were in Newton Co., ARK , in the 1920
e Census.

« Harvey born. 19017 born in ARK

« Shonie born. 1904 born in ARK

o Kizzie born. 1906 born in ARK
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o Ethie born. 1911 born in ARK
o Ruth born. 1913 born in ARK

Dillie born. July 1919 born in ARK

Children of William Wyatt and Sophina Ward are:

5 i. Emily Bell Wyatt, born July 14, 1883 in Newton County, Arkansas; died March 10, 1975 in
Fulton County, Arkansas *Buried in the Cave Mt. Cemetery.; married Edwin Leander Fowler
January 30, 1899 in Newton County, Arkansas.

ii. Joe Wyatt.

iii. Ora Wyatt.

iv. Ovie Wyatt.
v. Charlie Wyatt.

12. Ambrose Cranford, born April 18, 1827 in Troy, Montgomery County, North Carolina; died May
1862 in Civil War- 34th Reg. (Private -Co. K Confederate Army) North Carolina Troops. He was the son
of 24. Richard Cranford and 25. Elizabeth " Betty ". He married 13. Caroline Hurley December
08, 1848 in Montgomery County, North Carolina.

13. Caroline Hurley, born 1827 in Martin County, North Carolina; died Abt. 1860 in Troy,
Montgomery County, North Carolina. She was the daughter of 26. Cornelious Hurley and 27.
Elizabeth "Betsy" Beane.

Notes for Ambrose Cranford:

* Also see as Lawrence Ambrose or possibly "Larry" A. Cranford. These may be two seperate
people.

The 1860 Montgomery County Census lists Ambrose Cranford as age 33, his wife, Caroline,age
32.

Ambrose fought and died in the Civil War as did some of his brothers. He enlisted September 9,
1861 at the age of 34 in Montgomery County, North Carolina. He was a Private in K Co. 34th Inf.
Company K--Montgomery County--Captain, David R. Cochran. The regiment was organized at
High Point, on 26 October, 1861

Nettie Cranford Fowler told me when | was a child that of Ambrose and his brothers "One fit' for
the North and the other 'fit' for the South,". There has been no evidence to date to prove that any
of the Cranford's fought for the North. Ambrose is buried beside James and Ruth Riley Cranford.
John Cranford, a brother, lies beside Ambrose.

Clint Fowler said, Ambrose was 5' 8" tall and weighted 280 Ibs. He was a farmer. The
information that we have on the family and children comes from the 1860 Montgomery Co.,
Census Report. Harris Cranford had a son, Rex Cranford who has a daughter, Lucy, that still
lives in Troy, North Carolina. The elder Cranford's are buried in the Lovejoy Cemetery and at the
New Hope Cemetery near the "old Cranford home place" in Troy.

Note: Donald Cranford - researcher.

Answer to confusion about Ambrose and the possible name of Larry or Lawrence as a first name
of Ambrose. And who is that on the 1850 census in Montgomery County, NC in Richard
Cranford's household that the writing looks like Larry or Sarry A. When all else fails look at the
estate record:

The story goes like this, in 1997 an aquaintance and descendant of Angus D. Cranford son of
Richard that lives in the state of Wyoming asked me to copy for him my next trip to the NC
Archives the complete estate record for Richard Cranford that died in Montgomery County, NC
1862. | did and mailed to him. Cost for mailing and copies was $22.00. He paid. | also copied a
few of the petitions that indicated the heirs and kept for my records. Later he sent me a typed
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copy of one of the key petitions. | didn't have a copy of that particular petition but basicly it
appeared correct and had no reason to doubt it being an exact duplicate of the original. I've used
it quit a bit, so I'm in a big mess if it's not right.

« An estate record can be used to verify a census and in most cases somewhere in there will be
an accurate recorde of the children or heirs of the deceased. In the case of Richard's estate and
1850 census this may set the record straight:

« In the Superior Court of
« the State of North Carolina
« in and for the County of Montgomery
o P. C. Saunders
o Administrator Debonis Non
» of Richard Cranford deceased
o Plaintiff
« VS
« Sarah Jane Cranford Beaman, deceased and heirs;
« Angus Dunaha Cranford, deceased and heirs;
« Ambrose Cranford, deceased and heirs
« Laura Cranford Ballard ;
« Eliza Cranford Morgan;
« James Madison Cranford, deceased and heirs;
« Joel T. Cranford;
« John G. Cranford, deceased;
« Martha E. Cranford, deceased;
« Elvira Cranford;
« Defendants
« On the next page in part:
» That said land descended to his children and heirs to-wit:

« (1) the minor children of Jane Beaman, deceased to-witt: Hancel Beaman and Laura Beaman,
[residing] in said county ages not known.

« (3) the children of Ambrose Cranford, deceased, to-wit: Harris Cranford, now full of age, Eliza M.
Cranford who intermarried with E. S. Saunders; Nancy A. Cranford and Neill Cranford, the last
three being minors living in said county, ages not known; Also a guardian administrator was
appointed by the court for the above children and the children of Angus D. Cranford.
« Date of this petition was April 2, 1871.

« Now look at the above list of defendants and compare to the below 1850 Richard census, looks
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like Sarah Jane Cranford is the one in question on the census. And I'm not sure | can accept that
looking at the original census record. It is written over and underneath it looks as could be Sara
A. or as Cathy said Larry A.

But it's obvious on the estate record we're talking about Ambrose being Ambrose and Sara A or
Larry indicated as a female really being the estate record child of Richard indicated as Sarah
Jane Cranford Beaman in the title case and as Jane Beaman in most other indications on the
estate. And I'll vote for that.

There is a marriage record in Montgomery County, NC for Robert Beaman to Jane Cranford on
Aug. 7, 1851.

Don
Mr. Edison Curtis,or similiar,who lives in Salisbury,NC.

Mr. Curtis is directly related to the Ambrose Cranford line,as | am to James Madison Cranford, a
brother of Ambrose. Mr. Curtis has done a bit of research on the Cranfords in the Civil War, and

has a file in memory of Ambrose at the Rowan County Library in Salisbury,NC.Mr. Curtis also is
a volunteer in the genealogy room there from time to time.

Notes for Caroline Hurley:

Also see as Catherine Hurley.

Oral history says that she died 3 days after Bud was born, and his grandmother raised him.
BUT: Caroline is listed on the 1860 census with Ambrose Cranford on the Montgomery County,
NC census. She could have died in child birthing but it would have been after 1860. And a Neil
iIs on there at age four. That is our Cornelious. Also listed are Harris age 9, Elizabeth M. age 7
and Nancy age 5. There is an estate record on Ambrose and it just indicates the sale of land and
Caroline the executrix, not the heirs. Other of the deceased sons are the same as | recall. | take
it if your Neil was listed as an heir and there was money left after expenses and such then he
did receive something. (Donald P. Cranford - researcher).

Mrs. C. Olin Reeves of Troy, in Pike County, Alabama; and from Ed Hurley of Fern Park, Florida.
Both of them; perhaps from the same source; indicated that Elias, William, Green and Winchop
Hurley were sons of Cornelius Hurley (1795), of Montgomery County, North Carolina. Note: The
author of this book believes that these boys were sons of "Accy Hurley", It appears that Accy
was the father of at least seven children, and perhaps as many as ten.

At the old Zoar Cemetery there is a Col. Aaron H. Sanders B.1802 D.1885 Married twice to Celia
and Rebecca. Samuel Hurley B.1809 D.1872 Wife Elizabeth B.1831 D.1857 Daughter of Jerry
Johnson.

The only mention of Ambrose Cranford: In the Archives at Raleigh, there is a bond of George
Coggins, administrator, dated July 5, 1863, with reference made to the dower rights of Prudence
E. Hurley, the widow, and two minor children. The real estate is there described as 150 acres of
land adjoining lands of Joshua Hurley, Ambrose Cranford, George Luther and William Burney.

This folder file contains papers also as to the estate of a second Daniel Hurley, which should not
be confused with this subject. That Daniel, born c. 1810/17, was a son of Stephen Hurley
(1782). The files have been combined for no apparent reason, except the common name.

From the records, it appears that the wife of our subject was Elizabeth Prudence Coggins, and
that they had at least two children:
a. George L. Hurley, born 1861 to 1863

b. Mary Daniel Hurley, born May 12, 1863, died May 2, 1944 and married Dec. 16, 1883 to
Robert Seth Zachary, born March 31, 1858, died Dec. 17, 1936. Both are buried at Wadeville
Baptist Church. At the time, he was reported as being 25 years of age and she was 21.

Children:
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(1) Robert Zachary
(2) Inez Zachary
(3) Ora Zachary
Children of Ambrose Cranford and Caroline Hurley are:

« i. Harris Crook Cranford, born October 10, 1850 in Montgomery County, North Carolina; died
October 18, 1931 in Randolph County, North Carolina *Buried Lovejoy Methodist Church;
married (1) Elizabeth Jane "Eliza" Saunders September 27, 1868 in Troy, Montgomery County,
North Carolina; married (2) Civila Cornealia 1887 in Troy, Montgomery County, North Carolina.

Notes for Harris Crook Cranford:
« Harris C. CRANFORD to Eliza SANDERS

« State of North Carolina, Montgomery County. TO ANY Regular Minister of the Gospel having the
cure of souls, of whatever Denomination; Or to any Justice of the Peace of said County: You, or
any of you, are hereby authorized and empowered To celebrate and solemnize the Rites of
Matrimony between Harris C. Cranford, son of Ambros Cranford and Carolina Cranford AND
Eliza Saunders, daughter of Henry Saunders, Sr. and Mary Saunders. And join them together as
Man and Wife. Witness, P.H. Morris Clerk of our Court of Pleas and Commissioners Office in
Troy, the 23 day of September 1868 and in the 98th year of our Independence. P.H. Morris,
Clerk. State of North Carolina, Montgomery County. THIS CERTIFIES THAT Harris C. Cranford
son of Ambrose Cranford and Carolina Cranford and Eliza Saunders daughter of Henry
Saunders, Sr. and Mary Saunders were, by me, united in the Bonds of Matrimony, on the 27
day of September 1868. (I am missing the person s name that married this couple.)

H. C. Cranford Death Certificate

« Place of Death: Montgomery County. Township: Ophir. City: Rural. Reg. no. 625827. Certificate
no. 5. Male, white, married. Wife of Deceased: Cornelia Cranford. Date of Death: 10-18-1931.
Cause of Death: Apoplexy - date of onset, 1929; Myocaritis - date of onset 10-31-1931.
Contributory Causes: Arteriorcluois. Doctor: W.J. Harris of Troy, NC. Date of Birth: Oct. 10, 1850.
Age at Death: 81 yrs, 8 days. Occupation: Farmer. Date deceased last worked at this
occupation: 10 yrs ago. Birthplace: Montgomery County, NC. Name of Father: Ambrose Cranford.
Birthplace of Father: Montgomery Co., NC. Mother's Maiden Name: Caroline Hurley. Mother's
Birthplace: Montgomery County, NC. Informant: Mrs. H.C. Cranford. Burial, Cremation or
Removal Place: Love Joy. Date: 10-19-1931. Undertaker: Troy Furniture Company, Troy, NC.
Filed: 11-4-1931. Register: N. W. Davis.

State of North Carolina} SS In the Supreme Court
« Montgomery County}

« A paper writing purporting to be the last Will and Testament of H.C. Cranford deceased is
exhilarated before me the undersigned Clerk of the Supreme Court for said county by T.B.
Saunders the executor therein mentioned and the due execution thereof by the said H.C.
Cranford is proved by the oath and examination of B.A. Davis and L.J. Brown the subscribing
witness thereto who being duly sworn doth diposeth and saith that he is a subscribing witness
to the paper writing now shown him purporting to be the last Will and Testament of H.C.
Cranford that the said H.C. Cranford in the presence of this deponent subscribed his name at
the end of said paper writing which is now shown as aforesaid and which bears date of the 7th
day of January 1926. And This Deponent Further Saith, That the said H.C. Cranford the testator
aforesaid did at the time of subscribing his name as aforesaid declare the said paper writing so
subscribed by him and exhilarated to be his last Will and Testament and this deponent did
thereupon subscribe his name at the end of said Will as an attesting witness thereto and at the
request and in the presence of said testator. And this deponent further saith that at the same
time when the said testator subscribed his name to the said last Will as aforesaid and at the of
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the deponents subscribing his name as attesting witness thereto as aforesaid the said H.C.
Cranford was of sound mind and memory of full age to execute a Will and was not under any
restraint to the knowledge to the knowledge information or belief of this deponent And further
these deponents say not.

B.A. Davis

L.J. Brown

Severally sworn and subscribed this 24th day of October 1931 before me.
Edgar Haywood

Clerk of Supreme Court

Superior Court

State of North Carolina} In the Superior Court

Montgomery County} Before the Clerk
In the Matter of the
Will of H.C. Cranford

| Edgar Haywood Clerk of the Superior Court of the said County of Montgomery having
examined the foregoing instrument purporting to be the last Will and Testament of H.C. Cranford
and having heard the testimony of B.A. Davis and L.J. Brown subscribing witnesses thereto in
relation to the execution of the same, do declare and adjudge said instrument ofthe said H.C.
Cranford late of Montgomery County deceased. And having examined the foregoing instrument,
purporting to be a codicil to the said last Will and Testament of H.C. Cranford and signed by
H.C. Cranford and having heard the testimony of B.A. Davis and Eliza Hamiltonsubscribing
witnesses thereto in relation to the execution of the same do declare and adjudge said
instrument to be a codicil to the said last Will and Testament of the said H.C. Cranford,
deceased, late of Montgomery County. Let said Will and the codicil thereto attached together
with the probate be recorded and filed.

This 24th day of October 1931.
Edgar Haywood

Clerk of Superior Court

North Carolina

Montgomery County

I, H.C. Cranford of the aforesaid Co. and state, being of sound mind and memory do make and
declare this my last Will and Testament:

1st. My Executor shall give my body a decent burial and place a monument to my and my first
wife grave to the amount of (250.00) each.

2nd. | give and bequeath to my beloved wife C.C. Cranford ($500.00) Five Hundred in cash to
satisfy her dower together with all house hold and kitchen furniture that already belongs to her.

3rd. | give and bequeath my oldest daughter Dora Kearns the wife of Richard Kearns the sum of
$2500 Dollars in cash.

4. | give and bequeath to my second daughter Flora Ellison the wife of Joe Ellison $2500 in
cash. The amount that | give to Dora Kearns and Flora Ellison is to make them equal with my
third daughter Cora Davis in land and timber which | have already given her valued at $2500.

5. | give and devise to my oldest son Henery R. Cranford $1000 dollars in cash and one half
interest in the mill tract of land known as the Bean Mill tract also another tract of land known as
where Relus (sp)

Newsom lived the part of the Enoch Callicutt tract the part on the East side of Barns Creek also
another tract known as a part of the Henery Saunders land adjoining Cora Dennis on the West
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and North and Henery Saunders land on the East and on the South by Eldon McLeod to have
and to hold in fee simple his heirs and assigns.

6. | give and bequeath unto my youngest daughter Pollie Saunders the wife of T.B. Saunders the
sum of $2500 in cash.

7. 1 give and bequeath unto my youngest son Rex Cranford $1500 dollars in cash and all my
stock in the Bank of Montgomery in the Town of Troy, being the amount of $1000.

8. | give and devise unto my grandson Eldon McLeod my h9ome bounded as follows, Beginning
at the bridge across Barns Creek at the bean Mill and runs East with the Ck. To and beyond the
Strider Creek to a little branch then with the branch to the ford of said branch thence south
within five steps to a wire fence on the North side with said fence to the branch thence with the
branch to Cora Dennis line thence S.W. with her line to N.S. Hamilton's line with his line S.W. to
the corner of the Mill tract thence E. to the beginning containing 90 acres more or less to have
and to hold in fee simple his heir and assigns.

All other land which being two tracts namely 35 acres known as the Jacob Saunders land, 75
acre on the Long Mountain together with all personal property not mentioned in this will to be
divided among my

children in equal share.

| hereby constitute and appoint my trusty son Rex Cranford and my son-in-law T.B. Saunders
as my lawful Executors to all intents and purposes to execute this my last Will and Testament.

In witness whereof, | the said H.C. Cranford do hereunto set my hand and seal.
This the 7th day of Jan. 1926.

H.C. Cranford (Seal)

Signed, sealed, published and declared by the said H.C. Cranford to

be his last Will and Testament in the presence of us who at his request

and in his presence and in the presence of each other do subscribe our

names as witnesses thereto.

Witness:

B.A. Davis

J.L. Brown

North Carolina

Montgomery County

| H.C. Cranford having made and duly executed my last Will and Testament in writing being
date Jan. 7th 1926 now | do hereby declare this present writing to be as a codicil to my said
Will and the same to

be annexed thereto and taken as part thereof: and | do hereby give bequeath to my wife
Cornealia C. Cranford Five Hundred dollars more that | mentioned in my will.

And | further bequeath to my grand-son Elden McLeod Five Hundred dollars more than |
mentioned in my will.

And | further bequeath to my oldest son H.R. Cranford Four Hundred Dollars more than
mentioned in will.

And | further bequeath unto my youngest son Rex Cranford $1000 One Thousand Dollars more
than | mentioned in my will.

In witness whereof, | the said H.C. Cranford have to this codicil
set my hand and seal.
This the 11th day of Feb. 1931
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« H.C. Cranford (Seal)

« Signed, sealed and published by said H.C. Cranford as and for a codicil to be added to and
considered as a part of his last Will and Testament in the presence of each of us who have
subscribe our names in his presence and in the presence of each of us who have subscribed our
names in his presence of each other.

« B.A. Davis
« Witness:
« Eliza Hamilton

Now for this tree that | have, | show this as Harris' children with Eliza Saunders
« 1. Ellen Cranford b. Abt. 1871
e 2. Flory Cranford b. Abt. 1874
« 3. Caroline Cranford b. Abt. 1875
« 4. Polly Cranford b. Abt. 1878
« 5. Nameless Cranford b. January 1880
« End of children listed in this tree of Harris and Eliza.

« Now, Harris mentions that he has some eldest daughters and sons above, so | would assume
that these are the children of Eliza and not Corneilia. What | am trying to determine is who if
any of the children listed above in the will are Corneilia's children. Also when did Eliza pass
away?

o E.L. CALICOTT & Wife to H. C. CRANFORD Deed

» North Carolina, Montgomery County. This Deed made this the 15th day of Jany 1889 by E. L.
Calicott and wife V. A. Calicott of the first part and H.C. Cranford of the second part witneseth
that we the party of the first part for and in consideration of the sum of Four Hundred and
twenty five dollars in hand paid have sold and conveyed and by this did do sell and convey
unto the said Cranford his heirs and assigns the following described parcel of Land in said
County on the waters of Barnes Creek beginning on a dogwood by hickory and other pointers
said Cranfords corner runs thence S 47 E to various courses to Frank Calicott line Thence with
his line North westwardly to P.C. Calicotts line Thence with his lines South westwardly to the
back line Thence with the whit Sanders line South to said Sanders corner in a drain near the
Mill road Thence south his Cranfords line N 43 E 127 poles to the big ? containing 120 acres
more or less. To have and to hold said lands and tenements together with all woods waters
mines minerals here ditaments and appurtenances there unto belonging or in any wise
appertaining to said land unto the said Cranford his heirs executors administrators and assigns
in fee simple forever and we the party of the first part bind ourselves or heirs and assigns to
forever warrant and defend the right and title of said land and tenements hereby conveyed unto
said Cranford his heirs and assigns against the right title claim or claims of any and all persons
whatsoever. In Testimony whereof we the party of the first part have hereto set our hands and
seals the day and date above written. Also our entire interest in and to the lands we bought
from Daniel Williams and with Deed being date of April 7th 1885 as by reference to said Deed
will fully show the boundaries. Witness our hands and seals the day and date first afore
written. Thomas Hall E.L. Callicott (LS), V.A. (x her mark) Callicott LS. N Carolina Montgomery
County. Personally appeared before me P.C. Calicott an Acting Justice of the Peace in and for
said County E.L. Calicott and Wife V.A. Calicott the grantors of the within Deed who
acknowledges the due execution of the same and the said V.A. Calicott who after being by me
privately examined separate and apart from her said husband or any other person touching her
voluntary execution of the same freely and voluntarily without force or compulsion from her said
husband or any other person and doath still voluntarily assent thereto. Given under my hand
and seal this the 15th day of January 1889. P.C. Calicott (JP). North Carolina, Montgomery
County. The foregoing certificate of P.C. Calicott a Justice of the Peace in Montgomery County is
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adjudged to be correct; Therefore the same with the certificate be Registered. This 17th day A.D.
1889. W.R. Harris Clerk Superior Court. Filed Jan 17th 1889 and Registered Jan 19th 1889 in
Book No 31 Page 286. A.R. Morris, Register of Deeds.

« Ii. Elizabeth (Eliza) M. Cranford, born 1853; married E. S. Saunders.

« iii. Nancy Ann Cranford, born 1855; died April 24, 1943 in Montgomery County, North Carolina
*Cemetery: Love Joy near Troy, N.C.

Notes for Nancy Ann Cranford:
« Nancy Jane Cranford Death Certificate

« State of North Carolina. Book 27, Page 24. Registration Dist. # 62-02. Certificate # 1. Place of
Death: Montgomery County. Township: Little River. City or Town: Rural. Home (Usual
Residence): State: N.C. County: Montgomery. City or Town: Rural. Sex: Female. Color: White.
Single. Birth date of Deceased: April 12, 1854. Age: 89 years and 12 days. Birthplace:
Montgomery County, N.C. Usual Occupation: Housekeeping. Father s Name: Unknown.
Birthplace: Montgomery County, N.C. Mother s Maiden Name: Unknown. Birthplace:
Montgomery County, N.C. Informant s Signature: D. Moore of High Point, N.C. Burial Date:
4-26-1943. Cemetery: Love Joy near Troy, N.C. Funeral Director: Troy Funeral Home Co. of Troy,
N.C. Filed: 5-7-1943. Registrar: W.A. Leach. Date of Death: 4-24-1943 at 7:30 p.m. | certify that
death occurred on the date above stated; that | attended deceased from Jan. 2, 1943 to
4-24-1943 and that | last saw her alive on 4-16-1943. Immediate Cause of Death: Myocardial
Failure Duration 3 months Due to: Arteriosclerosis Duration 5 years. Signature: W.T. Harris
of Troy, N.C. Date: 5-5-1943.

« 6 iv. Cornelius (Neil) Cranford, born May 04, 1856 in Troy, Montgomery County, North Carolina;
died July 24, 1942 in Boxley, Newton County, Arkansas; married Sarah Jane (Sallie) Bryant
December 20, 1893 in Madison County, Arkansas.

Child of Ambrose Cranford and Ann is:

« i. Lunda (Lunday) Cranford, born 1860; married William R. Sanders February 03, 1876 in Ophir
Township, Montgomery County, North Carolina.

Notes for Lunda (Lunday) Cranford:

« In the 1870 Montgomery County Cenus it shows a Lunda Cranford, age 10, in a dwelling house
of Elizabeth Cranford ( widow of Richard).

« It also shows Lunda as a daughter of James Madison Cranford. There is another daughter
shown,Mary,9yrs.old. Don't know what ever happened to her.

« Joel G. is shown in that same household with his mother, Laura Ann Cranford. Laura Ann listed

« *Married by Wyatt M. Thayer, a missionary Baptist Minister, at Ann Cranford's home in Ophir
township, with Harris Cranford as one of the witnesses. It states that Lunda's father was died.

« Wm. R. SANDERS to Lunda CRANFORD

« State of North Carolina, Montgomery County. Office Register of Deeds, January 31st, 1876. To
any Ordained Minister of any Religious Denomination. Or any Justice of the Peace of said
County: Henry Sanders having applied to me for a LICENSE for the Marriage of Wm. R. Sanders
of Montgomery, aged 19, color white, the son of Elisha Sanders and Lydia J. Sanders, the father
now dead, the mother living, resident of Montgomery, And Lunday Cranford, of Montgomery,
aged 16 years, color white, daughter of Ambros Cranford and Ann Cranford, the father dead,
the mother living, resident of Montgomery Co. And with written consent of Ann Cranford, the
Mother of the said Lunday Cranford to the proposed marriage having been filed with me. And
there being no legal impediment to such marriage known to me, your are hereby authorized, at
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any time within one year from the date hereof, to celebrate the proposed marriage at any place
within the said County. You are required within two months after you shall have celebrated
such marriage to return this License to me, at my office, with your signature subscribed to the
certificate under this License, and with the blanks therein filled according to the facts, under
penalty of forfeiting two hundred dollars to the use of any person who shall sue for the same.
P.H. Morris, Register of Deeds. State of North Carolina, Montgomery County. I, Wyatt N. Thayer,
a Missionary Baptist Preacher united in matrimony Wm. R. Sanders and Lunda Cranford, the
partied licensed above, on the 3rd of February, 1876, at Ann Cranfords in Ophir Township, in
said County, according to law. Witnesses Present at Marriage: Wyatt N. Thayer, B.M., Harris
Sanders, Harris Cranford, John (x his mark) Ragsdalle.

14. William M. Bryant, born 1846 in London or Corbin, Laurel County, Kentucky; died Abt. 1915 in
Newton County, Arkansas. He was the son of 28. Elias Bryant and 29. Minerva Mary Ann
Richmond. He married 15. Rachel Florence Lickliter May 24, 1867 in Laurel County, Kentucky.

15. Rachel Florence Lickliter, born July 25, 1848 in Laurel County, Kentucky; died May 30, 1939
in Newton County, Arkansas. She was the daughter of 30. William Lickliter and 31. Rebecca
Mays.
Notes for William M. Bryant:

« 1 NAME WILLIAM /BRYANT/

e« 1SEXM

« 1 BIRT

« 2 DATE NOV 1847
2 PLAC KENTUCKY
1 NAME MARY ALICE /BRYANT/
1SEXF
1 NAME MARINDA J /BRYANT/
1SEXF
1 BIRT
« 2 DATE 1868
o« 2 PLAC LAUREL COUNTY, KENTUCKY
1 NAME MARTHA A /BRYANT/
1SEXF
1 BIRT
2 DATE DEC 1869
o« 2 PLAC LAUREL COUNTY, KENTUCKY
1 NAME JAMES F /BRYANT/
1SEXM
1 BIRT
2 DATE AUG 1874
o« 2 PLAC LAUREL COUNTY, KENTUCKY
1 NAME SARAH /BRYANT/
1SEXF
1 BIRT
2 DATE MAY 1874
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e 2 PLAC LAUREL COUNTY, KENTUCKY
« 1 NAME REBECCA /BRYANT/
e« 1SEXF
« 1BIRT
2 DATE 1876
2 PLAC LAUREL COUNTY, KENTUCKY
1 NAME MINERVA /BRYANT/
1SEXF
1 BIRT
2 DATE 1880
2 PLAC LAUREL COUNTY, KENTUCKY
1 NAME WILLIAM /BRYANT/
e« 1SEXM
« 1 BIRT
« 2 DATE JUL 1877
e 2 PLAC LAUREL COUNTY, KENTUCKY

MORE BRYANTS IN LAUREL COUNTY,KENTUCKY.
« 1 NAME MARY A /BRYANT/
e« 1SEXF
« 1BIRT
« 2 DATE SEP 1898

2 PLAC KENTUCKY

« 1NAME //

1SEXM

1 NAME ETHEL /BRYANT/

1SEXF

1 BIRT

« 2 DATE 1904

1 NAME GEORGE E /BRYANT/

1SEXM

1 BIRT

« 2 DATE 1907

2 PLAC KENTUCKY

« 1 NAME JOHN W /BRYANT/

1SEXM

1 BIRT

« 2DATE 1910

2 PLAC KENTUCKY

1 NAME SARAH /BRYANT/

1SEXF
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1 BIRT
2 DATE APR 1853

Notes for Rachel Florence Lickliter:

My Mother has been telling me for years that Grandmother Rachel was full Blood Indian and |
found out the other day she was black Dutch. ( Rachel was a healer in her tribe?) More
investigation needed here.

Source: Fred Tripp

637 Cherry Lane

Pueblo Co. 81005

719 564- 6277

Email: FredTripp@aol.com

Then information | have is from a list my Aunt Francis compiled and of copies from a old family
Bible. The family record list says that George Franklin Lickliter was born 6-28-1854. George
married Sarah Feb 5 1874. Sarah (Bryant) was born April 27, 1853. Sarah died Aug 24, 1903.
She had 8 children. Her 4th child was Rachel Louisa, born May 17, 1885. | understand Rachel
could of been named after a previous relative. But no one knows for sure. The Mays name is
familiar to me, only because | remember my Grandmother Lissie speaking about a relative
named Mays. My Aunt Roberta said when she was alive that she remembered stories about
Great Aunt Rachel using her hands and her herbal knowledge to help people. My father
remembers Grandmother talking about this too. He remembers stories that she was known for
healing burns. My Aunt Francis's son Daryl has done a more extensive search and supposedly
has more info. | am currently awaiting that info. Will forward that to you if and when | receive it.
Most of the information | have heard over the years has been in oral stories. If you have
anything to add to this info or would like copies of the few pages | have, just send me your
address and | will mail them on to you. But have patience with me, life is Hectic here. Your other
Colorado Cuz - Vickie

HotBot - Search smarter.
http://www.hotbot.com

These are relations of Rachel Lickliter:

1 NAME ELIAS ELBER /LICKLITER/
1SEXM

1 BIRT

2 DATE 14 JUN 1890

2 PLAC ARKANSAS

1 NAME JESSE LEVI /LICKLITER/
1SEXM

1 BIRT

2 DATE MAY 1892

2 PLAC ARKANSAS

1 NAME CHARLES /LICKLITER/
1SEXM

1 BIRT

2 DATE MAY 1895

2 PLAC ARKANSAS
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« 1 NAME MARY E //
e« 1SEXF
« 1BIRT
« 2 DATE 1884
2 PLAC ARKANSAS
1 NAME JAMES F /LICKLITER/
1SEXM
1 BIRT
2 DATE 1903
2 PLAC ARKANSAS
1 NAME ROY /LICKLITER/
1SEXM
1 BIRT
2 DATE 11 AUG 1904
2 PLAC ARKANSAS
1 DEAT
2 DATE 31 DEC 1993
2 PLAC HOBBS, LEA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO
1 NAME HENRY WLLIAM /LICKLITER/
1SEXM
1 BIRT
2 DATE 1907
2 PLAC ARKANSAS
1 NAME GEORGE J /LICKLITER/
1SEXM
1 BIRT
2 DATE 23 SEP 1909
2 PLAC ARKANSAS
1 DEAT
2 DATE DEC 1992
2 PLAC OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA
1 NAME LELA /LICKLITER/
1SEXF
1 BIRT
2 DATE 1913
2 PLAC ARKANSAS
1 NAME WILLIE /LICKLITER/
1SEXM
1 BIRT
2 DATE 5 MAY 1914
2 PLAC ARKANSAS
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1 DEAT

2 DATE MAY 1977

2 PLAC STOCKTON, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA
1 NAME CHARLES /LICKLITER/
1SEXM

1 BIRT

2 DATE 9 MAR 1917

2 PLAC ARKANSAS

1 DEAT

2 DATE 6 MAY 1991

1 NAME JESSE /LICKLITER/
1SEXM

1 BIRT

2 DATE 1919

2 PLAC OKLAHOMA

Children of William Bryant and Rachel Lickliter are:

i. Mary Alice Bryant.

ii. Marinda J. Bryant, born 1868 in Lynn Camp, Laurel County, Kentucky; married George Curtis
July 28, 1889 in Newton County, Arkansas.

iii. Martha A. Bryant, born December 1869 in Lynn Camp, Laurel County, Kentucky; married
Poni Patterson.

iv. James F. Bryant, born August 1874; married Addie Curtis.

7 v. Sarah Jane (Sallie) Bryant, born May 1875 in Laurel County, Kentucky; died December 25,
1951 in Madison Co., Arkansas *Buried Boxley, Newton County, Arkansas; married Cornelius
(Neil) Cranford December 20, 1893 in Madison County, Arkansas.

vi. Rebecca Bryant, born 1876; married Bill Long.

vii. William Bryant, born July 1877 in Kentucky; married Katherine Pruitt 1899 in Newton
County, Arkansas.

Notes for William Bryant:

1 NAME WILLIAM A /BRYANT/
1SEXM

1 BIRT

2 DATE NOV 1894
2 PLAC ARKANSAS
1 FAMC @F768@

1 CHAN

2 DATE 9 JAN 1997
O @11036@ INDI

1 NAME 7/

1SEXF

1 FAMC @F768@
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« 1 CHAN
« 2 DATE 9 JAN 1997
0 @I1037@ INDI
1 NAME NELLIE /BRYANT/
1SEXF
1 BIRT
2 DATE OCT 1899
2 PLAC ARKANSAS
1 FAMC @F768@
1 CHAN
2 DATE 9 JAN 1997
0 @I11038@ INDI
1 NAME 7/
1SEXM
1 FAMC @F768@
1 CHAN
2 DATE 9 JAN 1997
0 @I1039@ INDI
1 NAME DAVID /BRYANT/
1SEXM
1 BIRT
2 DATE 1903
2 PLAC ARKANSAS
1 FAMC @F768@
1 CHAN
2 DATE 9 JAN 1997
0 @11040@ INDI
1 NAME MINNIE /BRYANT/
1SEXF
1 BIRT
2 DATE 1906
2 PLAC ARKANSAS
1 FAMC @F768@
1 CHAN
2 DATE 9 JAN 1997
0 @11041@ INDI
1 NAME EDNA /BRYANT/
1SEXF
1 BIRT
2 DATE 1909
2 PLAC ARKANSAS
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« 1 FAMC @F768@

« 1 CHAN

« 2 DATE 9 JAN 1997
« 0@11042@ INDI

viii. Manerva M. Bryant, born February 19, 1880; died 1974; married James F. Cowan.

| Generation No. 5

16. Joseph "Solomon" Fowler, born May 09, 1806 in Alabama; died January 11, 1888 in
Chautauqua Springs, Kansas. He was the son of 32. Hiram Fowler and 33. Elizabeth. He married
17. Elizabeth R. Low(e)ry Bet. 1828 - 1829 in Bedford County (?), Tennessee.

17. Elizabeth R. Low(e)ry, born May 10, 1810 in Bedford County, Tennessee; died August 18, 1892
in Tryon, Lincoln County, OK *Buried in the City Cemetery. She was the daughter of 34. Capt. Adam
Lowry and 35. Elizabeth.

Notes for Joseph "Solomon" Fowler:

« Speculation: Solomon was named after his Uncle Joseph Fowler who lived in Hardeman County
near Bolivar and built a ferry on the river in the early 1820's. Hiram must have moved to
McNairy for some reason. (Possibly remarriage?) Solomon and Hiram are quite a bit older (in
their 20's) than Sevier (who was only 6 years old in 1830.

« Solomon Fowler and Elizabeth Lowery left Tennessee, went to Arkansas, moved to Texas, and
then to Kansas. According to information received in May 1973, a narrative history of the
Fowler's from Zora Gladys (Fowler) Schmahl of Oklahoma City, OK. Her father, Bennett Webster
Fowler, son of Solomon & Elizabeth, as told to her by her father in the summer of 1940 when he
was 90 years old.

« Gladys states that, "Grandfather (Hiram Fowler) was a blacksmith in Bolivar, Tennessee. The
family came from South Carolina to Mississippi, and to Tennessee. Solomon moved to Arkansas
about 1847 where Bennett Webster and John Madison Fowler were born.

« They were in Pope County, Arkansas 1850 census dated 10/21/1850, page 506 or 254, family
191.

« (The census states that Solomon was 44, Elizabeth was 40, Teresa L. was 15, Martha M. was
11, William C. was 9, Mary E. was 6, John M. was 3, Bennet W. was 3 and 1/2. It also says
that Solomon was from South Carolina and that Elizabeth was from Tennessee. No township
listed. On this same census Sevier C. Fowler is listed as being age 26, Catherine 19, John 2,
and Mary 2/12. Sevier is listed as being from Alabama and Catherine is listed as being from
Tennessee. They are in King's River Twp in Madison County. The other Fowler listed twice in
Pope County is James P. Fowler age 25 from SC. Listed once with wife, Emeline age 22 from
North Carolina, Second James P. is listed with Mary E. age 22 from North Carolina (no Twp
listed).

« The family then moved to Dallas County, Texas in 1852. At that time, Birdsville and Dallas were
fussing over which would be the county seat. Afterwards they moved to Tarrant County, about
20 miles NW of present day Ft. Worth. The family lived on the west fork of the Trinity River on
Walnut Creek. This land, 320 Acres, was taken away from them by the courts of Texas on the
grounds that it was an old Spanish claim. Bennett Webster believed that the court held against
them because his father, Solomon was a UNION sympathizer in the Civil War. She wrote that
from what her father told her, "The family lived in Texas until about 1865 and that they lived in
Missouri from about 1865 until 1870".

« Allred: " I have heard both my father and Aunt Jane talk about the war in Texas. They said that
they moved to Denison, Texas to Ft Smith, Arkansas and from there to McDonald County,
Missouri. They lived in Missouri from 1870 to 1873 and then went to Prairie City, in what was
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the Cherokee Nation. It was located 20 miles NW of Vinita, 15 miles SW of Seneca, Missouri, and
about 20 miles SE of Baxter Springs, Kansas. There Solomon farmed, blacksmithed, and raised
cattle. He leased lots of land from the Indians. His last move was to near Sedan, Kansas where
he died. Solomon willed the bulk of his estate (160 acres) to his son Marion Park Fowler".

Jim Allred did some more homework on why Solomon gave this land to Marion Park Fowler. "I
ran across a note that Solomon had land in Oklahoma that he had sold. It was customary under
the 1862 Homestead Act for the father to apply for land for dependent males. The Homestead
Act gives 160 acres of western land free to any US citizen. It could be quite possible that it was
Marion Park Fowler's land. He was only 6 years old when the Act passed. This may be why
John Madison and Bennett Webster had land in Oklahoma as well. John Madison was a
witness to the writing of Solomon's will."

The 1880 census of Chautauqua County, Bellville, Kansas (page 7, Ed66, Sup Dr#2-296, family
65-line 40) finds them living with daughter Miranda Jane Wood and her son Andrew S. Wood
age 12, Andrew's father born in Georgia). Solomon was 74 and Elizabeth was 69 then. Marion
Park Fowler, age 24, was living with them. Solomon indicates that he was born in South
Carolina and his father was born in North Carolina and his mother was born in Virginia.
Elizabeth Lowery Fowler indicates that she was born in Tennessee and that her father was
born in Tennessee and her mother was born in South Carolina. Andrew S. Wood said that he
was born in Georgia.

Some of the family have recently replaced Solomon's headstone and changed the year of the
date of his death. There is some investigation as to why this date was changed.

Notes for Elizabeth R. Low(e)ry:

1820 Bedford County Census:
0 Rebecca Fowler # 8: 2m(16-18), 2m(16-26), 1m(26-45) 1m(over 45), 2f(16-26).
o Samuel Fowler #17: 2m(under 10), 1m(26-45), 1f(under 10),1f(10-16, 1f(25-45).
o William Fowler #14: 3m(under 10), 2m(10-16),3m(16-26), 1m(over 45).
o Joseph Lowry #13: 2m(under 10), 1m(16-18), 1m)26-45), 2f(under 10), 1f(16-26).

Elizabeth's mother lived until she was 105 and her father was said to have been a Captain in
the War of 1812. Elizabeth was living with her son, John Madison Fowler, when she passed
away. She is not mentioned in her husband, Solomon's Last Will and Testament. All that he had
went to their youngest son, Park. The other's received one dollar each.

Elizabeth Lowery's sister, Matilda married Bennett Burleson of Denton, Texas. Bennett Webster
is named for him. She came from east Tennessee.

Elizabeth is buried on the old John Madison Fowler home place in Tyron, Oklahoma.

In 1835 Cherokee Census compiled by Homer A. Walker (Chicago Library), there were several
Lowery's listed. Solly and Arch are named in Hamilton County, Tennessee. In a book "Fowler's
Arithmetic - Tennessee Cousins" by Worth S. Ray, Genealogical Publishing Co. 1960 (found in
Pineville, MO Library - Ray County, Missouri settled by Cocke County - Tennessee families),
mentions that on February 27, 1819, the Hiwassee Purchase was signed by Cherokee
Chieftains, one of whom was George Lowery. It also mentions that from Monroe County Josiah
Fowler, brother of Abijah Fowler moved to Texas before the Civil War. Also in Hardeman County,
it mentions that during the 1820 Joseph Solomon Fowler built a cabin and ferry about 16 miles
south of where Bolivar was afterwards located. It was named "Lowery's Ferry". (It was changed
to Niles whenever the book was written in the 1800s in Monroe County, Tennessee.) It also
mentions that Abijah Fowler, son of Dr. Thorn Fowler "school teacher" married Elizabeth Curtian,
daughter of Richard Curtain and they lived in Cocke County (Older Son 1842 William).

One of the biggest frustrations is that many ancestors eventually dropped their first names and
went by their middle name...and every brother and sister named their children after their
brother's and sister's.

The "Fowler Arithmetic" also has a note from White County, Tennessee, that John Lowery would
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have been Govenor of Texas had he not been in poor health. Jim Lowry was a prominent
newspaper man in Texas. Both were son's of Alexander Lowery who laid out the town of Sparta
in western Tennessee. Also in Henry County, TN indicated that on Feb. 28, 1848, Arthur Lowery
married Nancy A. Coleman and on the same page 781, William J. Fowler married C.H. Duncan
on August 1, 1856. The first Govenor's of Tennessee was named John Sevier, who married a
full-blooded Cherokee Indian named Elizabeth Lowry. Gladys indicated that in "Anserchin
News", Vol. 1-9 marriage bonds on page 77 showed Shelby County, Tenn. Vol. 1 Isaac Lowery
to Susan W. Lowery Dec. 16, 1841. John R. Lowry, Sec., Vol. 2 to Mary Wilcox, Feb. 1, 1824.
Joseph Rhea, Sec. , A.B. Carr., J.P. Page 97, Bedford County, TN Tax List 1812 shows
Greenbury Lowry #43, Captain's Company - John Roberts.

» Gladys also found where an Elizabeth Lowry transferred or sold 70 acres of land to Thomas
Cummings in 1834 or 36. (This would have been about the time the Elizabeth was marrying
Solomon. She inherited this land from her father, David Lowry who made the Will in 1814.
James B. Lowry bought 126 acres in 1839 in the same area and a joining her land. The Lowry's
were storekeepers and lawyers in east Tennessee.

Children of Joseph Fowler and Elizabeth Low(e)ry are:

« i. Miranda Jane Fowler, born May 13, 1832 in McNairy County, Tennessee; died in Buried in
Tyron, Lincoln Co., OK; married Terrel Wood.

« ii. Treacy Lovina Fowler, born August 31, 1834 in McNairy County, Tennessee; died in Fallis, OK
Buried on the old home place in Tyron, OK; married William C. Dobbs December 13, 1868 in
McDonald County, Missouri.

Notes for Treacy Lovina Fowler:

« -Buried on the "old home place".

« iii. Martha M. Fowler, born 1839; died Abt. 1850.
Notes for Martha M. Fowler:

« Died young.

« 8 iv. William Calvin Fowler, born March 18, 1840 in McNairy County, Tennessee; died April 02,
1891 in Boxley, Newton County, Arkansas *Cave Mt. Cemetery; married Nancy Lucinda Field
November 15, 1866 in McDonald County, Missouri.

« V. Mary Elizabeth Fowler, born September 17, 1844 in McNairy County,Tennessee; died in
Dallas, Colorado where she lived.; married Hays.

« Vi. John Madison Fowler, born February 21, 1847 in Pope County, Arkansas; died October 13,
1924 in Tyron in Lincoln County, Oklahoma; married (1) Catherine Kinnamon June 11, 1865 in
Kansas ( Just before the Civil War broke out).; married (2) Effie Ellen Smith February 10, 1889 in
Chautauqua Springs, Kansas.

Notes for John Madison Fowler:

« In 1870 Census of Eureka, Greenwood, Kansas, page 2, line 16 dated July 15, 1870, shows
John M. Fowler as the 9th family listed. He was age 23 and Catherine was 21. Family #11 was
Joshua Kinnamon age 53 born in Virginia, and wife Susan A. age 53 born in Tennessee. Family
#12 was Byron Kinnamon, age 22, born in Illinois, wife Melissa, age 21, Ella, age 2, and James
1/2 both born in Kansas.

» John Madison Fowler served in the Kansas Volunteer Infantry. They were Baptists for a while
and then joined the Church of Christ; some member's of the family were member's of the
Disciples of Christ. After the war ended and after Catherine lost her health and died, John
married Miss Effie Ellen Smith. Effie was several years younger than John and they started a
second family.
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Notes for Catherine Kinnamon:
« 1880 census, Greenwood County, Eureka, Kansas, Vol. 7, ED 9, sheet 1, line 41.
Notes for Effie Ellen Smith:

« Effie Smith 's parents were killed by Indians and she was raised by a family named Allexon or
Ellison.

« Vii. Bennett Webster (Web) Fowler, born February 07, 1850 in Dover, Arkansas Pope County;
died April 15, 1942 in Arcadia, Oklahoma (100F Cemetery); married Missouri Ann Underwood
September 01, 1880 in Sedan, Kansas.

Notes for Bennett Webster (Web) Fowler:
« Web made the land run of 89 around Arcadia.

« Bennett (Web) Fowler taught school at the Fowler school in 1881 and he was clerk in 1884-
1886 - 1887. Ryker, AR He was named for Bennett Burleson, husband of Matilda Lowery
Burleson. Matilda was a sister to Elizabeth Lowery that married Joseph Solomon Fowler.

« Viii. Marion Park Fowler, born August 03, 1856 in Texas; married Harriett.
Notes for Marion Park Fowler:

« Park was the only child to receive any part of his father, Solomon's estate. The other's received
one dollar. Elizabeth went to live with Bennett and on occasion, her son John. Zora sent a copy
of a receipt where Park Fowler paid twenty dollars for one "set of labor slaves" for S. Fowler
from J. W. Pershall dated October 26, 1887. (Note: Not sure what this means? This was along
time after "slaves" were bought and sold. They could have been referred to that, but I figure they
were more like migrant workers.) Supposedly, when the family left Texas, Park first moved to
Kansas, Oklahoma where he stayed several years and ran a hotel.

18. Beeson Field, born 1805 in McMinn or Grainger County, Tennessee; died August 1873 in 1851
the were in McDonald County, Missouri. He was the son of 36. Joseph Field and 37. Leeta. He
married 19. Nancy Lankaster Abt. 1826 in Tennessee ?.

19. Nancy Lankaster, born 1807 in Kentucky; died January 15, 1872 in 1851 the were in McDonald
County, Missouri. She was the daughter of 39. Susannah Lankaster.

Notes for Beeson Field:
« Calvin Lankster Fields - Sheriff McDonald Co. MO 1873 - 1877
« John Vaughn Library NSU - Nancy Lucinda's Cherokee Roll number # 38335
« Joseph lived in Cattle Co., Texas in 1910.

« Nancy Lankster Fields was heir of Susannah Landcaster. Estate settlement, McMinn Co., TN -
1840

Notes for Nancy Lankaster:

« John Sevier, the first Govenor of Tennessee was Nancy Lancaster's Uncle. Could also be spelled
Lankster.

Children of Beeson Field and Nancy Lankaster are:
« i. Calvin Lankster Field, born October 26, 1827; died September 16, 1906 in Des Moines, lowa.

Notes for Calvin Lankster Field:
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o Sherriff - McDonald County, Missouri 1873 to 1877
« ii. Martha Field, born March 28, 1829; died August 1861 in McDonald County, Missouri.
« iii. John Newton Field, born August 18, 1831.

Notes for John Newton Field:

« Went to Indiana when he was just a boy
« Iv. Susanna Emma Field, born September 18, 1839; died 1894 in McDonald Co., MO.

« 9 v. Nancy Lucinda Field, born November 10, 1842 in McMinn County, Tennessee; died August
08, 1932 in Pawnee County, Oklahoma *Buried in the Maramec Cemetery.; married William
Calvin Fowler November 15, 1866 in McDonald County, Missouri.

» Vi. Joseph Field, born 1844; died in Cattle County, Texas; married Sarah.
Notes for Joseph Field:

» Joseph lived in Cattle County, Texas in 1910.

« Vii. Samantha Field, born 1854.

Notes for Samantha Field:
« John Vaughn Library NSU Tahlequah: Nancy Lucinda's Cherokee Roll # 38335
« Calvin Lankster Feilds- Sheriff McDonald Co., MO from 1-1 1873 - 1877
« John Newton went to Indiana when he was just a boy.
« Joseph lived in Cottle Co., Texas in 1910.
. CN:ancy Lankster (Landcaster) was an heir of Susannah Landcaster. Settlement 1840, McMinn
0., Tenn.

20. Marshall Wyatt, born 1826 in Whitley County, Kentucky; died Aft. 1910. He was the son of 40.
John Wyatt and 41. Mary Francis " Polly" Stewart. He married 21. Emity Mahan.

21. Emity Mahan, born 1826 in Whitley County, Kentucky; died Aft. 1900. She was the daughter of
42. James Mahan , Jr. and 43. Rebecca Trosper.

Child of Marshall Wyatt and Emity Mahan is:

« 10 i. William Stanton "Stant" Wyatt, born January 22, 1852 in Whitley County, Kentucky; died
January 16, 1923 in Newton County, Arkansas *Buried Cave MT Cemetery; married Sophina
Ward.

22. Nathan Ward , Jr, born 1804 in Grayson County, Virginia; died 1862 in Corbin, Whitley County,
Kentucky *Buried in the Ward/Jones Cemetery. He was the son of 44. Nathan Ward and 45.
Sarah/Sally. He married 23. Ellander Jones November 18, 1834 in Whitley County, Kentucky.

23. Ellander Jones, born February 13, 1814 in Virginia; died August 1902 in Newton County,
Arkansas *Buried at Cave Mountain Cemetery. She was the daughter of 46. Isaiah Jones and 47.
Ann.

Notes for Nathan Ward , Jr:

« Wells WARD b 1830 believed in Henrico Co VA was the patriarch of most of the WARDs of
Grayson Co VA.

« Nathan Ward. His will was written 14 Mar. 1803 Grayson Co., VA; wife's name was not
mentioned. Ch: 1. William - b. 1779 VA, d. 1863, m. 17 Sep. 1800 Grayson Co., VA, Elizabeth
Wilson; 2. Margaret - d. 31 Mar. 1840, m. 18 Aug. 1792 Grayson Co., VA, Morris Davis Sr.; 3.
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Wells; 4. Nathan - b. 1770-80, d. 20 Mar. 1835 Grayson Co., VA, m. Sarah; 5. Enoch - m. 14
Dec. 1825 Grayson Co., VA, Nancy Hash.

« Here's the basic info that is found in the printed references. It would take a check of the
microfilm of the actual pages to see the other data columns.

« Here's one reply that | received and also mention of an interest in JONES --

« From: Rootsone@aol.com

« Date: Wed, 8 Jan 1997 12:44:32 -0500 (EST)
o To: tcward@www.columbus-ks.com

« Subject: Re: Whitley Co KY--Nathan WARD

« 1850 Whitley County Census

« Nathan Ward age 39 born in Virginia---Wife Ellenor (Jones married11-19-1834 Whitley County)
age 37.

« Isom 15; David 13: Isaiah 11; Peter 8; Rachel 6; John 4; and James 2.
« In 1860 these people were family # 787

« There was an earlier Isaiah Jones who was a school teacher in Whitley County, age 63 in 1850
born in NC. On 1860 census he is # 789. | have parts of 1860 census. Will look to see if in my
files. | also have a Jones ancestor. Nancy Jones daughter of William Jones married Howell
Bryant in 1822 at Whitley County.

« Arville Oliver

« | sent a thank you and also mentioned the connection of Isaiah JONES to Ellender. Also
mentioned the John JONES in Rutherford Co Tn that was administrator of Dr. William WARDs
estate. Just thought I'd take a chance and see if either of these JONES families connected to
ones Arville is researching.

« Another Rooter sent the following --
« Hello Kansas from Mo.....
» 1850 Whitley Co.
« WARD, Nathan 39 Va. Farmer $400
« Ellenor (JONES, m. 18 Nov 1834 W) 37

o Isom 15

o David 13

o Isaiah 11

o Peter 8

o Rachel 6

o John 4

o James 2

0 1860 Whitley Co.

o WARD, Nathan 46 M Va F

o Eleander 40 F Va H

o Jackson 24 M Ky.

o Nelson23 M ™"
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o Mary 18 F"
o Silas20M ™
o Martin 18 M "
o Sampson 16 M "
o Wells14 M "
o Malinda 10 F"
o Sophy 04 F"
o Jones, Isaah 76 M Va
o Jones, Ann 68 F Va
« Here are some dates that a VA rooter sent me that might be of interest .
« They are also descendents of the Wells WARD group.
« children of Nathan Ward and Sarah:
« Nathan Ward (c1760 - c1833)
o 1- Stephen Ward (c1780 - ¢1847)
o 2- Nathan Ward (c1790 - ?)
o 3- Wells Ward (c1792 - ?)
o 4- Zachariah Ward (1793 - 1878)
o 5- Jeremiah Ward (c1794 - ?)
o 6- Benjamin Ward (c1796 - c1863)
o 7- Eleanor (Nellie) Ward (c1800 - 1870)
o 8- Lewis Tommy Ward (1802 - 1875)
o 9- Enoch Ward (1806 - 1895)
o 10- Landreth Ward (c1811 - ?)
o 11- Silas Ward (c1814 - ?)

« | think we have another Nathan running loose that is being confused with Nathan Jr. It could be
possible that a brother to Nathan Sr might have named a son Nathan that was born before
Nathan Jr and he might have been referred to as Nathan Jr to separate the two. The way this
family named children after another family member, this would be possible.

« Can you elaborate any more on your discovery of Sarah's Indian name. Have the rolls ever been
checked for her?

« | started looking at some census listings for IN. | noticed that there were some other WARDS in
Owen Co IN on the 1830 as well as some others that those with Grayson Co connections as well
as some of mine were.

« Owen Co IN 1830 -- No WARD in census.
« Owen Co IN 1840 -- Jacob, Noah, Wells, William
« Wayne Co IN 1830 --- Daniel, Daniel, Nathan, Robert, Thomas, Anthony, Enos,
o Obed
o Parke Co IN 1830 -- Elisha, Greenbury, James
o Parke Co IN 1840 -- Greenbury, James, Samuel, Thompson
o Fayette Co IN 1830 -- Joseph, Squire ( bro of my g g gf), David, James
o Fayette Co IN 1840 -- Artemus, Isaac, Jesse, Mary
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o Hancock Co IN 1840 -- Emanuel(believe also a bro, died 1840), Ephraim ( my
o g g gf), Squire ( bro of g g gf), and a Michal L.

o Morgan Co IN 1840 -- David, Enos, Thomas, William

Shelby Co IN 1840 -- Daniel, Rosana

o Vigo Co IN 1840 -- Avery (This is a granson of Benjamin WARD Sr. of Ashe Co
o NC), E.M., J. G., James, Michael, Robert

O

Tim Sparks Sat Nov 9 18:46:40 1996

SEXTON,HUDSON,WARD,JONES

Whitley Co. KY Looking for info on Mary Elizabeth Taylor b.4 Sept. 1793 and married to Enoch
Sexton in 1812 in Grayson Co. VA. They had a daughter, Obedience Mayer Sexton b. 29 Dec.
1833 in Whitley Co. She apparently never married but had 3 or 4 children. The father is said to
have been a Columbus

Hudson:

One of the children was Oma Snow Sexton b. 16 April 1854 and married Wells Ward in 1875 in
Whitley Co. Nathan Ward b. 1804 in VA and married to Ellender Jones 18 Nov.1834 in Whitley
Co. was Wells Wards' parents. Nathan Ward is buried at the Old Ward Cemetery near Corbin,
KY.

Thanks, Tim Sparks tims@harborside.com

Here's some info from the 1850 Owen Co IN Census that | thought you might
like to have --
The county coordinator for Owen Co INGenWeb was kind enough to look this up
for me.
There are two, both in Marion township.
Household 685 page 134

o Ezekiel Ward 27 M Farmer VA

o Cinthia 22 F VA

o Malinda 60 F VA

o WELLS 35 M VA

o Household 731 page 137

o WELLS Ward 45 M Farmer VA

o Patience 45 F VA

o David 21 M VA

o Patience Phipp 12 F IN

o Emily Phips 10 F IN

o She later added in another message --

---->A surprising household next door

o #731 Elizabeth A Ward 17 F IN
« Malinda 14 F IN
e Sarah 12 FIN
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o William 11 M IN
o Abigail 5 F IN
« Methursey A2 F IN
« and in a third msg --

« Sorry Tom - | forgot to include Jacob Ward, also in Marion, household 718, age 49,
from VA Nancy 41 VA,

« Calvin 20 VA, Solomon 18 VA, Stephen 16 IN, Patience 14 IN, Abigail 12, Mary 10
IN, Ealeanor 8 IN, Susannah 6 IN, Wm B 4 IN, Nancy J 2 IN.

« Also noted there was a John Ward that was very active 1830s and 1840s
« as Minister (MG)(John W Ward 41 OH lived in Jackson Tnsp).

« Here is some info from William WARD of Fairfax VA --

e (1) On page 319 of the book The 1870 Federal Census of Grayson County, Virginia by Jeffrey C.
Weaver, James J. Stamper, and The Grayson County Historical Society, the following is
exerpted: "Nathan Ward's heirs include:

« Jeremiah, Benjamin, Lewis, Enoch, Stephen, Sr., Landreth,
« Silas, John Cox & wife Nellie Ward Cox, and Wells of Owen Co., IN, Nathan
« Ward, Jr. of Whitley Co., KY and Zachariah."

e (2) A cousin of mine copied the name Lewis Tommy Ward out of the Bible of his
great-great-grandmother who was the granddaughter of Lewis Tommy Ward.

Here is the cemetery reference --

« Ward or Hulett or Summers Cemetery Located in Marion Twp, Sec 24, 1mile S and 1/4m. w of
the Pleasantview Baptist Church. It can only be reached by foot.

o WARD, Wells, s/ W & M, 9 July 1814 Mason County, VA-23 Feb 1883
o Patince, w/0 Wells, s. 4 Aug 1865 -aged 64y

o Ezekiel, 12 Dec 1822 -2 May 1913

o Cyntihia, w/0 E. 12 June 1823-23 Jan. 1913

o Malinda, w/o W d 26 Oct 1862-aged 78y 8m 3d

o Exekiel s/o N & W d 15 Sept 1844 -aged 2y 6m 3d

o Noah, consort of Mathursa, d 9 Oct 1826 -aged 36y 7m 7d

o Mathursa, consort of Noah, d 10 Sept 1850-aged 32y.

« Here are some Grayson County VA marriages--

0 6-3-1820 Benjamin Ward Jane Cox

o 2-12-1807 Charley Ward Anne South

o 9-17-1800 Elijah Ward Polly Colins

o 12-14-1825 Enoc Ward Nansey Hash

0 1-14-1836 Ezekeil Ward Phebe Screech
0 1-30-1848 John Ward Eveline Hash

o 4-3-1823 Lewis Ward Maryan Hash
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o 10-2-1836 Maroil Ward Jane Cox
o 10-12-1809 Nathan Ward Ann Williams
o -14-1832 Silas Ward Polly Edwards
0 4-26-1833 Stephen Ward Jane Hash
o 2-27-1835 William T. Ward Nancy Carrico
o 9-17-1800 William Ward Elizabeth Wilson
o 1-29-18187? Zach Ward Tabitha Hash
o 1-29-1818 Zachariah Ward Tabitha Hash
o 8-11-1828 John Warf Martha Harrell
0 GRAYSON CO VA BRIDES
o 10-27-1835 Jonathan Bottomlay Ann Ward
o 3-13-1818 Jeffry Clark Betsey Ward
o 8-13-1818 Jeffry Clark Betsey Ward
o 7-10-1825 Thomas Lawhern Mary Ward
o 8-10-1837 Hurschel Dun Nancy Ward
o 9-13-1821 John Cox Nelly Ward
o 3-29-1832 Martin Edwards Polly Ward
o 1-26-1826 John Landreth Rebekah Ward
o 12-29-1831 David Bedsaul Sally Ward
o 1-1-1827 Nathaniel Spirling Susannah Ward
o 5-30-1795 John Black Mathew Wardin
o 11-22-1837 John Stoots Catharine Warf

« Here is what Jeff had to say about the Grayson Co VA WARDSs ---

« | am a descendant of the Ward family of Grayson Co., VA, and the given names are similar . . . .
.My ever so great-grandmother was a lady named Abigail Ward Barton, B. 12/1/1759 in
Chesterfield Co. and Died 3/11/1859 in Grayson Co. (Grayson Co. death register). This register
states that she was the daughter of Wells Ward and Rebecca. It appears that Wells Ward was
from Henrico County, Va and was probably born ca. 1725-30. ........ Apparrently all of the
Grayson County Wards are descendants of Wells Ward, Sr., and there is quite a flock of them,
mostly living in the west-central portion of the county. | have quite a bit in tid-bits here and tads
there where they connect with other families closer to the top of my gene pool, but have never
done a comprehensive study of the clan.

« Nathan, Wells (probably Jr.), and James Ward were on the 1783 militia list for Capt. Enoch
Osborne's company. The 1815 Grayson Co. Tax list shows Nathan Ward living on Saddle Creek
with 236 acres, a house 24' x 18, valued at $350, Stephen Ward, living on Saddle Creek, with
50 acres, and having one "cabben", Thomas Ward (living in what is now Carroll Co. -- connection
unknown). and Wells Ward, (jr) on Saddle Creek, with 50 acres and "cabben" and inferior grist
mill, valued at $100.

« Nathan (B. ca. 1761-D. 1803+) was one of the sons of Wells Ward, Sr., His children were
named: Benjamin, Zachariah, Eleanor, Lewis, William, Enoch, Wells, and Nathan, Jr. Wells of
this group migrated to Indiana and Nathan, Jr. moved to TN in 1822..

« So you can see that Benjamin was a name used in this family, and they migrated to places you
are interested in.

«» Alice Cox Phillips of Poquoson, VA, did a bit of work on the Ward folks in 1988, but she stopped
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at Nathan, and does not state that his father was Wells Ward, although | am convinced of it. |
would reconstruct this family as follows, with the possibility of numerous errors.:

Wells Ward, Sr. (1730)

1. Abigail Ward (1759-1859) Md. Isaac Barton

2. Nathan Ward (1761-1803+) Md. Sarah (thought to be Cherokee)
3. Wells Ward, Jr.

4. James Ward

5. Stephen Ward

6. Daugher Ward Md. Nathan Blevins (TLW: Ron BLEVINS said this should be Elizabeth m
James BLEVINS Jr)

7. Benjamin Ward (who went to Watauga Co.)

Probably others.

| suppose if a fellow spent enough time in the Fincastle/Montgomery/Grayson
Records, one could come up with a pretty good reconstruction on this family.

Mary Ann SUTPHIN from VA sent me this--

According to "Carroll, The Settlements, 1765-1815, Nathan Ward in Montgomery County. A Wells
Ward and James Ward taxed in Botetourt Co Va 1771 and 1773 Nathan and Zachariah Ward
taxed. All were probably in Grayson/Carroll area. Nathan settled on Coal Creek, now preent
day Carroll Co., this from Fincastle records. Nathan died 1803. Grayson Co Will Book 1-25. left

life estate to wife, with it to pass at her death to sons nathan and enoch. His original tract willed

to sons William and Wells. Other records show her name was Sarah. Nathan Ward Jr married

Ann Williams, Grayson Co 1809. and moved to Hawkins Co TN. where he was living 1822 when
he sold his inheritance. Son Enoch moved to Rutherford Co NC, he sold out there in 1822. Sarah
was living with Enoch. Wells Ward sold out 1807 and seems to have moved away. William
Ward became one of the wealthiest men on the community.. A little more to the sketch, but this
is all the children records name. J P Alderman, the author thinks there were daughters.

These folks were quite close to Franklin Co VA where Daniel WARD was.

From: "Gary and Becky Earls" <beegee@atlcom.net>
To: <tcward@www.columbus-ks.com>

Subject: RE: Nathan Ward

Date: Sun, 22 Dec 1996 18:53:11 -0500

Tom,

| checked Stephen Broyles's book on Tax List Summary,1819-1850. A Nathan Ward is listed in
1836,1840,1845,and 1850. In 1845 he had two school age children and in 1850 he had four
school age children.

He lived in the Spruce Creek area, which is the same area as my fourth great grandfather,
John E. Ward.

Children of Nathan Ward and Ellander Jones are:

i. Jackson Ward, born March 29, 1834 in Whitley County, Kentucky; died January 01, 1925;
married (1) Nancy Radford; married (2) Julian (Juley) Ann Edwards June 16, 1868 in Whitley
County, Kentucky.

ii. Nelson Ward, born 1837 in Whitley County, Kentucky.
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iii. Silas Ward, born 1840 in Whitley County, Kentucky.
iv. Mary Ward, born 1842 in Whitley County, Kentucky.
v. Martin Ward, born 1844 in Whitley County, Kentucky; married Maranda.

vi. Simson Ward, born December 16, 1845 in Whitley County, Kentucky; died December 16,
1935 in Newton County, Arkansas *Buried at Cave MT. Cemetery.

vii. Wells Ward, born June 01, 1848 in Whitley County, Kentucky; died August 20, 1907 in
Newton County, Arkansas *Buried at Cave MT. Cemetery; married Omega (Oma) Snow Sexton
December 28, 1875.

viii. Belinda Ward, born May 1850 in Whitley County, Kentucky; died January 31, 1868 in
Oregon.

11 ix. Sophina Ward, born March 21, 1856 in Whitley County, Kentucky; died December 29,
1937 in Newton County, Arkansas *Buried Cave MT Cemetery; married William Stanton "Stant”
Wyatt.

24. Richard Cranford, born 1805 in Montgomery County, North Carolina; died 1862 in Montgomery
County, North Carolina. He was the son of 48. John (Jackie) Cranford and 49. Lydia. He married
25. Elizabeth " Betty " Abt. 1823 in Montgomery County, North Carolina.

25. Elizabeth " Betty ", born 1804; died in Montgomery County, North Carolina.

Notes for Richard Cranford:

According to Richard Cranford, researcher:

" Richard and Elizabeth Cranford settled along the waters of Barnes Creek near Ophir, in
Montgomery County (just at the Randolph County line).

Richard Cranford contracted Typhoid Fever that John Griffin brought home from the Civil War.
They both died as a result.

A John and Leonard Cranford appear on the Montgomery County, North Carolina Census in
1810. The Cranford's had a plantation there, and some of the family still live there. There is a
Cranford family cemetery near Troy. Lovejoy Cemetery?

Take a look at the estate record for Richard Cranford. One of the documents in the numerous
amount of them in the record is a petition to sell Real Estate dated April 1871 in Montgomery
County, NC.

Richard Cranford father of Ambrose died in 1862. The records | have from the estate record are
the ones that indicate heirs. Since all the sons but Joel Titus Cranford died in the war for
Southern Independence there is a long list of heirs that include grand children, some in other
states. One group of records are dated 1868 and the others 1871. Starting on the second page
of this petition where it begins with Harris Cranford, Eliza M. who intermarried with E. S.
Saunders and Nancy A. and Neil Cranford (the last three) heirs of Ambrose Cranford, Decd.
Lunda Cranford and Joel Cranford minor heirs of James M. Cranford decd.

The Joel Cranford brother of Lunda is not to be confused with Joel Cranford son of Richard who
was Joel Titus Cranford. Joel brother of Lunda has been indicated on some records as Joel
Cranford, Jr. and is a nephew of Joel Titus and son of James M. Cranford."”

Here is what is in the 1850 census for the household of Richard.

642 644

Richard Cranford, age 46 male, farmer, real estate val. 400, born NC, can't read or write, box is
checked for whether, deaf, and dumb, blind, insane, idiotic, pauper or convict.

Elizabeth, age 46 female, born in NC, can't read or write, box is checked as well like Richard's
for the whether, deaf, and dumb, blind, insane, idiotic, pauper or convict.
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« Larry A. (most likely Lawrence Ambrose, like you said) age 24 listed as female, born in NC.
« Laural. age 20 female, born NC, attended school within the year.

» Eliza age 16 female born NC, attended school in last year.

« James M. age 11 male, born NC, attended school in last year.

» Joel age 10 male, born NC, attended school in last year.

» John G. age 9 male, born NC attended school in last year.

« Martha E. age 6 female born NC.

» Elivra age 2 female, born NC.

« Cathy

Children of Richard Cranford and Elizabeth " are:

« i. Sarah Jane Cranford, born 1825; married Robert Beaman August 07, 1851 in Montgomery
County, North Carolina.

« ii. Angus Donahue Cranford, born 1826 in Montgomery County, North Carolina; died 1863 in a
New York Yankee Prison Camp.; married Linna Ann Hulin.

Notes for Angus Donahue Cranford:

« 4th Inf. Company F - North Carolina Confederate Army (A.D. Cranford) They went to Indiana
with Riley Cranford and his family.

« In discusion's with descendants of Angus Donahue Cranford a brother of Ambrose that died in a
New York Yankee Prison Camp. They indicated that descendants of Angus on part of the land
sales didn't receive anything as he had been given land before the war and this was deducted.
The widow and children of Angus left these parts and moved to Indiana after 1865 I've been
told. Though I'm not aquainted with the facts, | do recall that one other son of Richard rec'd land
prior to the war and his heirs didn't get anything from the sale of that land, but from sale of
other land. | have no details of this as this mostly related to me from verbal contacts. Donald P.
Cranford - genealogist and researcher.

Notes for Linna Ann Hulin:

« The 1860 Montgomery County, NC census shows 5 children. Linna Ann Hulin's family were
Quakers and may have been what got her into trouble with the Cranford succession (after
Angus D Cranford was killed in the Civil War) and this cost her the farm. Her mother in law
(Elizabeth) took all of their possessions. Linna's brother's wouldn't fight for the Confederacy and
hid out until two of them were hung. Linna Ann was dispossessed and gathered up her brood
and headed for Cumberland Gap and the ferry boat to Indiana. One account says, the Hulin
brothers who refused to fight in the War and were shot. The home guard did the deed and these
brothers are buried in Lovejoy in Montgomery County North Carolina.

« 12 iii. Ambrose Cranford, born April 18, 1827 in Troy, Montgomery County, North Carolina; died
May 1862 in Civil War- 34th Reg. (Private -Co. K Confederate Army) North Carolina Troops;
married (1) Caroline Hurley December 08, 1848 in Montgomery County, North Carolina; met (2)
Ann Abt. 1860.

« iv. Laura l. Cranford, born 1830; married Isaiah Ballard.

« V. James Madison Cranford, born 1839; died July 1862 in Randolph County, North Carolina;
married Laura Ann Williams November 19, 1859 in Montgomery County, North Carolina.

« Vi. Joel Titus Cranford, born August 20, 1840; died May 16, 1906 in Troy, Mongomery Co., North
Carolina *Buried at High Pines Randolph; married Ann Eliza ( Lewis) "Mandy" Hall.

Notes for Joel Titus Cranford:
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« Joel Ttius enlisted in the Confederate Army on September 9, 1861 the same day as his brother
Ambrose Cranford. Joel came back from the Civil War minus an arm and Ambrose didn't come
back at all. He served in the North Carolina K Co., 34th Inf. Reg. - Co. Reg. RC Confederate
Army.

« Vii. Eliza Ann Cranford, born 1841; died 1917; married Henry Clay (Sandy) Morgan.
Notes for Eliza Ann Cranford:
o One Eliza Cranford also married a James Hulin.

« Viii. John Griffin Cranford, born 1841; died 1863 in during Civil War- He brought Typhoid Fever
home with him. Age 19..

Notes for John Griffin Cranford:

« Served in the Civil War 44th Inf. Company F Confederate Army.
« ix. Martha E. Cranford, born 1844; died 1863.
« X. Elvira Cranford, born 1848; married Craven.
26. Cornelious Hurley, born 1796 in Montgomery County, North Carolina; died 1855. He was the

son of 52. Daniel Hurley and 53. Mary Worrell. He married 27. Elizabeth "Betsy" Beane June 25,
1818 in Rowan County, North Carolina.

27. Elizabeth "Betsy" Beane.

Notes for Cornelious Hurley:

« Cornelious (Neil) Hurley lived in the upper northwest section of the county, was not a robust
man, and died of what was then called consumption. He appears as head of household in the
census records of 1830,1840, and 1850 for Montgomery County, with various members of his
family. The 1850 census, the first to do so, gives the names and attained ages of Cornelius, his
wife Elizabeth, and eight of their children.

« Three of the children were not living at home during the taking of the 1850 census, but are
known to us, and will be reported further.

« The family of Cornelius is perhaps more accurately documented from recent knowledge. He was
the father of as many as thirteen children, all of them born in Montgomery , N. C., based on
census and other information:

o 1. William Beane Hurley, born ¢ 1821.
o 2. Davison Hurley, born c. 1823 in Martin County, N.C.

o 3. Celia Hurley, born between 1820 and 1825, and married May 8, 1848 to Joseph
Spencer Moore.

o 4. Armistead Hurley, born ¢ 1826 and died ¢.1879. Married April 20, 1850 to Mary Ann
Beaman.

o 5. Catherine Hurley, born c. 1827 in Martin County, N. C. (could this is your Caroline)??
o 6. Cornelius Hurley, I, born 1830

o 7. Mary Hurley, born c. 1830, and married a German named Wilhilm Rommell, known in
the family as "Uncle John Brown"

O

8. Polly A. Hurley, born c. 1830 according to Census records.
9. Beya Hurley, born c. 1832
o 10 Amanda Hurley, born ¢ 1835/40; married Ralph Mason

O
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o 11.Daniel W. Hurley I, born c. 1836; married November
o 26, 1859 to Elizabeth P. Coggins.

o 12.Nathan Hurley, born c. 1838 and killed at the battle of Cold Harbor on June 30, 1862.

o 13.Barbara Elizabeth Hurley, born c. 1842 Taken from "Huley Families in America by
William Neal Hurley.

« "The Alabama families state that their Daniel was called "Shad". Strangely enough, our records
indicate that one of "our" Daniel's sons, Joshua, was nicknamed "Shad"! They list one of his
sons as being Freeman Hurley, who moved to Alabama. One of our Daniel's sons, Daniel Wade
(1810), WHO could have been one of the brothers of Freeman, named one of his own sons West
Freeman Hurley (1842); FOR HIS BROTHER, perhaps?

« There is a problem, though, with the rest of the information received from Alabama, relative to
the reported children of Cornelius Hurley and Daniel Hurley. They report a son Tom born to
Daniel Wade,

- and we are not aware of one by that name. As to Cornelius, they report sons Elias, William,
Green and Winchop. Our Cornelius had no such sons that we know of.

« However, in the records of Chatham County, N. C. we have found the family of Accy Hurley,
born 1794 to 1802, about the same time frame as Cornelius (1796), son of Daniel (1771). Accy
Hurley was a son of Amos Hurley (1755) and had four sons: Elias Wesley, Greene, and
Winship. It appears probable that a mistake has been made by our Alabama cousins in
assigning the sons of Accy Hurley to Cornelius. We believe then, that Daniel and his wife Mary

Worrell were parents of the following children:

« 1. William H. Hurley, know as "cripple Billy" born 1794-1800. He married Mary , May 16, 1815.
e 2. Cornelius Hurley, born c. 1796

« 3. Mary Hurley, or Polly born c. 1799, and married to John Cranford. They had at least one son
and a daughter:

« a. Joshua Cranford, born Aug. 21, 1834 in Montgomery County, N. C. and died July 4, 1897
near Troy. He was married July 8, 1865 to Mary Elizabeth Davis, who was born Sept. 22, 1836

and died July 3, 1915. They had four children:

1) An unknown daughter

2) William Ivey Cranford

3) Wade Cranford, married Vernia Zachary. Two sons:

a) Daniel W. Cranford

b) Robert Cranford

4) Civilla Christian Cranford, born Dec. 24, 1872 in Montgomery County, N. C. and died Aug. 9,
1923 in Ridgeway, S. C. Married Oct. 16, 1895 to John William Hoyle, who was born June 21,

1868 in Cleveland County, N. C., and died June 21, 1962 in Durham, N. C. At least one
daughter

e (a Elizabeth Self Hoyle, born Aug. 7, 1901 in Montgomery County, N. C. and died March 19,
1972 at Durham. Married May 23, 1930 to Willis Brodie Jeffreys, son of Brodie E. Jeffreys
(1855-1929) and Lucy Frances Jones Jeffreys.

« b. Margaret Cranford, reported to me by Jeanne Laurel Suggs Gildes (1951) of Waukegan,
Illinoise. Margaret married Jacob Reynolds and had at least one daughter:

o (1) Annette J. Reynolds, born April 20, 1859. She was married on Feb. 24, 1876 to Jesse Suggs,
son of Isaac and Jane Suggs.

« No children.

~ o~ o~ o~ o~ o~
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4. Nancy Hurley, born Aug. 29, 1800
5. Freeman Hurley, born c. 1804

6. Noah Hurley, born c. 1808

7. Daniel Wade Hurley, born c. 1810

8. Joshua Hurley, born April 11, 1812 and died June 14, 1896. Buried at Sharon Cemetery, Mt.
Gilead in Montgomery County, N. C. He was nicknamed "Shad" and was married first to Lydia,
born 1820, who appears with him in thre 1850 Census, with two of his children. Married second
Nov. 28,1875 to Margaret A. Strider, born c. 1834. Only four of his children are know:

a. Disa Hurley, born c. 1845. Married April 27, 1871 John C.Yarbrough, son of John and
Temperance Yarbrough

b. Noah R. Hurley, born June, 1849. His wife Elizabeth Jane. Married 1866. There were twelve
or thirteen children. We now can identify only four of the children:

(1) Frances Hurley, born c. 1874

(2) Mary F. Hurley, born ¢ 1879

(3) Ervin B. Hurley, born Jan. 1883. Married to Analiza McCallum, her second marriage

(4) Susan R. Hurley, born March, 1890

c. Sarah E. Hurley, born c. 1859 and married Nov. 1, 1879 to Levi W. Hamilton

d. Mary Hurley, born c. 1862

The only mention of Ambrose Cranford: In the Archives at Raleigh, there is a bond of George
Coggins, administrator, dated July 5, 1863,with reference made to the dower rights of Prudence
E. Hurley, the widow, and two minor children. The real estate is there described as150 acres of
land adjoining lands of Joshua Hurley, Ambrose Cranford, George Luther and William Burney.
This folder file contains papers also as to the estate of a second Daniel Hurley, which should not
be confused with this subject. That Daniel, born c. 1810/17, was a son of Stephen Hurley
(1782). The files have been combined for no apparent reason, except the common name. From

the records, it appears that the wife of our subject was Elizabeth Prudence Coggins, and that
they had at least two children:

o a. George L. Hurley, born 1861 to 1863

o b. Mary Daniel Hurley, born May 12, 1863, died May 2, 1944 and married Dec. 16, 1883
to Robert Seth Zachary, born March 31, 1858, died Dec. 17, 1936. Both are buried at
Wadeville Baptist Church. At the time, he was reported as being 25 years of age and she

was 21.
Children:
= (1) Robert Zachary
= (2) Inez Zachary
= (3) Ora Zachary
(4) Vernia Zachary, married to Wade Cranford, a distant cousin, and had children:

(a) Daniel W. Cranford
(b) Robert Cranford

Children of Cornelious Hurley and Elizabeth Beane are:

i. Celia Hurley, born Bet. 1820 - 1825; married Joseph Spencer Moore May 08, 1848.
ii. William Beane Hurley, born 1821.
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« iii. Davidson Hurley, born 1823 in Martin County, North Carolina.
Notes for Davidson Hurley:

o On April 16, 1879 David Hurley married Ellen Halls, daughter of D.C. Halls, Esq. They were
married by William McAllister, Esq. at the home of L.D. and Elizabeth Cranford in Milledgeville
(Tuckertown), North Carolina.

« Iv. Armistead Hurley, born 1826; died 1879; married Mary Ann Beaman.

o 13 v. Caroline Hurley, born 1827 in Martin County, North Carolina; died Abt. 1860 in Troy,
Montgomery County, North Carolina; married Ambrose Cranford December 08, 1848 in
Montgomery County, North Carolina.

« Vi. Polly A. Hurley, born 1830.

« Vii. Cornelious Hurley Il, born 1831.

« Viii. Beya Hurley, born 1832.

« iXx. Mary Hurley, born 1833; married Wilhilm Rommell.

Notes for Wilhilm Rommell:

« a German named Wilhilm Rommell, known in the family as "Uncle John Brown".
« X. Amanda Hurley, born Bet. 1835 - 1840; married Ralph Mason.
« Xi. Daniel W. Hurley II, born 1836; married Elizabeth Prudence Coggin November 26, 1859.
« Xii. Nathan Hurley, born 1838; died June 30, 1862 in the battle of Cold Harbor.
« Xiii. Barbara Elizabeth Hurley, born 1842.
28. Elias Bryant, born 1821 in Whitley County, Kentucky; died 1926 in Capark, Madison County,

Arkansas. He was the son of 56. Absolom Bryant and 57. Agnes "Aggie" Johnson. He married 29.
Minerva Mary Ann Richmond 1843 in Laurel County, Kentucky.

29. Minerva Mary Ann Richmond, born 1829 in Whitley County, Kentucky. She was the daughter of
58. James Richmond , Sr. and 59. Sarah Sego.

Notes for Elias Bryant:
o This Information was sent from:
» Dorthy Machado
« 1264 Little Oaks Lane
« Alpine Calif 91901

Children of Elias Bryant and Minerva Richmond are:

« i. Absolom Solomon Bryant, born June 08, 1844 in Laurel or Whitley County, Kentucky; died in
Capark, Madison County, Arkansas *lived in Boston Township; married Lucy Mahala Ann
Sutherland February 01, 1866 in Kentucky.

« 14 ii. William M. Bryant, born 1846 in London or Corbin, Laurel County, Kentucky; died Abt.
1915 in Newton County, Arkansas; married Rachel Florence Lickliter May 24, 1867 in Laurel
County, Kentucky.

« iii. James Bryant, born December 31, 1848 in Whitely County, Kentucky; died February 22,
1908 in Ryker, Newton County, Arkansas; married Delilah Jones September 05, 1861.

« iv. Aggie Bryant, born June 05, 1851 in Lynn Camp, Laurel County, Kentucky; died August 22,
1928 in Clarksville, Johnson County, Arkansas *Buried at Cassville, AR; married James
Mathew Sutherland August 28, 1870.

« V. Sarah Bryant, born April 27, 1853 in Laurel County, Kentucky; died August 24, 1903;
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married George Franklin Lickliter February 05, 1874 in London, Laurel County, Kentucky.

Notes for Sarah Bryant:

Then information | have is from a list my Aunt Francis compiled and of copies from a old family
Bible. The family record list says that George Franklin Lickliter was born 6-28-1854. George
married Sarah Feb 5 1874. Sarah (Bryant) was born April 27, 1853. Sarah died Aug 24, 1903.
She had 8 children. Her 4th child was Rachel Louisa, born May 17, 1885. | understand Rachel
could of been named after a previous relative. But no one knows for sure. The Mays name is
familiar to me, only because | remember my Grandmother Lissie speaking about a relative
named Mays. My Aunt Roberta said when she was alive that she remembered stories about
Great Aunt Rachel using her hands and her herbal knowledge to help people. My father
remembers Grandmother talking about this too. He remembers stories that she was known for
healing burns. My Aunt Francis's son Daryl has done a more extensive search and supposedly
has more info. | am currently awaiting that info. Will forward that to you if and when I receive it.
Most of the information | have heard over the years has been in oral stories. If you have
anything to add to this info or would like copies of the few pages | have, just send me your
address and I will mail them on to you. But have patience with me, life is Hectic here. Your other
Colorado Cuz - Vickie

HotBot - Search smarter.
http://www.hotbot.com

vi. Sarah "Sally" Bryant, born May 28, 1853 in Lynn Camp, Laurel County, Kentucky; died Bef.
1958; married J.D. O'Daniel August 18, 1879 in Newton County, Arkansas.

vii. Elizabeth Bryant, born Abt. 1857 in Lynn Camp, Laurel County, Kentucky; married Joshua
Hodges June 04, 1874 in London, Laurel County, Kentucky.

viii. Gemima Bryant, born April 08, 1858 in Lynn Camp, Laurel County, Kentucky; died May 17,
1938 in Pond Creek, Oklahoma; married Stephen Hodges.

iX. Elias Bryant , Jr., born Abt. 1862 in Lynn Camp, Laurel County, Kentucky; married Mary M.
Robinson September 13, 1882 in Laurel County, Kentucky.

X. Jessie Bryant, born Abt. 1864 in Lynn Camp, Laurel County, Kentucky; married Sarah
O'Bryant Abt. 1881.

xi. Olivia Bryant, born Abt. 1867 in Lynn Camp, Laurel County, Kentucky; married J.T. Parker
October 06, 1881 in Newton County, Arkansas.

xii. Levi Bryant, born January 26, 1870 in Kentucky; died March 19, 1891 in Newton County,
Arkansas.

xiii. Rachel Bryant, born Abt. 1872 in Lynn Camp, Laurel County, Kentucky; married John W.
Guthrie June 15, 1886 in Laurel County, Kentucky.

30. William Lickliter, born 1811 in Grainger, Claiborn County, Tennessee. He was the son of 60.
Johan Peter Lickliter (Leichliter) and 61. Magdalena. He married 31. Rebecca Mays.

31. Rebecca Mays, born 1812 in Grainger, Claiborn County, Tennessee.

Notes for Rebecca Mays:

Children of William Lickliter and Rebecca Mays are:

i. Eleanor Lickliter, born 1834 in Grainger, Claiborn County Tennessee.

ii. Hannah Marinda Lickliter, born 1836 in Grainger, Claiborn County Tennessee; died 1898 in
Millersburg, Mercer County, lllinois.

iii. Martha Jane Lickliter, born 1839 in Grainger, Claiborn County Tennessee.
iv. Christopher C. Lickliter, born November 1841 in Laurel County, Kentucky.
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« V. Nancy M. Lickliter, born 1843 in Laurel County, Kentucky.
« Vi. Henry O. Lickliter, born October 02, 1845 in Laurel County, Kentucky.

« 15 vii. Rachel Florence Lickliter, born July 25, 1848 in Laurel County, Kentucky; died May 30,
1939 in Newton County, Arkansas; married William M. Bryant May 24, 1867 in Laurel County,
Kentucky.

« Viii. Louisa Anna Lickliter, born April 1850 in Laurel County, Kentucky; died in Benton Harbor,
Berrien County, Michigan.

« ix. William Lickliter, born January 03, 1853 in Laurel County, Kentucky; died November 20,
1856 in Laurel County, Kentucky.

« X. George Franklin Lickliter, born June 28, 1854 in Laurel County, Kentucky; married Sarah
Bryant February 05, 1874 in London, Laurel County, Kentucky.

Notes for Sarah Bryant:

« Then information | have is from a list my Aunt Francis compiled and of copies from a old family
Bible. The family record list says that George Franklin Lickliter was born 6-28-1854. George
married Sarah Feb 5 1874. Sarah (Bryant) was born April 27, 1853. Sarah died Aug 24, 1903.
She had 8 children. Her 4th child was Rachel Louisa, born May 17, 1885. | understand Rachel
could of been named after a previous relative. But no one knows for sure. The Mays name is
familiar to me, only because | remember my Grandmother Lissie speaking about a relative
named Mays. My Aunt Roberta said when she was alive that she remembered stories about
Great Aunt Rachel using her hands and her herbal knowledge to help people. My father
remembers Grandmother talking about this too. He remembers stories that she was known for
healing burns. My Aunt Francis's son Daryl has done a more extensive search and supposedly
has more info. | am currently awaiting that info. Will forward that to you if and when I receive it.
Most of the information | have heard over the years has been in oral stories. If you have
anything to add to this info or would like copies of the few pages | have, just send me your
address and | will mail them on to you. But have patience with me, life is Hectic here. Your other
Colorado Cuz - Vickie

+« HotBot - Search smarter.
o http://www.hotbot.com

| Generation No. 6

32. Hiram Fowler, born Abt. 1780 in North Carolina; died in Boliver, Tennessee. He married 33.
Elizabeth Bef. 1804.

33. Elizabeth.

Notes for Hiram Fowler:

« Hiram Fowler was a blacksmith in Bolivar, Hardeman County, Tennessee. Hiram W. Fowler b.
North Carolina in the 1860 census in Hickman County, TN. Dicy was listed with M.W. Fowler
age 60 in 1850 census in Henderson County, TN and in the 1860 census age 70 Henderson
County, TN pg. 75, 462, 489.

« McNairy county, TN 1830 Federal Census surname index
« Fowler Obadiah 140

« Fowler Solomon 123

e Lowry Adam 148

e Lowry John T. 149

o Lowry Robert 145

o Lowry Robert B. 145
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Other notes:

« Microfilm M-12, Genealogical Society of Utah, a general index to a census of pensions for the
Revolutionary War or Military Services, 6th census 1840, Salt Lake City, 1949

« Fowler and Regiment: A. 32; Abiatha, 32; Anna, 58; David 23#, Frances, 53, George, 100#.
James, 12, John, 149#, 164#; Joseph, 51, Kensin, 134; Mary, 89, Mathew, 12#, Rebecca, 54,
Robert, 42#, Samuel, #143.

« William C. Fowler, Co C, 15th Kansas Calvary: John Fowler, Co E, 16th Kansas Calvary; John
D. Fowler, Co 7th, Kansas Calvary; John S. Fowler, Co. E, 5th Kansas Calvary.

Children of Hiram Fowler and Elizabeth are:
« i. Nancy Fowler, born 1804.

e 16 ii. Joseph "Solomon" Fowler, born May 09, 1806 in Alabama; died January 11, 1888 in
Chautauqua Springs, Kansas; married Elizabeth R. Low(e)ry Bet. 1828 - 1829 in Bedford
County (?), Tennessee.

« iii. Hiram Fowler , Jr., born Abt. 1808 in South Carolina.
« iv. B.M. Fowler, born Abt. 1810 in Tennessee.
« V. Lemuel Fowler, born 1813.

Children of Hiram Fowler and Nancy Hendrix are:
o i. Miles Fowler, born 1820.
o ii. Marion Fowler, born Abt. 1822 in Tennessee.

« iii. Sevier Clark Fowler, born March 10, 1824 in Tennessee; died 1880 in Madison County,
Arkansas *Buried Dotson Cemetery; married Annie Catherine Inman 1847 in Tennessee.

Notes for Sevier Clark Fowler:

« We believe that Sevier Fowler, was a brother to Solomon. The two became estranged over the
Civil War and Solomon never heard from him again. Sevier Fowler went to Madison County,
Arkansas where he raised a very large family. Certainly, there were other Fowler family
member's in the surrounding counties in Arkansas. Many of William Calvin's family were in
Newton County, Arkansas. Joseph Solomon Fowler was all over the map. Because of their age
difference Sevier and Solomon may have had different mothers. ??? The online family tree
maker shows that Sevier's father was Hiram. Oral history tells us that Solomon's father was
Hiram Fowler from Bolivar, Tennessee.

e pg 279 census Madison County, Arkansas 1850.
« iv. Gertrude Fowler, born Abt. 1828.

34. Capt. Adam Lowry, born in Tennessee. He was the son of 68. Adams Lowry. He married 35.
Elizabeth.

35. Elizabeth, born in South Carolina.

Notes for Capt. Adam Lowry:

« Captain in the War of 1812. Lowry households, McNairy County, Tennessee, one Adams Lowry
with 98 acres and the other was John D. Lowry with 25 acres, both in the 9th District, Range 3,
and Section 6. Sixty years later, this land became part of Chester County.

« An inquiry | made for McNairy County regarding Occupant/Revolutionary War Land Grants
came up with two Lowery/Lowry names there:

« Adams Lowry 98 acres in 9th district 3rd range and 6th section John D. Lowry 25 acres in 9th
district range 3 and section 6.
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When | asked where the 9th district was, | was told that it was all of McNairy County. When |
asked where the 3rd range and 6th section was, | was told that it might be part of Chester
County now. In 1882 Chester County was formed out of Henderson, McNairy, Hardeman
Counties.

During the 1830, "Lowry's" listed were Robert (age 20-25), Robert B.(age 60-70), and Adam
(40-50). Based on the children and ages listed with each, | have concluded that Adam Lowry is
the most likely father of my line. Males: 2 (up to 5); 2 (10-15); 1 (40-50); Females: 1 (5 to 10); 1
(10 tol5); 1 (15 to 20)[most likely Matilda]; 1 (30 to 40). Since this is a recent conclusion, | have
yet to verify this.

Jim Allred's Research - cowboy2@inreach.com
After running across information last night, 1830 Census of McNairy County, TN

ftp://ftp.rootsweb.com/pub/usgenweb/tn/mcnairy/census/1830/pg00117.txt McNairy
county, TN 1830 Federal Census and then plugging the Lowery names, Amelia, into the LDS
search site, and one of the links led me to who | believe to(see RobertBerryLowery.txt attached)
be an uncle of my Elizabeth Lowery. A researcher of the Robert Berry "Lowrie" line is: Lucy
Lowrie <lowrie@glade.net>

Why do | think this to be an uncle and not a father? Although this Robert Berry Lowery in
McNairy indicates an Elizabeth "Lowrie" b. 1809 (we have ours born 1810), verbal history
indicates the brothers and sisters do not match exactly. The brothers & sisters for the Elizabeth
in the attached text file: Nancy, Robert G., Samuel, George Rockford, Alexander Hays, John
Berry, and Alfred Patrick. Verbal history indicates that my Elizabeth's brothers and sister were:
Carroll, Green (or Greenberry),John, Mark, and Matilda. Also, verbal history indicated that
Elizabeth's mother lived to be 100 years old and her father was a captain in the War of 1812.
(no names for father or mother).

Elizabeth and Joseph "Solomon Fowler", my gggrandfather, married about 1828/1829. They are
listed in the 1830 McNairy Census with a daughter "up to 5". Matilda Lowery married Bennett
Musgrove Burleson (son of Moses Burleson)about 1831. Their first (1832) and second son
(1836)was born in McNairy before they moved to Franklin County/Marion County Alabama prior
to 1838. They remained in Alabama until about 1851 when they moved to Denton,TX where
Matilda died in 15 February 1856 in Sanger, Denton County, TX, probably during childbirth.
Buried in Duck Creek Cemetery west of Sanger. Rex McLarin, rexmclrn@door.net posted Bennett
& Matilda's family on the Internet [http://www.myged.com/db/page/mclaurin/07325] but the
link is no longer active. There is another link:

http://www.members.home.net/ajboyd/buDesc12.htm#163 but there appears to be a lot of
errors on names and dates as well as to whom Bennett married first and then second.

Elizabeth and Solomon FOWLER moved from TN to Pope County Ark (1847 until 1851) and then
to Tarrant County TX (1852-1865), to McDonald County, MO (1865-1870) to Prairie City,
Cherokee Nation (OK)1870 to Chautauqua Springs, KS around mid 1870s. Elizabeth died in

Tryon, Lincoln County, OK in 1892.

An inquiry | made for McNairy County regarding Occupant/Revolutionary War Land Grants
came up with two Lowery/Lowry names there:

o Adams Lowry 98 acres in 9th district 3rd range and 6th section John D. Lowry 25 acres
in 9th district range 3 and section 6. When | asked where the 9th district was, | was told
that it was all of McNairy County. When | asked where the 3rd range and 6th section
was, | was told that it might be part of Chester County now. In 1882 Chester County was
formed out of Henderson, McNairy, Hardeman Counties.

During the 1830, "Lowry's" listed were Robert (age 20-25), Robert B.(age 60-70), and Adam
(40-50). Based on the children and ages listed with each, | have concluded that Adam Lowry is
the most likely father of my line. Males: 2 (up to 5); 2 (10-15); 1 (40-50); Females: 1 (5 to 10); 1
(10 to 15); 1 (15 to 20)[most likely Matilda]; 1 (30 to 40). Since this is a recent conclusion, | have
yet to verify this.
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| would appreciate any help/leads you may have. Thanks.

Jim Allred

Children of Capt. Lowry and Elizabeth are:

i. Carrol Lowry.
Ii. Greenberry "Greene" Lowry.
iii. John Lowry.
iv. Mark Lowry.

17 v. Elizabeth R. Low(e)ry, born May 10, 1810 in Bedford County, Tennessee; died August 18,
1892 in Tryon, Lincoln County, OK *Buried in the City Cemetery; married Joseph "Solomon"
Fowler Bet. 1828 - 1829 in Bedford County (?), Tennessee.

vi. Matilda Lowry, born February 1813 in Tennessee; died February 15, 1856 in Sanger, Denton
County, Texas *Buried Duck Creek Cemetery; married Bennett Muskgrove Burleson Abt. 1831 in
McNairy County, Tennessee.

Notes for Matilda Lowry:

Matilda Lowery married Bennett Musgrove Burleson (son of Moses Burleson)about 1831. Their
first (1832) and second son (1836)was born in McNairy before they moved to Franklin
County/Marion County Alabama prior to 1838. They remained in Alabama until about 1851
when they moved to Denton,TX where Matilda died in 15 February 1856 in Sanger, Denton
County, TX, probably during childbirth. Buried in Duck Creek Cemetery west of Sanger. Rex
McLarin, rexmclrn@door.net posted Bennett & Matilda's family on the Internet.

Notes for Bennett Muskgrove Burleson:

He may be a cousin to Joseph Solomon Fowler.

36. Joseph Field, born Abt. 1775 in Georgia; died Bef. December 04, 1834 in McMinn County,
Tennessee. He married 37. Leeta.

37. Leeta, born Abt. 1777 in Georgia.

Notes for Joseph Field:

Joseph Field's Will in the file: dated January 15, 1833 McMinn County, Tennessee Will Book "B"
pgs 118-1109.

Children of Joseph Field and Leeta are:

i. Jediah Field.
ii. Robert Field, born Abt. 1795 in pd taxes in Granger Co. TN 1821.

Notes for Robert Field:

Grainger County, TN Wills Nov 1833 - May 1852

FIELDS, Robert, deceased. Wife Abigail FIELD; all my Black people to be set free, namely
JOSEPH, CRISA, LEWIS, PATTY,PHILLIP, LEA, JANE, GREEN, PATTON, JOHN & PRYOR; $100
to promote the Gospel; wife Abigail FIELD & William SHARP, Executors. Signed Robert FIELD, 9
Nov 1841. Witnesses: 5 Dec 1841 Moses BROCK, Clabourn JOHNSON. Recorded 11 May 1842,
E. TATE. Clerk.

iii. Joseph Field, born Abt. 1796.

iv. Joel Field, born Abt. 1798 in Pd Taxes in Granger County, TN 1821; married Pheba Hill
December 23, 1817.
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« V. Thomas Field, born Abt. 1799.
« Vi. John Field, born 1800.

« 18 vii. Beeson Field, born 1805 in McMinn or Grainger County, Tennessee; died August 1873 in

1851 the were in McDonald County, Missouri; married Nancy Lankaster Abt. 1826 in Tennessee
?.

« Viii. Josiah Field, born Abt. 1808.
« iX. Lucinda Field, born 1812 in Tennessee; married Parris Lodwick Dobbs October 11, 1846 in
McMinn, Tennessee.
Notes for Lucinda Field:

« Nancy Lucinda Field's Aunt.
« X. Souehama Field, born Abt. 1815; married Bradley.

39. Susannah Lankaster, born in Georgia; died 1840 in McMinn Co., TN.
Child of Susannah Lankaster is:

« 19i. Nancy Lankaster, born 1807 in Kentucky; died January 15, 1872 in 1851 the were in
McDonald County, Missouri; married Beeson Field Abt. 1826 in Tennessee ?.

40. John Wyatt. He was the son of 80. Samuel Wyatt and 81. Rebecca Bennett. He married 41.
Mary Francis " Polly" Stewart February 03, 1810 in Knox, Kentucky.

41. Mary Francis " Polly" Stewart. She was the daughter of 82. Alexander Stewart and 83. Mary
Anderson.
Children of John Wyatt and Mary Stewart are:

« 20 i. Marshall Wyatt, born 1826 in Whitley County, Kentucky; died Aft. 1910; married (1) Emity
Mahan; married (2) Margaret Haley; married (3) Roxy Mitchell.

« ii. Isaac Wyatt.

« iii. James Wyatt.

« iv. Daniel Wyatt.

« V. Stewart Wyatt.

« Vi. Anderson Wyatt.

« Vii. Richardson Wyatt.
« Viii. Lucreta Wyatt.

e iX. John Wyatt.

o X. Ansel Wyatt.

42. James Mahan , Jr., born 1791 in Greene County, North Carolina. He was the son of 84. James
Mahan. He married 43. Rebecca Trosper 1810.

43. Rebecca Trosper, born Abt. 1792 in Rowan County, North Carolina; died September 15, 1853 in
Whitley County, Kentucky.

Child of James Mahan and Rebecca Trosper is:

o 21 i. Emity Mahan, born 1826 in Whitley County, Kentucky; died Aft. 1900; married Marshall
Wyatt.

44. Nathan Ward, born 1761; died 1835 in Grayson County, Virginia. He was the son of 88. Wells
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Ward and 89. Rebecca. He married 45. Sarah/Sally.

45. Sarah/Sally, died Aft. 1850. She was the daughter of 90. Attakullakulla "Little Carpenter”
and 91. Ollie.

Notes for Nathan Ward:

The Nathan who d 1835 and his Sarah lived on Saddle Creek in present-day Grayson Co and
had sons

Zachariah, Benjamin, Lewis, Enoch, Wells, Stephen, Nathan Jr, Landreth, and Silas. One
researcher adds another William to the second set although I've seen no documentation for him.
(Researcher Ginger Ballard.)

His will was written 14 Mar. 1803 Grayson Co., VA; wife's name was not mentioned.
Children:
o 1. William - b. 1779 VA, d. 1863, m. 17 Sep. 1800 Grayson Co., VA, Elizabeth Wilson;
o 2. Margaret - d. 31 Mar. 1840, m. 18 Aug. 1792 Grayson Co., VA, Morris Davis Sr.;
o 3. Wells;
o 4. Nathan - b. 1770-80, d. 20 Mar. 1835 Grayson Co., VA, m. Sarah;
o 5. Enoch - m. 14 Dec. 1825 Grayson Co., VA, Nancy Hash.

Nathan, Wells, and James Ward were on the 1783 militia list for Capt. Enoch Osborne's
company. The 1815 Grayson Co. Tax list shows Nathan Ward living on Saddle Creek with 236
acres, a house 24' x 18', valued at $350, Stephen Ward, living on Saddle Creek, with 50 acres,
and having one "cabben", Thomas Ward (living in what is now Carroll Co. -- connection
unknown). and Wells Ward, (jr) on Saddle Creek, with 50 acres and "cabben" and inferior grist
mill, valued at $100.

Nathan (B. ca. 1761-D. 1803+) was one of the sons of Wells Ward, Sr., His children were
named: Benjamin, Zachariah, Eleanor, Lewis, William, Enoch, Wells, and Nathan, Jr. Wells of
this group migrated to Indiana and Nathan, Jr. moved to TN in 1822.

Grayson County, Marriages 1792
o WARD, Benjamin, and Jane COX - 3 Jun 1820.
o WARD, Charlie, and Anne SOUTH - 29 Jan 1807.
o WARD, Elijah, and Polly COLLINS - 17 Sep 1800.
o WARD, Ezekiel, and Pheebe SCREECH - 14 Jan 1836.
o WARD, Lewis, and Maryann HASH - 3 Apr 1823.
o WARD, Stephen, and Jane HASH - 26 Apr 1833.
o WARD, William, and Elizabeth WILSON - 17 Sep 1800.
o WARD, William T., and Nancy CARRICO - 27 Feb 1835.
o WARD, Zacheriah, and Tabitha HASH - 29 Jan 1818.

Notes for Sarah/Sally:

Sally is believed to have been Cherokee with one researcher indicating she was the sister of
Dragging Canoe. There is a bio about Sarah in the Chrisitain Co., library. She married Nathan
and was known as "The Peacekeeper."

o This is from the research of Drury Schofield (sp?) in "My Mother's Brown Family".
« NOW...... Dragging Canoe had a sister, also named Sarah. She was married to Nathan. She was

apparently the "peacekeeper” of the family. Very anti-war. Christian Co Library has a pubished
bio/book on her. Can't remember the name, but is under CANOE in the bio section. (Linda
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Maples)

Children of Nathan Ward and Sarah/Sally are:

« i. Stephen Ward , Sr., died 1849; married (1) Abigail Osborne; married (2) Jane Hash April 26,
1833 in Grayson County, Virginia.

o ii. Wells Ward.
Notes for Wells Ward:

« went to Owen Co, IN

« iii. Zachariah Ward, born April 13, 1792; died Bet. November 28 1876 - 1878; married (1) Sarah
Richardson; married (2) Tabitha Hash January 29, 1818.

« iv. Benjamin Ward, born 1796; died 1858; married Jane/Jennie Cox June 03, 1820.

e 22 v. Nathan Ward , Jr, born 1804 in Grayson County, Virginia; died 1862 in Corbin, Whitley
County, Kentucky *Buried in the Ward/Jones Cemetery; married Ellander Jones November 18,
1834 in Whitley County, Kentucky.

« Vi. "Big" Enoch Ward, born February 20, 1806; died January 13, 1895; married Nancy Hash
December 22, 1825.

« Vii. Landreth Ward, born 1811.
« Viii. Silas Ward, born 1814; married Polly Edwards 1832.
« ix. William Ward, married Elizabeth Wilson September 17, 1800 in Grayson County, Virginia.

46. Isaiah Jones, born Abt. 1784 in Virginia. He married 47. Ann.
47. Ann, born Abt. 1792 in Virginia.
Child of Isaiah Jones and Ann is:

« 23 1. Ellander Jones, born February 13, 1814 in Virginia; died August 1902 in Newton County,
Arkansas *Buried at Cave Mountain Cemetery; married Nathan Ward , Jr November 18, 1834 in
Whitley County, Kentucky.

48. John (Jackie) Cranford, born Abt. 1775 in Montgomery County, North Carolina; died Aft. 1840 in
Randolph County, North Carolina. He was the son of 96. Leonard Cranford and 97. Mary Hopkins.
He married 49. Lydia.

49. Lydia, born Abt. 1778; died Aft. 1840 in Randolph County, North Carolina.

Notes for John (Jackie) Cranford:

« A John Cranford, according to the census was born in Maryland, married a Winnie who was
born in NC. They were in Alabama on the 1850 census. John was 80 and Winnie Griffin was 50.
That would make John's birthday about 1770 and Winny about 1800.

Children of John Cranford and Lydia are:
« i. James Cranford, born 1804; died in Montgomery County, North Carolina; married Ruth Riley.

Notes for James Cranford:
« This was from the 1850 census found at the Troy Library.
« James Cranford b.1804 Wife Ruth Riley B.1801
« In James and Ruth's household. Their children?
o Twins--Ambrose Cranford B.1827 Caroline Cranford B.1827
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o Morrison Cranford B. 1831

o Twins--Eliza Cranford B. 1833 Malinda Cranford B. 1833
o William Cranford B. 1836

o Rachel Cranford B. 1838

24 ii. Richard Cranford, born 1805 in Montgomery County, North Carolina; died 1862 in
Montgomery County, North Carolina; married Elizabeth " Betty " Abt. 1823 in Montgomery
County, North Carolina.

iii. Leonard Cranford, born 1806; married Lucy Newsome.

iv. Henry Cranford, born 1809 in Montgomery County, North Carolina; died 1893; married
Martha Sanders.

v. John Cranford, born February 27, 1811; died March 05, 1864 in Old Zoar Methodist
Cemetery, Montgomery County, NC; married Mary Ann "Polly" Hurley.

Notes for John Cranford:

Kathy Daitch; Edward Jasper Poe, Jr. 1898 m Kathleen Sievern Woodley; Mary Ann Cranford
1866 m Edward Jasper Poe, Sr; Joshua Alston Cranford 1834 m Mary Elizabeth Davis; John
Cranford m Mary Ann Hurley; John Cranford m Winnie Griffin.

Here goes what | found out on that J. M. Cranford: From NC Troops,Volume that contains
records on 14th Regiment, Co. G- J. M. Cranford, Private- resided in Montgomery County and
enlisted in Wake County at age 22, July 16, 1862, for the war. Captured in Fredrick Maryland
Sept. 11,1862. Confined at Fort Deleware, Deleware and was exchanged at City Point,Virginia,
Dec. 18, 1862. Rejoined the Company prior to March 1, 1863. Wounded in the arm in
Chacellorsville Virginia May 1-3, 1863. Died in Montgomery County on June 12, 1863 of
wounds. An addendum to the record was a newspaper article in the Fayetteville
Observer(Semiweekly) of May 14, 1863, one of his legs was amputated as a result of wounds
received at Chancellorsville, Va. April 30-May 4, 1863.

From OIld Zoar Cemetery listing in Montgomery County, NC: Row 7, #20, a, John W. s/o0 John
and Polly Cranford b. 8 May 1840, d. 12 June 1863. b and care graves of John and Polly Hurley
Cranford. Listing was 8 June 1991 by Peggy R. Palmer and Dewey L. Snider. I've been there
and the W. could as well be an M. Talked to Peggy Palmer around 1995 and got the same
opinion.

The 1850 census in Montgomery County, NC for John and Polly Hurley Cranford lists a son John
M. age 11, enumerated Sept. 19, 1850. Being born May 8, 1840, when he enlisted July 16,
1862 he would have been 22 as the above record states. And | believe the same person as the J.
M. Cranford record above.

What else is there: record in the Montgomery Heritage Book Il, #108 the Cranford's of
Montgomery County mentions (1) Milton died in the Civil War. That's all that's said. Believe this
J. M., John M. or W. is John Milton Cranford s/o John and Polly Hurley Cranford.

What makes your delima very perplexing is your James (M)Madison Cranford was age 11 on the
1850 census and so was John (M)Milton Cranford age 11. | also think | would suspect the J. M.
could be James Madison Cranford and that's why | did this research years ago as numerous

people were asking about that. When | looked at the 1862 estate record for James Madison
Cranford that made it all fall in place.

Don

Notes for Mary Ann "Polly" Hurley:

Taken from "Huley Families in America by William Neal Hurley.
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« "The Alabama families state that their Daniel was called "Shad". Strangely enough, our records
indicate that one of "our" Daniel's sons, Joshua, was nicknamed "Shad"! They list one of his
sons as being Freeman Hurley, who moved to Alabama. One of our Daniel's sons, Daniel Wade

(1810), WHO could have been one of the brothers of Freeman, named one of his own sons West
Freeman Hurley (1842); FOR HIS BROTHER, perhaps?

« There is a problem, though, with the rest of the information received from Alabama, relative to
the reported children of Cornelius Hurley and Daniel Hurley. They report a son Tom born to
Daniel Wade, and we are not aware of one by that name. As to Cornelius, they report sons
Elias, William, Green and Winchop. Our Cornelius had no such sons that we know of.

« However, in the records of Chatham County, N. C. we have found the family of Accy Hurley,
born 1794 to 1802, about the same time frame as Cornelius (1796), son of Daniel (1771). Accy

Hurley was a son of Amos Hurley (1755) and had four sons: Elias Wesley, Greene, and

Winship. It appears probable that a mistake has been made by our Alabama cousins, assigning
the sons of Accy Hurley to Cornelius. We believe then, that Daniel and his wife Mary Worrell
were parents of the following children:

o 1. William H. Hurley, know as "“cripple Billy" born 1794-1800. He married Mary , May 16,
1815.

o 2. Cornelius Hurley, born c. 1796
o 3. Mary Hurley, or Polly born c. 1799, and married to John Cranford.
= They had at least one son and a daughter:
= a. Joshua Cranford, born Aug. 21, 1834 in Montgomery County, N. C. and died July

4, 1897 near Troy. He was married July 8, 1865 to Mary Elizabeth Davis, who was
born Sept. 22, 1836 and died July 3,1915. They had four children:

= (1) An unknown daughter
= (2) William Ivey Cranford
= (3) Wade Cranford, married Vernia Zachary. Two sons:
= (a) Daniel W. Cranford
= (b) Robert Cranford
= (4) Civilla Christian Cranford, born Dec. 24, 1872 in Montgomery County, N.
C. and died Aug. 9, 1923 in Ridgeway, S. C. Married Oct. 16, 1895 to John
William Hoyle, who was born June 21, 1868 in Cleveland County, N. C., and
died June 21, 1962 in Durham, N. C. At least one daughter

= (a Elizabeth Self Hoyle, born Aug. 7, 1901 in Montgomery County, N. C.
and died March 19, 1972 at Durham. Married May 23, 1930 to Willis
Brodie Jeffreys, son of Brodie E. Jeffreys (1855-1929) and Lucy
Frances Jones Jeffreys.

= b. Margaret Cranford, reported to me by Jeanne Laurel Suggs Gildes (1951) of
Waukegan, Illinoise. Margaret married Jacob Reynolds and had at least one
daughter:

= (1) Annette J. Reynolds, born April 20, 1859. She was married on Feb. 24,
1876 to Jesse Suggs, son of Isaac and Jane Suggs.

= No children.
o 4. Nancy Hurley, born Aug. 29, 1800
o 5. Freeman Hurley, born c. 1804
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o 6. Noah Hurley, born c. 1808
o 7. Daniel Wade Hurley, born c. 1810

0 8. Joshua Hurley, born April 11, 1812 and died June 14, 1896. Buried at Sharon
Cemetery, Mt. Gilead in Montgomery County, N. C. He was nicknamed "Shad" and was
married first to Lydia, born 1820, who appears with him in thre 1850 Census, with two of
his children. Married second Nov. 28,1875 to Margaret A. Strider, born c. 1834. Only four
of his children are know:

= a. Disa Hurley, born c. 1845. Married April 27, 1871 John C. Yarbrough, son of
John and Temperance Yarbrough

= b. Noah R. Hurley, born June, 1849. His wife Elizabeth Jane. Married 1866. There
were twelve or thirteen children. We now can identify only four of the children:

= (1) Frances Hurley, born c. 1874
= (2) Mary F. Hurley, born ¢ 1879
= (3) Ervin B. Hurley, born Jan. 1883. Married to Analiza McCallum, her second
marriage
= (4) Susan R. Hurley, born March, 1890
= C. Sarah E. Hurley, born c. 1859 and married Nov. 1, 1879 to Levi W. Hamilton
= d. Mary Hurley, born c. 1862

52. Daniel Hurley, born 1771. He was the son of 104. Amos Hurley. He married 53. Mary
Worrell.

53. Mary Worrell.

Children of Daniel Hurley and Mary Worrell are:

e 26 i. Cornelious Hurley, born 1796 in Montgomery County, North Carolina; died 1855; married
Elizabeth "Betsy" Beane June 25, 1818 in Rowan County, North Carolina.

« il. Mary Ann "Polly" Hurley, born May 13, 1805; died January 17, 1892 in Old Zoar Methodist
Cemetery, Montgomery County, NC; married John Cranford.

Notes for Mary Ann "Polly" Hurley:
o Taken from "Huley Families in America by William Neal Hurley.
« "The Alabama families state that their Daniel was called "Shad".

« Strangely enough, our records indicate that one of "our" Daniel's sons, Joshua, was nicknamed

"Shad"! They list one of his sons as being Freeman Hurley, who moved to Alabama. One of our
Daniel's sons, Daniel Wade (1810), WHO could have been one of the brothers of Freeman,
named one of his own sons West Freeman Hurley (1842); FOR HIS BROTHER, perhaps?

« There is a problem, though, with the rest of the information received from Alabama, relative to
the reported children of Cornelius Hurley and Daniel Hurley. They report a son Tom born to
Daniel Wade, and we are not aware of one by that name. As to Cornelius, they report sons
Elias, William, Green and Winchop. Our Cornelius had no such sons that we know of.

« However, in the records of Chatham County, N. C. we have found the family of Accy Hurley,
born 1794 to 1802, about the same time frame as Cornelius (1796), son of Daniel (1771). Accy
Hurley was a son of Amos Hurley (1755) and had four sons: Elias Wesley, Greene, and
Winship. It appears probable that a mistake has been made by our Alabama cousins, assigning
the sons of Accy Hurley to Cornelius. We believe then, that Daniel and his wife Mary Worrell
were parents of the following children:

file:///C|/My Documents/My Webs/Ruby/FAncestory.htm (51 of 78) [06/07/2000 17:48:58]



Ancestors of Dorothy Dean Fowler

o 1. William H. Hurley, know as "cripple Billy" born 1794-1800. He married Mary , May 16,
1815.

o 2. Cornelius Hurley, born c. 1796

o 3. Mary Hurley, or Polly born c. 1799, and married to John Cranford. They had at least
one son and a daughter:

= a. Joshua Cranford, born Aug. 21, 1834 in Montgomery County, N. C. and died July
4, 1897 near Troy. He was married July 8, 1865 to Mary Elizabeth Davis, who was
born Sept. 22, 1836 and died July 3, 1915. They had four children:

= (1) An unknown daughter

= (2) William Ivey Cranford

= (3) Wade Cranford, married Vernia Zachary. Two sons:
= (a) Daniel W. Cranford
= (b) Robert Cranford

= (4) Civilla Christian Cranford, born Dec. 24, 1872 in Montgomery County, N.
C. and died Aug. 9, 1923 in Ridgeway, S. C. Married Oct. 16, 1895 to John
William Hoyle, who was born June 21, 1868 in Cleveland County, N. C., and
died June 21, 1962 in Durham, N. C. At least one daughter

= (a Elizabeth Self Hoyle, born Aug. 7, 1901 in Montgomery County, N. C.
and died March 19, 1972 at Durham. Married May 23, 1930 to Willis
Brodie Jeffreys, son of Brodie E. Jeffreys (1855-1929) and Lucy
Frances Jones Jeffreys.

= b. Margaret Cranford, reported to me by Jeanne Laurel Suggs Gildes
(1951) of Waukegan, lllinoise. Margaret married Jacob Reynolds and
had at least one daughter:

= (1) Annette J. Reynolds, born April 20, 1859. She was married on
Feb. 24, 1876 to Jesse Suggs, son of Isaac and Jane Suggs.

= No children.
o 4. Nancy Hurley, born Aug. 29, 1800
o 5. Freeman Hurley, born c. 1804
o 6. Noah Hurley, born c. 1808
o 7. Daniel Wade Hurley, born c. 1810

o 8. Joshua Hurley, born April 11, 1812 and died June 14, 1896. Buried at Sharon
Cemetery, Mt. Gilead in Montgomery County, N. C. He was nicknamed "Shad" and was
married first to Lydia, born 1820, who appears with him in thre 1850 Census, with two of
his children. Married second Nov. 28,1875 to Margaret A. Strider, born c. 1834. Only four
of his children are knowv:

= a. Disa Hurley, born c. 1845. Married April 27, 1871 John C. Yarbrough, son of
John and Temperance Yarbrough

= b. Noah R. Hurley, born June, 1849. His wife Elizabeth Jane. Married 1866. There
were twelve or thirteen children. We now can identify only four of the children:

= (1) Frances Hurley, born c. 1874
= (2) Mary F. Hurley, born c 1879

= (3) Ervin B. Hurley, born Jan. 1883. Married to Analiza McCallum, her second
marriage

= (4) Susan R. Hurley, born March, 1890
= C. Sarah E. Hurley, born c. 1859 and married Nov. 1, 1879 to Levi W. Hamilton
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= d. Mary Hurley, born c. 1862

Notes for John Cranford:

Kathy Daitch; Edward Jasper Poe, Jr. 1898 m Kathleen Sievern Woodley; Mary Ann Cranford
1866 m Edward Jasper Poe, Sr; Joshua Alston Cranford 1834 m Mary Elizabeth Davis; John
Cranford m Mary Ann Hurley; John Cranford m Winnie Griffin.

Here goes what | found out on that J. M. Cranford: From NC Troops,Volume that contains
records on 14th Regiment, Co. G- J. M. Cranford, Private- resided in Montgomery County and
enlisted in Wake County at age 22, July 16, 1862, for the war. Captured in Fredrick Maryland
Sept. 11,1862. Confined at Fort Deleware, Deleware and was exchanged at City Point,Virginia,
Dec. 18, 1862. Rejoined the Company prior to March 1, 1863. Wounded in the arm in
Chacellorsville Virginia May 1-3, 1863. Died in Montgomery County on June 12, 1863 of
wounds. An addendum to the record was a newspaper article in the Fayetteville
Observer(Semiweekly) of May 14, 1863, one of his legs was amputated as a result of wounds
received at Chancellorsville, Va. April 30-May 4, 1863.

From OIld Zoar Cemetery listing in Montgomery County, NC: Row 7, #20, a, John W. s/o John
and Polly Cranford b. 8 May 1840, d. 12 June 1863. b and care graves of John and Polly Hurley
Cranford. Listing was 8 June 1991 by Peggy R. Palmer and Dewey L. Snider. I've been there
and the W. could as well be an M. Talked to Peggy Palmer around 1995 and got the same
opinion.

The 1850 census in Montgomery County, NC for John and Polly Hurley Cranford lists a son John
M. age 11, enumerated Sept. 19, 1850. Being born May 8, 1840, when he enlisted July 16,
1862 he would have been 22 as the above record states. And | believe the same person as the J.
M. Cranford record above.

What else is there: record in the Montgomery Heritage Book Il, #108 the Cranford's of
Montgomery County mentions (1) Milton died in the Civil War. That's all that's said. Believe this
J. M., John M. or W. is John Milton Cranford s/o John and Polly Hurley Cranford.

What makes your delima very perplexing is your James (M)Madison Cranford was age 11 on the
1850 census and so was John (M)Milton Cranford age 11. | also think | would suspect the J. M.
could be James Madison Cranford and that's why | did this research years ago as numerous
people were asking about that. When | looked at the 1862 estate record for James Madison
Cranford that made it all fall in place.

Don

iii. Nancy Hurley, born August 29, 1800.

iv. Feeman Hurley, born 1804.

v. Noah Hurley, born 1808.

vi. Daniel Wade Hurley, born 1810; married Elizabeth Prudence Coggin Bef. 1861.

vii. Joshua "Shad" Hurley, born April 11, 1812; died June 14, 1896 in Montgomery County, N. C.
* Buried at Sharon Cem. Mt. Gilead; married (1) Lydia Bef. 1849 in Montgomery County, North
Carolina; married (2) Margaret A. Strider November 28, 1875.

Notes for Joshua "Shad" Hurley:

. Joshua Hurley, born April 11, 1812 and died June 14, 1896. Buried at Sharon Cemetery, Mt.
Gilead in Montgomery County, N. C. He was nicknamed "Shad" and was married first to Lydia,
born 1820, who appears with him in thre 1850 Census, with two of his children. Married second
Nov. 28,1875 to Margaret A. Strider, born c. 1834. Only four of his children are know:

« a. Disa Hurley, born c. 1845. Married April 27, 1871 John C. Yarbrough, son of
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John and Temperance Yarbrough

« b. Noah R. Hurley, born June, 1849. His wife Elizabeth Jane. Married 1866. There
were twelve or thirteen children. We now can identify only four of the children:

» (1) Frances Hurley, born c. 1874
» (2) Mary F. Hurley, born c 1879

e (3) Ervin B. Hurley, born Jan. 1883. Married to Analiza McCallum, her
second marriage

e (4) Susan R. Hurley, born March, 1890
« C. Sarah E. Hurley, born c. 1859 and married Nov. 1, 1879 to Levi W. Hamilton
« d. Mary Hurley, born c. 1862

« The only mention of Ambrose Cranford: In the Archives at Raleigh, there is a bond of George
Coggins, administrator, dated July 5, 1863, with reference made to the dower rights of Prudence
E. Hurley, the widow, and two minor children. The real estate is there described as 150 acres of
land adjoining lands of Joshua Hurley, Ambrose Cranford, George Luther and William Burney.

« This folder file contains papers also as to the estate of a second Daniel Hurley, which should not
be confused with this subject. That Daniel, born c. 1810/17, was a son of Stephen Hurley
(1782). The files have been combined for no apparent reason, except the common name.

« From the records, it appears that the wife of our subject was Elizabeth Prudence Coggins, and
that they had at least two children:
« a. George L. Hurley, born 1861 to 1863

« b. Mary Daniel Hurley, born May 12, 1863, died May 2, 1944 and married Dec. 16,
1883 to Robert Seth Zachary, born March 31, 1858, died Dec. 17, 1936. Both are
buried at Wadeville Baptist Church. At the time, he was reported as being 25 years
of age and she was 21.

= Children:

(1) Robert Zachary

(2) Inez Zachary

(3) Ora Zachary

(4) Vernia Zachary, married to Wade Cranford, a distant
cousin, and had children:

» (a) Daniel W. Cranford
« (b) Robert Cranford

e 1 Joel Hurley

o . +Viney

e .... 2 William Hurley b: 22 June 1803 in Montgomery County, NC d: 02 June 1884 Lampasas, TX

¢ e +Harriet Eveline Anderson b: 20 September 1810 in North Carolina m: January 1827 in
North Carolina d: 17 October 1890 Austin, Texas Father: William Anderson Mother: Courtney A.

¢ i 3 Eliza M. A. Hurley b: Abt. 1827 in North Carolina d: Austin, TX

O e, +Charles William Dison b: Abt. 1823 in Virginia m: 17 January 1850 in Independence
County, Arkansas d:

o ieeis 3 Melvina M. Hurley b: 01 July 1829 in Montgomery County, NC d: 18 October 1890
Lampasas, TX

O e +Ambrose Bradley b: 31 January 1827 in Clark County, Arkansas m: 24 February

1848 in Black River, Arkansas d: 26 July 1895 Galveston, TX

file:///C|/My Documents/My Webs/Ruby/FAncestory.htm (54 of 78) [06/07/2000 17:48:59]



Ancestors of Dorothy Dean Fowler

........... 3 William J. Hurley b: 17 September 1832 in Bibb County, AL d: 28 April 1899 Johnson
County, TX

............... +Sarah Jane McFarland b: 10 August 1837 in Tennessee m: 04 November 1855 in
Independence County, AR d: 10 September 1914 Cleburne, Johnson County, TX Father: William
McFarland Mother: Caroline Barnes

........... 3 Franklin V. Hurley b: Abt. 1837 in Alabama d: Austin, TX

............... +Sarah A. b: Abt. 1844 in Tennessee m: Abt. 1861 in Lampasas, TX d:
........... 3 Amanda Hurley b: Abt. September 1840 in Mississippi d:

........... 3 James D. Hurley b: Abt. 1841 in Arkansas d:

............... +Elizabeth Wood m: 29 October 1861 in Independence County, Arkansas d:
........... 3 Clinton Hurley b: Abt. 1844 in Arkansas d:

........... 3 Elmira Hurley b: Abt. 1845 in Arkansas d: Austin, TX

............... +? Dunman d:

viii. William H. Hurley, born 1794; married Mary May 16, 1815.

Notes for William H. Hurley:

Known as "Cripple Billy".Cripple Billy

56. Absolom Bryant, born Bet. 1795 - 1801 in North Carolina; died 1865 in Whitley County,
Kentucky. He was the son of 112. Absolom Bryant and 113. Elizabeth. He married 57. Agnhes
"Aggie" Johnson August 13, 1818 in Whitley County, Kentucky.

57. Agnes "Aggie" Johnson, born Bet. 1799 - 1808 in North Carolina; died in Kentucky.

Notes for Absolom Bryant:

John Milton Bryant inherited property directly from both his father \Edward Bryant and his
grandfather Eli Bryant. John Milton Bryant was the sixth of eleven children of Edward and
Matilda Jane (Stewart) Bryant. Edward was killed by the Harper Gang near his farm near
Franklin KY. Edward and Matilda are buried on their farm in Franklin, KY ,near the Tyree
Chapel. Edward Bryant was the oldest of eleven children of Eli and Martha Bryant. Eli Bryant
was born in 1789 in North Carolina, son of Absolom and Elizabeth Bryant. The Absolom Bryant
family moved to Logan County, KY in 1792. John Milton Bryant, Callahan County, Texas, moved
from Logan County, KY to Texas in 1882. John Milton Bryant had a very large family in
Callahan County, Texas.

Robert G. Bryant, 4719 Devon St, Houston,TX. 77027 713-871-9687

Isham Bryant b. 1822/23 in KY m. Lucy Ann Smith in Laural County, KY. Isham's parents :
John Bryant & Eliz Denioss or Demoss. They m. in Knox County, KY Isham also had brother
named William b. @ 1820

WHITLEY, KENTUCKY 1820 Federal Census Index
16 5 Bryant Absalom pg0110a.txt

13 11 Bryant Peter pgO110a.txt

17 4 Bryant Sally pg0110a.txt

2 13 Sexson ***ee pg0l110a.txt

9 3 Sexson Issac pg0110a.txt

110a 1 Sexson Jacob pg0110a.txt
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e 2 7 Sexson James pg0l10a.txt
o 2 6 Sexson Semuel pg0110a.txt
o 15 6 Sexson William Jr pgOl110a.txt
« 16 8 Sexson William Jr pgOl110a.txt
e 110a 1 Sexson Jacob2000101100100100

Children of Absolom Bryant and Agnes Johnson are:

« 28 1. Elias Bryant, born 1821 in Whitley County, Kentucky; died 1926 in Capark, Madison
County, Arkansas; married Minerva Mary Ann Richmond 1843 in Laurel County, Kentucky.

« ii. Howell Bryant, born Abt. 1830 in Kentucky.

« lii. Morgan Bryant, born July 04, 1831 in Whitely County, Kentucky; died April 01, 1917 in
Whitely County, Kentucky *Buried Pleasant Hill Cemetery; married Sarah Elizabeth Celia Lovett
November 18, 1852 in Whitley County, Kentucky.

« iv. Elizabeth Bryant, born March 01, 1833 in Whitely County, Kentucky; died December 30,
1901 in Whitely County, Kentucky; married Stephen N. Cox July 05, 1849 in Whitley County,
Kentucky.

« V. Andrew Jackson Bryant, born April 20, 1837 in Whitely County, Kentucky; died April 04,
1891 in Whitely County, Kentucky; married Malinda Jane Lovett August 16, 1855 in Whitley
County, Kentucky.

« Vi. Rachael Bryant, born Bet. 1839 - 1841 in Whitely County, Kentucky; died 1927 in Whitley
County, Kentucky; married Martin Randolph Lovett.

« Vii. Jane Bryant, born September 1841 in Whitely County, Kentucky; died 1894 in Whitely
County, Kentucky; married Simon Jones September 21, 1863 in Kentucky.

« Viii. Mary "Polly" Bryant, born 1842.
« iXx. Libby Bryant, born 1844.
e X. Absolom Bryant, born 1848.

58. James Richmond , Sr.. He married 59. Sarah Sego.
59. Sarah Sego.
Child of James Richmond and Sarah Sego is:

e 29 i. Minerva Mary Ann Richmond, born 1829 in Whitley County, Kentucky; married Elias
Bryant 1843 in Laurel County, Kentucky.

60. Johan Peter Lickliter (Leichliter), born August 11, 1756 in Nochimixion Twp., Bucks County,
Pennsylvania; died April 13, 1853 in Laurel County, Kentucky. He was the son of 120. Jacob
Leichliter and 121. Catherine Margaret Loch. He married 61. Magdalena 1810 in
Grainger,Claibourn County, Tennessee.

61. Magdalena, born Abt. 1783 in Grainger, Claiborn County, Tennessee.

Notes for Johan Peter Lickliter (Leichliter):

« The Lickliters were of Germanic origin. | say Germanic because their language was German but
they were more than likely Tyrolian. The Tyrol is in current day Austria, with a little bit in
northern Italy.

« Peter was probably born in Nockamixon Township, Bucks Co, PA. There was a Peter Leichleiter
whose birth and baptism was recorded in Tohickon Union (Reformed) Church, Bedminster
Township, Bucks Co. This Peter was a son of Jacob Leichliter who was born prior to 1733 and
married Catherine Margaret Loch. Catherine was a daughter of Hannah Sibylla Loch. Jacob and
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Catherine had several children whose births were recorded in the same church. Whether or not
this is our Peter, remains to be proven. The age is certainly right.

The information | have on Rachel and William is primarily from the census records of KY and
AR, with a few marriages thrown in here and there.

Darryn

1 NAME PETER /LICKLITER/
1SEXM

1 BIRT

2 DATE 1770

2 PLAC PENNSYLVANIA

1 DEAT

2 DATE 13 APR 1853

2 PLAC LAUREL COUNTY, KENTUCKY

2. JOHAN PETER2 LICKLITER (JOHANNES CONRAD1 LECHLEITER) was born August 11, 1756 in
Pikes Township, Berks Co., Pa., and died Abt. 1840. He married MAGDALENA ? Abt. 1783.

Children of JOHAN LICKLITER and MAGDALENA ? are:

i. (DAU)3 LICKLITER, b. Abt. 1785; d. Abt. 1791.

ii. CONRAD LECKLITER, b. July 20, 1787, Fredrick Co., Md; d. Belmont Co., Oh; m. ALICE
"ALLY" PATTERSON, January 7, 1835, Belmont Co., Oh.

iii. ELIZABETH LICKLITER, b. Abt. 1790, Maryland; m. CHRISTIAN BAKER, March 20, 1820,
Fredrick Co., Md.

iv. CATHARINA "KATE" LEICKLITER, b. August 9, 1794, Fredrick Co., Md; d. September 5, 1839,
Cumberland Co., Md.; m. JOHN FREDERICK WOLFE, September 4, 1820, Cumberland Co., Md..

v. MARIA MAGDALENA LECKLITER, b. September 5, 1796, Maryland.
vi. SARAH LICKLITER, b. Abt. 1799, Maryland; d. February 22, 1805.

vii. GEORGE PETER LECKLITER, b. Abt. 1800, Maryland; d. Abt. 1857, Oh.; m. ROSANNA
"ROSA" COOK, January 30, 1817, Allegany Co., Md..

viii. (DAU) LICKLITER, b. 1801; d. February 20, 1803, Maryland.
iX. SUSANNAH LECKLITER, b. 1802, Maryland; d. February 22, 1803, Maryland.

X. SARAH "REBECCA" LECKLITER, b. March 4, 1804, Hampshire (now Mineral Co., WV.) Co.
Va..

xi. MARGARET LICKLITER, b. Abt. 1805; m. DANIEL TRAIL, 1830.
xii. WILLIAM LICKLITER, b. 1811, Tennessee (census records).
3. xiii. ROBERT ELIAS LICKLITER, b. 1815, Tennessee (census records).

Children of Johan (Leichliter) and Magdalena are:

i. Rebecca Lickliter, born 1809 in Grainger, Tennessee; married William Guthrie May 18, 1839.

30 ii. William Lickliter, born 1811 in Grainger, Claiborn County, Tennessee; married Rebecca
Mays.

iii. Elias Lickliter, born 1815 in Grainger, Tennessee; died April 14, 1888 in Whitely, Tennessee;
married Nancy Goforth Abt. 1836 in Claiborne, Tennessee.

Notes for Nancy Goforth:
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. ROBERT ELIAS3 LICKLITER (JOHAN PETER2, JOHANNES CONRAD1 LECHLEITER) was born 1815
in Tennessee (census records). He married NANCY GOFORTH 1836 in TN..
Children of ROBERT LICKLITER and NANCY GOFORTH are:
e i. CALL4 LICKLITER, b. 1837.
e 4.ii. WILLIAM WALTER LICKLITER, b. 1840, Powell's Valley, VA.; d. Barbourville, KY..
« iii. R.N. LICKLITER, b. Abt. 1839, Tennessee (census records).
e 5.iv. S.R. (DOC) LICKLITER, b. Abt. 1843, Tennessee (census records).
e 6.Vv.JOHN M. LICKLITER, b. January 27, 1849, Laurel ( Knox) co. Ky.; d. April 28, 1915.
e 7.Vi. JOSEPH JAMES J.A.C.K. LICKLITER, b. January 13, 1855; d. April 5, 1904.
e Vii. WASHINGTON "WASH" LICKLITER.

| Generation No. 7

68. Adams Lowry.
Child of Adams Lowry is:
« 34 i. Capt. Adam Lowry, born in Tennessee; married Elizabeth.
80. Samuel Wyatt. He married 81. Rebecca Bennett.
81. Rebecca Bennett.

Children of Samuel Wyatt and Rebecca Bennett are:
« 40 i. John Wyatt, married Mary Francis " Polly" Stewart February 03, 1810 in Knox, Kentucky.
« ii. Elizabeth Wyatt, married Isaac Stewart.

82. Alexander Stewart. He married 83. Mary Anderson.
83. Mary Anderson.
Child of Alexander Stewart and Mary Anderson is:
« 41 i. Mary Francis " Polly" Stewart, married John Wyatt February 03, 1810 in Knox, Kentucky.
84. James Mahan.

Notes for James Mahan:

« James Mahan Jr's grandfather was born in Ireland in 1731. And James Mahan fought in the
Revolutionary War and served as a Captain in the army.

Child of James Mahan is:

e 42 i. James Mahan , Jr., born 1791 in Greene County, North Carolina; married Rebecca Trosper
1810.

88. Wells Ward, born Bet. 1725 - 1730 in Henrico County, Virginia; died 1821 in Grayson County,
Virginia. He married 89. Rebecca.

89. Rebecca.

Notes for Wells Ward:
« According to "Carroll, The Settlements, 1765-1815, Nathan Ward in Montgomery County.

file://IC|/My Documents/My Webs/Ruby/FAncestory.htm (58 of 78) [06/07/2000 17:48:59]



Ancestors of Dorothy Dean Fowler

« A Wells Ward and James Ward taxed in Botetourt County, Va 1771 and 1773. Nathan and

Zachariah Ward taxed. All were probably in Grayson/Carroll area. Nathan settled on Coal
Creek, now present day Carroll Co., this from Fincastle records.

Nathan died 1803. Grayson Co Will Book 1-25. left life estate to wife, with it to pass at her
death to sons Nathan and Enoch. His original tract willed to sons William and Wells. Other
records show her name was Sarah.

Nathan Ward Jr married Ann Williams, Grayson Co 1809. and moved to Hawkins Co TN. where
he was living 1822 when he sold his inheritance.

Son Enoch moved to Rutherford Co NC, he sold out there in 1822. Sarah was living with Enoch.
Wells Ward sold out 1807 and seems to have moved away.

William Ward became one of the wealthiest men in the community.. A little more to the sketch,
but this is all the children records name. (J P Alderman, the author) thinks there were daughters.

Children of Wells Ward and Rebecca are:

44 i. Nathan Ward, born 1761; died 1835 in Grayson County, Virginia; married Sarah/Sally.

ii. Abigail Ward, born December 01, 1759 in Chesterfield County, Virginia; died March 11, 1859
in Grayson County, Virginia.

iii. Wells Ward.
iv. James Ward.

Notes for James Ward:

95. JAMES" WHITEHEAD"6 WARD (SOLOMONS, JAMES LEMILL4, WILLIAM3, JAMES2,
JAMES1)58,59,60 was born 1796 in Russell County, VA61,62,63, and died 1866 in Johnson County,
KY64. He married LUCINDA MEEK April 13, 1820 in Floyd County, KY65,66, daughter of JAMES
MEEK and JUDITH HYLTON. She was born 1803 in Floyd County, KY67, and died Abt. 1899 in Two
Mile Creek, Johnson County, KYG68.

Notes for JAMES" WHITEHEAD" WARD:

James Ward was called "Whitehead " ward due to the many James' in the family. He was given
this nickname because of his premature graying. Note that many of his descendents also had
premature graying as well.

Children of JAMES" WARD and LUCINDA MEEK are:

i. DAVID7 WARD, d. Unknown.
ii. EMANUEL WARD, d. Unknown.
iii. NATHAN WARD, b. Abt. 1825; d. Unknown.

iv. SARAH MIRANDA WARD, b. 1821, Floyd County, Kentucky; d. Unknown; m. HIRAM
SPRIGGS; d. Unknown.

v. SUSAN WARD, b. Abt. 1823, Floyd County, Kentucky; d. February 7, 1915, Johnson County,
KY; m. ELIAS MULLETT; d. Unknown.

178. vi. ANDREW JACKSON "DICKY-JACK" WARD, b. Abt. 1826, Lawrence County, Kentucky; d.
WFT Est. 1874-1918.

179. vii. CYNTHIA WARD, b. Abt. 1830, Lawrence County, Ky; d. Aft. 1854.

viii. JUDY "JUDA" WARDG9, b. Abt. 1830, Lawrence County, Ky; d. 1850, Johnson County, Ky;
m. PLEASANT CRUM, September 2, 1845, Johnson County, KY; d. Unknown.

180. ix. GEORGE WASHINGTON WARD, b. February 1833, Lawrence County, KY; d. May 23,
1925, Martin County, KY.

181. x. NANCY JANE WARD, b. 1834, Lawrence County, KY; d. May 16, 1876, KY.
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182. xi. JAMES "HAWKUM" WARD, b. Abt. 1836, Lawrence County, KY; d. Abt. 1900, KY.

183. xii. JOHNATHAN "JONTY" WARD, b. Abt. 1840, Lawrence County, KY; d. April 6, 1914,
Martin County, KY.

184. xiii. WILLIAM OWEN WARD, b. February 3, 1844, Johnson County, KY; d. December 16,
1934, Martin County, KY.

185. xiv. WELLS WARD, b. Aft. 1820; d. Unknown.
v. Stephen Ward.

vi. Elizabeth Ward, married James Blevins , Jr.
vii. Benjamin Ward.

Notes for Benjamin Ward:

went to Watauga County.

90. Attakullakulla "Little Carpenter”, born Abt. 1713 in Severs Island, TN; died 1780 in
Tennessee. He was the son of 180. White Owl Raven and 181. Nancy Moytoy. He married 91.

Ollie.

91. Ollie, born 1720. She was the daughter of 182. Chief Oconostota and 183. Woman of the
Paint Clan.

Notes for Attakullakulla "Little Carpenter":

Ata -gul kalu

A noted Cherokee chief, recognized by the British government as the head chief or "Emperor" of
the Nation, about 1760 and later, and commonly known to the whites as the Little Carpenter
(Little Cornplanter, by mistake, in Haywood). The name is frequently spelled Atta-kulla-kulla,
Ata-kullakulla or Ata-culculla. It may be rendered "Leaning wood," from ata , "Wood" and gul
kalu, a verb implying that something long is leaning, without sufficient support, against some
other object; it has no first person form. Bartram describes him as "A man of remarkably small
stature, slender and of a delicate frame, the only instance | saw in the Nation; but he is a man
of superior abilities."

Three of seven young Cherokees, who were escorted by Sir Alexander Cuming to England in
1730 to meet King George II. The Cherokees signed articles of friendship and commerce with
representatives of the British Crown. One of the Cherokees was Oukanaekah, later named
Attakullaculla or the Little Carpenter.

More About ATTAKULLAKULLA:

Attended: 1730, Delegation to King George I

Blood: 1/2 Cherokee, 1/2 Algonquin(?)

Clan: Wolf Clan (Quatsy)

Signer: March 1775, Henderson's Treaty, Sycamore Shoals

Notes for Ollie:

Little is known of Attacullaculla's immediate family. His wife appears only rarely in the
documentary record. In 1758 Attakullaculla wrote Littleton, "I desire that you would send me a
cloak for my wife," and once he tried to exchange two prisoners for two Negro slaves to help her.
In November, 1774 she accompanied him to North Carolina. In Bethabara husband and wife
listened to the peal of the organ. He had heard many organs but she insisted that the lid be
removed for she feared a child was trapped inside. In a letter dated 1766 she is mentioned, but
nothing more. (Journal of Cherokee Studies, Vol. Ill, No. 1, Winter, 1978 p. 27)
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Children of Attakullakulla Carpenter” and Ollie are:

i. Dragging Canoe , Chief "Chuconsene”, born Abt. 1734 in The Overhill settlements, now Monroe
Co, TN; died March 01, 1792 in Lookout Town, TN (near Trenton, Georgia),; married Leaf.

Notes for Dragging Canoe , Chief "Chuconsene":

Notes for DRAGGING CANOE:
Dragging Canoe
Tsi yi-gunsi ni
Tsu-gun-sini
Chuconsene
Cheucunsene
Kunnesee
the Savage Napoleon
Tsi yi-gunsi ni:
o "He is dragging a canoe,"” from tsi yu, canoe (cf. Tsi yu) otter, and gunsi ni, "he is
dragging it." "Dragging Canoe," a prominent leader of the hostile Cherokee in the

Revolution. The name appears in documents as Cheucunsene and Kunnesee. (Starr also
lists him as Chuconsene)

o As a 12-14 year old boy he was told he couldn't go with the war party unless he could
drag the fully loaded war log canoe on land into the water. His enthusiasm and
endeavors earned him the name Tsi'ui-Gunsin'ni "Dragging Canoe". This was circa 1750
when his father Atakullakulla led war parties against the French & their Native allies,
including Shawnee, in the Ohio Valley.

- Chief Dragging Canoe, Chickamauga Tsalagi (Cherokee) 1775

o "Whole Indian Nations have melted away like snowballs in the sun before the white man's
advance. They leave scarcely a name of our people except those wrongly recorded by their
destroyers. Where are the Delawares? They have been reduced to a mere shadow of their
former greatness. We had hoped that the white men would not be willing to travel beyond
the mountains. Now that hope is gone. They have passed the mountains, and have settled
upon Tsalagi (Cherokee) land. They wish to have that usurpation sanctioned by treaty.
When that is gained, the same encroaching spirit will lead them upon other land of the
Tsalagi (Cherokees). New cessions will be asked. Finally the whole country, which the
Tsalagi (Cherokees) and their fathers have so long occupied, will be demanded, and the
remnant of the Ani Yvwiya, The Real People, once so great and formidable, will be
compelled to seek refuge in some distant wilderness. There they will be permitted to stay
only a short while, until they again behold the advancing banners of the same greedy
host. Not being able to point out any further retreat for the miserable Tsalagi (Cherokees),
the extinction of the whole race will be proclaimed. Should we not therefore run all risks,
and incur all consequences, rather than to submit to further loss of our country? Such
treaties may be alright for men who are too old to hunt or fight. As for me, | have my
young warriors about me. We will hold our land."

o [The Indigenous Peoples: "Indians" in North America before the European Invasion through
the 19th century.] Subsequently the Henderson Purchase was repudiated and negated by
both British and American governments. individuals were not allowed to make land
purchases. that right was withheld by centralized european governments dealing with
tribes as nation-to-nation.

o 1792 February 17; Chickamauga Chief Glass and Dragging Canoe's brother, Turtle At
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Home, waylaid the John Collingsworth family near Nashville, killing the father, mother,
and a daughter, and capturing an eight-year-old girl. Returning to Lookout Town (near
Trenton, Georgia), they held a scalp dance, grinding one of the scalps in his teeth as he
performed. Dragging Canoe, recently returned from Mississippi after meeting with
Choctaws, celebrated the occasion so strenuously that he died the following morning, age
154,

John Watts of Will's Town (near Fort Payne, Alabama), became the new Chickamauaga
leader of the united war effort. Cherokee resistance continued - led a big campaign
against settlements in Nashville (Buchanan Station 1793) and in upper east Tennessee
led the combined Cherokee-Creek attack at Cavett's Station in 1793 in which there were
no white survivors.

« Old Frontiers, pg 5

O

O

"Tsu-gun-sini, Dragging Canoe, son of Attakullakulla, was chief of Amo-yeli-egwa, Great
Island, one of the smaller Cherokee towns."

March 1775]

« Old Frontiers, pg 161

O

[1776, Dragging Canoe] "With his followers, he seceded from the Cherokee Nation and
withdrew a hundred miles down the Tennessee River where he organized a new tribe.
Those Cherokees who met in treaty with the Americans, he denounced as "rogues," or
worse, as "Virginians." His own followers called themselves, proudly, "Ani-Yunwiya," the
Real People.

More About DRAGGING CANOE:
« Attended: March 1775, Henderson's Treaty, Sycamore Shoals
« Blood: 374 Cherokee
« Clan: Paint Clan (Mrs Oconostota)

ii. Tah-Chee "Dutch", born 1736; died Aft. 1828; married (2) Aisley; married (3) Susannah Catherine.

Notes for Tah-Chee "Dutch":

Notes for TAH-CHEE:

O

O

Tatsi
"Dutch," also written Tahchee, a western Cherokee chief about 1830.

Cherokees in Texas TSALAGIYI NVDAGI P O Box 492 Troup, Texas 75789 (903)842-3329

Tah-chee or "Dutch" was a Western Cherokee chief who refused to move from Arkansas to
the Indian Territory and took his group to settle in east Texas. The Texas Cherokees were
forced to move to Indian Territory after a bloody battle with the army of the Republic of
Texas in the 1840's.

A large number of Cherokee refused to move to the Indian Territory and elected to join
Duwali in Texas which was under Mexican jurisdiction. Among those moving to Texas
was the noted chief Tahchee, or Dutch, who had been one of the earliest emmigrants to
Arkansas. Tahchee continued to raid Osage settlements in the area of Cantonment Gibson
from his home along the Red River. After several years in Texas, he moved to the Indian
Territory where he continued raids against the Osage.

While the Cherokees were in Mexico, The Imperial Mexican Government of Iturbide was
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overthrown. In June 1823, the new govemment informed the Cherokees to return to Texas
and no more Cherokees would be allowed to migrate to Mexico. To mollify the Indians,
Chief Diwali was made a Lieutenant Colonel in the Mexican Army and appointed as
Administrator for all of the Indians in East Texas. Peter Ellis Bean was appointed by the
Mexican Government to be Indian Agent for East Texas.

Upon Fields' return to Texas, he started making an alliance with all Indian tribes in East
Texas, urging those in the United States to join him. This excited the Mexican Government
on the intentions of the Cherokees, and the government tried to counter the Cherokee
influence with other Indians. A great Cherokee War Chief Tahchee,also known as Dutch,
left the Cherokees in Arkansas and crossed the Red River into Texas in 1827. Tahchee
and his warriors lived for fighting - anyone, but preferably the Osage Indians.

More About TAH-CHEE:
« Blood: 374 Cherokee
« Clan: Paint Clan (Mrs Oconostota)
« Emigration: 1828, to Texas from Arkansas

« iii. The Badger, born 1732; married Nancy.

Notes for The Badger:

More About THE BADGER:

Attended 1: November 1788, Eustinali council
Attended 2: June 1792, Estinawa council
Blood: 3/4 Cherokee

Clan: Paint Clan (Mrs Oconostota)

Notes for Nancy:

Notes for NANCY:

As compiled here, Nancy would be of the Paint clan but so would her husband, the Badger. This
would be forbidden under the Cherokee customs of the day. The clan association on Nancy's
side is assumed through her "sister" Wurteh (Paint clan) but Wurteh may have been a half-sister;
this would allow Nancy to have a different clan association.

iv. Little Owl, born Abt. 1740.

Notes for Little Owl:

More About LITTLE OWL.:
« Blood: 374 Cherokee
« Clan: Paint Clan (Mrs Oconostota)

v. Ollie Il, born 1756; married Blackfox.

Notes for Blackfox:

Notes for BLACKFOX:
Black Fox
Enola of Estanaula

Black Fox delivered the eulogy for Dragging Canoe on June 26, 1792, at the council at Ustanali.
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vi. Turtle at Home, born 1758; married Ahyague.

Notes for Turtle at Home:
Notes for TURTLE-AT-HOME:

1818-19 Calhoun Treaty ceding land north of the Hiwassee River and North and West of the
Tennessee signed by Secretary of War John Calhoun and Cherokee in Washington and ratified
by the U.S. Senate. New Eastern Cherokee immigration to Western Cherokee. Numbers now
6,000. The Gloss, John Walker, Path Killer, Going Snake and more signed. + Treaty signer John
Boggs may have lived at Little Cedar Mountain. His wife was Turtle At Home's daughter.

More About TURTLE-AT-HOME:

Blood: 3/4 Cherokee
Clan: Paint Clan (Mrs Oconostota)

vii. Wurtagua, born Abt. 1760; married John Watts , Jr..

Notes for Wurtagua:

More About WURTAGUA:
Blood: 374 Cherokee

Notes for John Watts , Jr.:

Notes for JOHN WATTS, JR:
John Watts, Jr

Young Tassel

Kunoskeskie

45 viii. Sarah/Sally, died Aft. 1850; married Nathan Ward.

96. Leonard Cranford, born in Montgomery County, North Carolina; died in Narrows - Eldorado Twp,
Montgomery County, North Carolina *Macedonia Church. He was the son of 192. Jonas Cranford.
He married 97. Mary Hopkins 1764 in Maryland or Guilford County, North Carolina.

97. Mary Hopkins, born 1749 in Maryland; died 1850 in Eldorado Twp., Montgomery County, North
Carolina.

Notes for Leonard Cranford:

There was James Cranford b-1700, whose son was Jonas Cranford b-1720. Jonas son Leonard
B-1745, he married a woman named Polly Hill. Their son was John Cranford b-1774 and John's
son to my understanding is Richard b-1804. Richard married Elizabeth in 1823 in N.C. They
had the following children:

Sarah Jane Cranford, Angus Donahue Cranford, Nellie Cranford, Laura | Cranford, Eliza M
Cranford, James Madison Cranford, Joel Titus Cranford, John Griffin Cranford, Martha E
Cranford, and Elvira Cranford.

From: Donald P Cranford <wahoo2@northstate.net>
To: Ruby Garrett <rhae@intellex.com>
Cc: <pastwalker@aol.com>
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« Subject: Re: Leonard Cranford
- Date: Wednesday, May 12, 1999 2:08 PM

« Attached will be an article to appear in the Montgomery County NC Heritage Book Il to be
published the end of this year or the first of next, you are getting a preview. Cousin George and
myself wrote the article and it Farly well answers your question. With all the records available |
think you could guess Old Leonard could have been married 3 times. But we've never located a
record that says the name of the wife. His obituary indicates leaving a wife and 5 young
children and he died at the age of 80-90. Then thel00 year old Mary Cranford found in
Montgomery County in 1850 and believed to be his wife by a lot of people may have been the
only one he had. She could fit the case. This more than likely Mary Hopkins. But one branch of
the family, Sarah Cranford that Samuel Tolbert indicates a Mary Hill. This could be as there is a
Mary Hill daughter of a Rachel Hopkins Hill that we have never found who this Mary Hill
married. This Rachel Hopkins and Mary Hopkins believed to be descendants of Gerard and
Margaret Johns Hopkins. A Quaker family from Maryland. Also a hundred or so years later their
descendant was Johns Hopkins connected to that famous Baltimore hospital and in that family
there must have been 20 Johns Hopkins in different branches of the family. Try and figure that
out.

In short there are enough incomplete records to really confuse the issue. And not enough of other
records to sort the fact from fiction. | tend to lean to the one wife named Mary Hopkins belief but
have never found a document that says that.

e 1. JOHN1 CRANFORD was born ABT 1770 in MD1. He married WINNY (GRIFFIN?) CRANFORD.
She was born ABT 1800 in NC.

Notes for JOHN CRANFORD:
Information taken from the 1850 Cherokee County Census.
Children of JOHN CRANFORD and WINNY CRANFORD are:

o i. WILLIAM LEWIS2 CRANFORD, b. ABT 1817, NC; d. ABT 1862, Cherokee Co., AL; m.
POLLY SANDERS, January 22, 1834, Montgomery Co., NC?; b. February 28, 1814,
Montgomery Co., NC?.

Notes for WILLIAM LEWIS CRANFORD:

« William Lewis and Polly had first two children born in Tennessee from
1836 to 1838.

Information taken from the 1850, 1860, 1870 Cherokee County Census.
Their first land records show land purchased April 10, 1843.

ii. P. CRANFORD, b. 1824, NC2; m. ELIZABETH UNKNOWN; b. 1825, AL.

iii. JESSIE FRANKLIN CRANFORD, b. August 1831, NC3; d. 1903, Shepards Cemetery; m. HATTIE
ELIZABETH BATTLES, ABT 1847, Cherokee Co, AL; b. August 1830, AL3; d. Aft. 1900, AL.
Notes for JESSIE FRANKLIN CRANFORD:

« BLM, General Land Office records: Jesse Cranford of Cherokee County, Alabama, received 40
acres of land (Sec. 30, Twp. 10S, R. 8E) March 1, 1850; Jesse Cranford of Cherokee County,
Alabama, received 40 acres of land (Sec. 30, Twp. 10S, R. 8E) November 1, 1851..

Endnotes

« 1. 1850 Census

o 2.1880 Etowah Co. Census

o 3. 1900 Census
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For those that are interested:

Recent postings regarding Fayetteville Observer Death Date for Leonard Cranford that died in
Montgomery County, NC 1830 may be confusing as to the month of death as indicated. Have
had a couple of private e-mails that indicated the month of death they had was April 1830. The
info in the Fayettville Observer as appeard in the book under the May 13th 1830 issue of that
paper and on page 43 of the book and indicated old Leonard died on the 13th; this could be
interpreted as he died on May 13, 1830.

Also other newspaper indications of this death notice do this. The original information came from
the May 4th 1830 issue of the Western Carolinian published in Salisbury, Rowan Co., NC:

Died In Montgomery county, near the narrows, on the 13th ult. after an iliness of nearly two
years duration, Mr. Leonard Cranford, between 80 and 90 years of age, leaving a wife and five
small children.

Since the 13th had not yet passed when this issue of the paper published then the month of
death had to be April and | have recorded as the death date for this Leonard Cranford April 13,
1830 and this Western Carolinian death notice as the source. This also establish's his about
birth year as 1740-1750. What we have done is split the difference and is indicated as born
about 1745 and this notice is also used as the source.

The place of birth is not indicated here and comes from family info sources and is believed to be
Maryland. Leonard is first found in NC on the 1779 tax list in Randolph County. Later on the
1790 census is found in Montgomery County, NC.

This Leonard Cranford is my 4gt grand-dad and this is to set the record straight as to his birth
and death dates.

Don

Notes for Millie Saunders:

| wondering if this isn't Martha Sanders???

Children of Leonard Cranford and Millie Saunders are:

i. Samuel Cranford, born Abt. 1745; died Bet. 1820 - 1822 in Randolph County, North Carolina;
married (1) Unknown; married (2) Hopkins.

ii. Elias Cranford, born Abt. 1766.

iii. Leonard Cranford, born February 14, 1818 in Montgomery County, North Carolina; died
February 09, 1915 in Eldorado Twp, Montgomery County, N orth Carolina.

Notes for Leonard Cranford:

Leonard Cranford Death Certificate

Place of Death: Montgomery County, NC. Township: Eldorado. Registration no. 62-5824.
Registered no. 2. Male, white, single. Date of Death: Feb. 9, 1915. Cause of Death: No doctor in
attendance, Natural Causes due to old age. Signed by: Mrs. Della Russell. Date: Feb. 10, 1915,
address: Eldorado. Date of Birth: Feb. 14, 1818. Age at Death: 96 yrs, 11 months and 27 days.
Occupation: Farm hand. Educational Attainments: llliterate. Birthplace: Montgomery Co., NC.
Name of Father: Leonard Cranford. Birthplace of Father: N. Carolina. Maiden Name of Mother:
Millie Saunders. Birthplace of Mother: Montgomery Co. NC. Informant: Mrs. Della Russell. Place
of Burial or removal: Macedonia Church. Date of Burial: Feb. 10, 1915 (page is torn) Undertaker:
B. Clodfelter. Filed: Feb. 10, 1915. Register: J.F. Bruton+.

Children of Leonard Cranford and Mary Hopkins are:
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i. William Cranford, born 1765 in Maryland or Guilford County, North Carolina; died Bef. July
1843 in Montgomery County, North Carolina; married (1) (?) Reeves 1786; married (2) Mary
Agnes Hearne 1821 in Montgomery County, North Carolina.

ii. Sarah Cranford, born 1770 in Montgomery County, North Carolina; died Aft. 1850 in
Montgomery County, North Carolina; married Samuel Tolbert 1794.

iii. Beersheba Cranford, born 1771; died Aft. 1855 in Randolph County, North Carolina; married
Josiah Tolbert 1793.

48 iv. John (Jackie) Cranford, born Abt. 1775 in Montgomery County, North Carolina; died Aft.
1840 in Randolph County, North Carolina; married Lydia.

v. Nathan Cranford, born 1780 in New Hope Twp, Randolph County, North Carolina; died July
17, 1854 in Eldorado Twp, Montgomery County, North Carolina; married Elizabeth "Lucy"
Coggin 1804 in Rowan County, North Carolina.

vi. Alexander Cranford, born 1781 in Randolph County, North Carolina; died Aft. 1830 in Coosa,
Perry County, Alabama; married wife 1806.

vii. Susannah E. Cranford, born 1782 in Randolph County, North Carolina; died Bef. 1870 in
Independence County, Arkansas; married Archibald Russell October 10, 1805 in Randolph
County, North Carolina.

viii. Marvel Cranford, born 1787 in Randolph County, North Carolina; died Aft. 1860 in
Montgomery County, North Carolina; married Sarah Abt. 1814.

Notes for Marvel Cranford:

Marvel Cranford (age 70 in 1860) was a shoemaker by trade and shown on the 1860 census in
Montgomery County, NC with wife Sarah age 55 with 5 children ages 7, 20's, and 30's.

Marvel is listed as head of household in the 1850 Montgomery County, NC
Census as follows: 848 850

Marvel Cranford age 63 male shoe maker born in NC

Sarah age 50 female born in NC

Mary age 25 female born in NC attended school in last year

Susan age 23 female born in NC attended school in last year

Wilson age 19 male laborer born in NC.

Beersheba age 18 female born in NC

Elizabeth age 15 female born in NC

Loveless age 31 male laborer born in NC, can't read or write, checked marked for whether
deaf,dumb, blind, insane, idiotic or convict.

Eliza age 4 female born in NC
William I. age 3 male born in NC

Notes for Sarah:

They had 9 children.

104. Amos Hurley.

Children of Amos Hurley are:

52 i. Daniel Hurley, born 1771; married Mary Worrell.
ii. Stephen Hurley, born 1782 in Montgomery County, North Carolina.

Notes for Stephen Hurley:
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o The only mention of Ambrose Cranford:

« In the Archives at Raleigh, there is a bond of George Coggins, administrator, dated July 5, 1863,
with reference made to the dower rights of Prudence E. Hurley, the widow, and two minor
children. The real estate is there described as 150 acres of land adjoining lands of Joshua
Hurley, Ambrose Cranford, George Luther and William Burney.

« This folder file contains papers also as to the estate of a second Daniel Hurley, which should not
be confused with this subject. That Daniel, born c. 1810/17, was a son of Stephen Hurley
(1782). The files have been combined for no apparent reason, except the common name.

e iii. Accy Hurley, born 1794.
112. Absolom Bryant, born Abt. 1770. He married 113. Elizabeth.
113. Elizabeth.

Notes for Absolom Bryant:

» The Absolom Bryant family moved to Logan County, KY in 1792. Robert G. Bryant, 4719 Devon
St, Houston,TX. 77027 713-871-9687

« Grayson County, Virginia Marriages 1793-1836

« BRYANT, Benjamin, and Peggy WILLIS - 2 Nov 1801.
« BRYANT, Isiah, and Polly FROST - 30 Jan 1836.

« BRYANT, Joseph, and Sarah Hail - .... May 1824.

« BRYANT, William, and Sally SAMIETH - 9 Jul 1836

Children of Absolom Bryant and Elizabeth are:
« i. Eli Bryant, born 1789; married Martha.
« 56 ii. Absolom Bryant, born Bet. 1795 - 1801 in North Carolina; died 1865 in Whitley County,
Kentucky; married Agnes "Aggie" Johnson August 13, 1818 in Whitley County, Kentucky.
120. Jacob Leichliter, born Bef. 1733. He married 121. Catherine Margaret Loch.
121. Catherine Margaret Loch. She was the daughter of 243. Hannah Sibylla Loch.

Notes for Jacob Leichliter:
« Tohickon Union (Reformed) Church, Bedminster Township, Bucks Co.

« Jacob and Catherine had several children whose births were recorded in the same church.
Whether or not this is our Peter, remains to be proven. The age is certainly right.

o 1. JOHANNES CONRAD1 LECHLEITER was born December 24, 1724, and died September 5,
1781 in LickliderFamCem,Lewiston, Fredrick Co., Md.. He married MARIA BARBARA MULLER
Abt. 1745, daughter of HANSS MULLER and MARIA GERBER.

Notes for JOHANNES CONRAD LECHLEITER:

« Arrived in Philadelphia, Oct 12, 1741 aboard the ship "Friendship". Alexander Thomas, Master,
from Rotterdam, last from Cowes. Took the "Oath of Allegiance" to the English crown.

Marriage Notes for JOHANNES LECHLEITER and MARIA MULLER:

Children of JOHANNES LECHLEITER and MARIA MULLER are:

« i. BARBARA CATHERINE2 LECHLEITER, b. June 9, 1746, New Hanover, Montgomery Co., Pa.;
m. JOHANN CHRISTIAN BINKELE, Bef. 1783.

e ii. JOHANN JACOB LECHLEITER, b. June 26, 1748, So. Whitehall Twp, Busks (Lehigh) Co., Pa.;
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d. Abt. 1825, Shenandoah Co., Va.; m. ELIZABETH SCHMIDDEN, November 16, 1774,
StJohnsLuthChurch, Creagerstown,Fredrick Co. Pa..

iii. JOHANNES LECHLITER, b. 1750, Colebrookdale Twp, Berks Co., Pa.; d. Abt. 1830, Jefferson
Co., Va.; m. ANNA MARIA HOLTZMAN, July 26, 1772, Old Monacy Church, Fredrick Co., Md..

iv. (JOHN) LECHLITER, b. 1752, Colebrookdale Twp, Berks Co., Pa.; d. 1752.

v. JOHANN ADAM LECHLEITER, b. April 29, 1754, Pikes Township, Berks Co., Pa.; d. 1827; m.
CATHERINE SCHMIDDEN, August 12, 1777, Evnglical LuthChurch, Fredrick Co., Md.

2. vi. JOHAN PETER LICKLITER, b. August 11, 1756, Pikes Township, Berks Co., Pa.; d. Abt.
1840.

vii. JOHANN GEORGE LECHLITER, b. August 25, 1758, Berks Co, Pa.; m. SUSANNA BEAVERS,
March 18, 1816, Fredrick Co., Md.

Marriage Notes for JOHANN LECHLITER and SUSANNA BEAVERS:

« Christened Sept. 24, 1758 at Oley Hills Lutheran Church in Berks Co., Pa.

viii. CONRAD LICKLIDER, b. Abt. 1760, Colebrookdale Twp, Berks Co., Pa.; d. December 22,
1844, Jefferson Co., Va.; m. ANNA MARGARETHA FROSCHAUER, 1786.

iXx. ELIZABETH LECHLEITER, b. December 27, 1764, Maryland; d. March 21, 1850; m. CASPER
HERING, June 3, 1783, Evnglical LuthChurch, Fredrick Co., Md.

X. BARBARA LECHLEITER, b. Abt. 1766, Fredrick Co., Md; m. DANIEL CREAGER, Abt. 1789.

xi. LUDWIG LECKLIDER, b. August 7, 1768, Fredrick Co., Md; d. January 24, 1847, Dayton
Township, Montgomery Co., Oh.; m. CATHERINE CREAGER, 1790.

Child of Jacob Leichliter and Catherine Loch is:

60 i. Johan Peter Lickliter (Leichliter), born August 11, 1756 in Nochimixion Twp., Bucks County,
Pennsylvania; died April 13, 1853 in Laurel County, Kentucky; married Magdalena 1810 in
Grainger,Claibourn County, Tennessee.

Generation No. 8

180. White Owl Raven, born 1680. He married 181. Nancy Moytoy.

181. Nancy Moytoy, born Abt. 1683. She was the daughter of 362. Amatoya Moytoy and 363.
Quatsy.

Notes for White Owl Raven:

Blood: Algonquin Tribe?

Children of White Raven and Nancy Moytoy are:

i. Killaneca, born Abt. 1712.

Notes for Killaneca:

More About KILLANECA:

Blood: 1/2 Cherokee, 1/2 Algonquin(?)
Clan: Wolf Clan (Quatsy)

ii. Tame (Na-Nih) Doe, born Abt. 1716 in the Tyger River area Spartanburg County, South
Carolina; died 1760; married Fivekiller ( Skayagustuegwo ).

Notes for Tame (Na-Nih) Doe:

Migrations to Spartanburg County, South Carolina by Frank Scott.
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« a member of the Wolf Clan

« "There were a few families that came directly from Europe to Spartanburg County and settled in
the Tyger River area. Francis and Edmond Ward, younger sons of Sir Francis Ward of Ireland,
came directly to this area. Some researchers believe that Francis may have been married (in the
Indian way) to Tame Doe who was the sister of Chief Oconostota. After Francis was banished
from the Cherokee Nation, he married another Ward, assumedly the widow of his brother,
Edmond.

« Nancy Ward the daughter of Francis and Tame Doe married Lt. Bryant Ward, nephew of Francis
Ward. (Note: Most historians's believe that Nancy was the daughter of Tame Doe and Fivekiller
not Francis Ward). Nancy and Francis Ward both owned property along the Tyger River".

Notes for TAME DOE:

« "Myths of the Cherokee Indians”, James Mooney, p 203-204;

« [Nancy Ward's] father was a British officer named Ward and her mother was the sister of
Atakullakulla.

More About TAME DOE:
« Blood: 1/2 Cherokee, 1/2 Algonquin(?)
« Clan: Wolf Clan (Quatsy)

Notes for Fivekiller ( Skayagustuegwo ):
» He was part Delaware or Lenni Lenap.

Notes for FIVE KILLER:
« Skayagustuegwo
« Five Killer
» the Raven of Chota [#2]

More About FIVE KILLER:
« Blood: Delaware Tribe?

iii. Betsy, born 1720; died 1793; married Hanging Maw.

Notes for Betsy:
« Cherokee Myths, pg 74,
« "...Cap John Beard attacks... killing several including the wife of Hanging Maw."

More About BETSY:
» Blood: 1/72 Cherokee, 1/2 Algonquin(?)
« Clan: Wolf Clan (Quatsy)

Notes for Hanging Maw:

Notes for HANGING MAW:
« Hanging Maw
» Scolacutta
« Uskwalli-gu'ta
« Old Frontiers, John P Brown, pg 388;
« Hanging Maw fought with President Washington in the French and Indian war.
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Old Frontiers, John P Brown, pg 309;

[1790] following the death of Old Tassel, those Cherokee towns inclined toward peace had
seperated roughly into two groups. Hanging Maw (Scolacuta) had been selected as Principal
Chief to succede the Tassel, but the lower towns east of Lookout Mt, Coosawatie, Elijay,
Ustinali, and Etowah recognized Little Turkey as their head man.

More About HANGING MAW:

Attended: March 1775, Henderson's Treaty, Sycamore Shoals
Blood: Full Blood Cherokee
Residence: 1793, Coyatee

90 iv. Attakullakulla "Little Carpenter”, born Abt. 1713 in Severs Island, TN; died 1780 in Tennessee;
married Ollie.

182. Chief Oconostota, born Abt. 1704; died March 1782. He was the son of 364. Moytoy
"Supreme Chief of the Cherokee" and 365. Sister of Old Hop. He married 183. Woman of the
Paint Clan.

183. Woman of the Paint Clan, born Abt. 1704.

Notes for Chief Oconostota:

Notes for OCONOSTOTA:
Oconostota

A gansta ta

The Great Warrior

*hkhkhhkhhkhhkhkhkhkhkhkhkhkhkhkhhkhhhhiix

A gansta ta:

"groundhog-sausage,” from a gana, groundhog, and tsista u, "l am pounding it," understood to
refer to pounding meat, etc., in a mortar, after having first crisped it before the fire. A war chief,
noted in the Cherokee war of 1760, and prominent until about the close of the Revolution, known
to the whites as Oconostota. Also the Cherokee name for Colonel Gideon Morgan of the war of
1812, for Washington Morgan, his son, of the Civil war, and now for a full-blood upon the
reservation, known to the whites as Morgan Calhoun.

kkkkkkkkhkkhkkhkkkhkkkhkkkhkhkkhhkkhikkkx

Old Frontiers, John P Brown, pg 165;
Oconostota references "'my nephew, Savenooka, Raven of Chote"

More About OCONOSTOTA:

Blood: Full Blood Cherokee
Signer: March 1775, Henderson's Treaty, Sycamore Shoals

Notes for Woman of the Paint Clan:

More About WOMAN OF PAINT CLAN:
Blood: Full Blood Cherokee
Clan: Paint Clan (Mrs Oconostota)

Children of Chief Oconostota and Woman Clan are:
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o 91i. Ollie, born 1720; married Attakullakulla "Little Carpenter".
« ii. Daughter Of Oconostota, born Abt. 1730; married The Bark.
e iii. The Terrapin, born Abt. 1736; died Aft. 1796.

Notes for The Terrapin:
Notes for THE TERRAPIN:

« The Terrapin aka Tuckasee of Etowah was present at the Treaty of Tellicoe Blockhouse on Nov
7,1794.

More About THE TERRAPIN:
« Attended: March 1775, Henderson's Treaty, Sycamore Shoals
« Blood: Full Blood Cherokee
« Clan: Paint Clan (Mrs Oconostota)
« Residence: 1794, Etowah

192. Jonas Cranford, born 1720 in Hagerstown, Frederick County, Maryland; died 1768 in
Frederick County, Maryland. He was the son of 384. James Cranford.

Notes for Jonas Cranford:

« From family info and from other descendants of old Leonard Cranford, the father of Leonard
Cranford that died near the narrows in Montgomery County NC was Jonas Cranford. There are
records that indicate an older and a younger Jonas in Fredrick County, MD on several census
records plus a Revolutionary Patriots list. They came to NC from the area of Fredrick MD.
Leonard is found on the Randolph County NC 1779 tax list. The first listing of him in NC that I'm
aware. Then later in Montgomery County. Have never seen other records from the MD area. If
there are county land, estate or other records there for Jonas they could tell who some of his
children are. This would answer a lot of questions regarding the older Cranfords in early NC
records.

« Don

Child of Jonas Cranford is:

« 96 i. Leonard Cranford, born in Montgomery County, North Carolina; died in Narrows - Eldorado
Twp, Montgomery County, North Carolina *Macedonia Church; married (1) Millie Saunders in
Rowan County, North Carolina; married (2) Mary Hopkins 1764 in Maryland or Guilford County,
North Carolina; married (3) Eliza Aft. 1787.

243. Hannah Sibylla Loch.
Child of Hannah Sibylla Loch is:

« 121 i. Catherine Margaret Loch, married Jacob Leichliter.

| Generation No. 9

362. Amatoya Moytoy, born Abt. 1640 in Chota, Blount Co., TN "Peace Town" or "Mother Town"
Overhill region Cherokee Nation (Now TN). He married 363. Quatsy.

363. Quatsy.
Notes for Amatoya Moytoy:
Notes for AMATOYA MOYTOY:
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« There has been a lot of confusion about the descendants of Moytoy. That is a result of the fact
that some people are not aware that there were two Chief Moytoys. The first was Chief Amatoya
Moytoy of Chota, b abt 1640, who married Quatsy of Tellico (of the Wolf Clan). The second is
Chief Moytoy, aka the Pigeon of Tellico, b abt 1687. The second Moytoy is believed to be either
the son or grandson of Amatoya Moytoy.

« Itis believed that Amatoya Moytoy had 3 sons and 8 daughters. These include Chief
Kanagatoga "Old Hop", Nancy Moytoy, and two daughters with unknown names. Nancy Moytoy
is believed to have been the mother of Chief Attakullakulla "Little Carpenter”, Killaneca the Buck,
Betsy and Tame Doe. Tame Doe was the mother of Tsistuna-Gis-Ke (Nancy Ward), and
Longfellow of Chistatoa.

More About AMATOYA MOYTOY:

» Blood: Full Blood Cherokee

o More About QUATSY:

» Blood: Full Blood Cherokee

« Clan: Wolf Clan (Quatsy)

Children of Amatoya Moytoy and Quatsy are:
« i. Tistoe, born Abt. 1680.
« ii. Oukah-Ulah, born Abt. 1681; died 1755.

Notes for Oukah-Ulah:
» Attended: 1730, Delegation to King George Il
« Blood: Full Blood Cherokee
« Clan: Wolf Clan (Quatsy)

181 iii. Nancy Moytoy, born Abt. 1683; married White Owl Raven.

iv. Moytoy "Supreme Chief of the Cherokee", born Abt. 1687 in Tellico; died Abt. 1741 in Cherokee Nat
East; married Sister of Old Hop.
Notes for Moytoy "Supreme Chief of the Cherokee™:
« Moytoy Pigeon, of Tellico
« Supreme Chief of the Cherokee 1730 -- 1760
« The Eastern Band of Cherokee, by John R Finger, Univ of TN Press, Knoxville:
« [Earliy Cherokee society was atomized into clans with individual chiefs]...

« Sir Alexander Cuming boldly addressed this problem in 1730 by traveling to Cherokee country
and proclaiming a single chief, Moytoy, as the first chief and King of his people.

kkkkkkkkhkhkkhkkkhkkkhkkkhkhkkhkhkkhhkkhhkkhhkkhkkikkikk
« Moytoy :

« a Cherokee chief recognized by the English as "emperor" in 1730. Both the correct form and the
meaning of the name are uncertain; the name occurs again as Moyatoy in a document of 1793; a
boy upon the East Cherokee reservation a few years ago bore the name of Ma tayi, for which
no meaning can be found or given.

kkhkkkkhkkkhkkkhkkkhkkhkkkhkkkhkhkkhhkhhkkhkkhkkhkkhkkikk

« Old Frontiers, by John P Brown, also details a Moytoy of Settico who was rampaiging through
VA after the death of "Emperor" Moytoy of Tellico.

More About MOYTOY:
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« Blood: Full Blood Cherokee
« Clan: Wolf Clan (Quatsy)

v. Old Hop " Ostenaco”, born Abt. 1690 in Chota, on Little Tennessee River; died August 1761 in Chota,
on Little Tennessee River; married Su-Gi.

Notes for Old Hop " Ostenaco™:

Notes for OLD HOP:
« Kana-gatoga "Standing Turkey"
« Caneecatee
« Old Hop
« the Fire King of Chota

kkhkkhkkkkkhkkkhkkkhkkkkkkhkkkhhkkhkkhkkhkkhkkhkkikkikk

« Old Frontiers, pg 46;

» "old Hop had a nephew, also named Standing Turkey, an active warrior who at his uncle's
death served a short time as his successor. It was the younger Standing Turkey who conducted
a four day assault upon Fort Loudoun in 1760, and who signed the articles of capitulation of the
stronghold.

kkkkkkkkhkkkhkkkhkkkhkkkhhkkhkhkkhkhkkhkhkkhhkkhkkhhkkhkkikk

« Old Frontiers, pg 67;
« Old Hop in his talk to Demere, gave his unusual evidence of patriotism. He said:

« "l am now old and lie upon a bad bearskin. My life is not more than an inch long, and | know not
when a bullet may cut it short. | want my brothers Captains Demere and Stuart to remember
that the Great Warrior, Oconostota, and his brother [Amo-Scossite?], are the only two men in the
nation that ought to be thought of after my death. "It is true that Willenawah and the Little
Carpenter are my nephews, but | do not know how they would behave. If | had not remembered
what | owe to a country | love, and had in mind to behave like a father, | would recommend my
two sons, but | know them to be incapable, and biased by every lie that comes. | do not know
how they will turn out, but | do know the others, for drunk or sober, they always admonish the
Indians to love the white people.”

More About OLD HOP:
« Blood: Full Blood Cherokee
« Clan: Wolf Clan (Quatsy)

More About SU-GI:
« Blood: Full Blood Cherokee

« Ostenaco was a war chief who, in 1756, joined the English in a campaign against the
French-allied Shawnee during the Seven Years War ("French and Indian War). His warriors
were abandonned by the British troops when their provisions were lost while crossing a swollen
river. His band "confiscated" horses from the ungrateful Virginians who retaliated by killing 24
of his party. A period of retaliatory raids begain between the Cherokee and colonists. In 1762,
the Cherokee captured Fort Loundon (near present Venore TN). Eventually, devastation of the
Cherokee country by large colonial armies forced the Cherokee to sue for peace. Lt. Henry
Timberlake volunteered to stay with the Cherokee to improve Cherokee-English relations.
Ostenaco, along with Stalking Turkey and Pouting Pigeon, visited London in 1762 to see King
George Il accompanied by Lt. Henry Timberlake and interpreter, William Shorey, who died in
route.
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« Cumnacatogue (also known as Cunne Shote, Stalking Turkey or Standing Turkey) was one of
three Cherokee chiefs who travelled to London in 1762 to see King George Ill. He was the
nephew of the Chief "Old Hop" who was also know as Standing Turkey.

364. Moytoy "Supreme Chief of the Cherokee", born Abt. 1687 in Tellico; died Abt. 1741 in
Cherokee Nat East. He was the son of 728. Amatoya Moytoy and 729. Quatsy. He married 365.
Sister of Old Hop.

365. Sister of Old Hop.

Notes for Moytoy "Supreme Chief of the Cherokee™:
« Moytoy Pigeon, of Tellico
« Supreme Chief of the Cherokee 1730 -- 1760
« The Eastern Band of Cherokee, by John R Finger, Univ of TN Press, Knoxville:
« [Earliy Cherokee society was atomized into clans with individual chiefs]...
« Sir Alexander Cuming boldly addressed this problem in 1730 by traveling to Cherokee
« country and proclaiming a single chief, Moytoy, as the first chief and King of his people.

*hkhhkhhhhkhkhkhkhkhkhkhhkhkhhkhrhhkrhhhhhhixx

« Moytoy :

« a Cherokee chief recognized by the English as "emperor" in 1730. Both the correct form and the
meaning of the name are uncertain; the name occurs again as Moyatoy in a document of 1793; a
boy upon the East Cherokee reservation a few years ago bore the name of Ma tayi, for which
no meaning can be found or given.

kkhkkkkkhkkkhkkkhkkkhkhkkkkkhkhkhhkhhkkhkkhkkhkkhkkikk

» Old Frontiers, by John P Brown, also details a Moytoy of Settico who was rampaiging through
VA after the death of "Emperor" Moytoy of Tellico.
More About MOYTOY:
« Blood: Full Blood Cherokee
« Clan: Wolf Clan (Quatsy)

Children of Moytoy Cherokee" and Sister Hop are:
« i. Clogoittah, born Abt. 1706; married Creat Priber.

Notes for Clogoittah:
« Attended: 1730, Delegation to King George Il
« Blood: Full Blood Cherokee

ii. Kitegista, born 1708; died Aft. 1788.

Notes for Kitegista:

Notes for KITEGISTA: (Source: John P Brown, Old Frontiers, (Reprint edition, 1971, by
Arno Press, Inc), 114.)

« Old Frontiers, pg 114;

« "Another requirement [of the peace treaty to end the Cherokee-English war of 1760] was that the
head men of the nation, Oconostota being mentioned specifically, were to assemble at Charles
Town on December 16th [1761] to ratify the treaty, and this they did. Oconostota, however, was
still wary of trusting himself within the power of the English, but sent his brother Kitegista with

file:///C|/My Documents/My Webs/Ruby/FAncestory.htm (75 of 78) [06/07/2000 17:48:59]



Ancestors of Dorothy Dean Fowler

a peace pipe to represent him.

More About KITEGISTA:
« Attended: 1730, Delegation to King George I
« Blood: Full Blood Cherokee

« iii. Tathtowe, born 1712.

« iv. Killague, born Abt. 1714.

« V. Ounaconoa, born Abt. 1716.

« Vi. Tatitowe, born 1717.

« Vii. Skalilosken, born Abt. 1718.

« Viii. Great (Willenawah) Eagle, born Abt. 1720.

« iX. Oukaii-Oukah, born 1722.

« X. Kollannah, born Abt. 1724.

« Xi. Ah-Nee-Wa-Kee, born 1726; married Cornelius Dougherty.

Notes for Cornelius Dougherty:

More About CORNELIUS DOUGHERTY:
« Blood: Non-Cherokee
« Note: "Indian Countryman" of Hiawassee

« Xii. Bad Water, born 1728.
Notes for Bad Water:
» (Source: John P Brown, Old Frontiers, (Reprint edition, 1971, by Arno Press, Inc), 46.), b. ¢ 1728.

Notes for BAD WATER:
« Old Frontiers, pg 66;
« "The name Amo-Scossite means bad or dreadful water. A descendant of the same name died
while on the way to the west during the removal, 1838.
« 182 xiii. Chief Oconostota, born Abt. 1704; died March 1782; married Woman of the Paint Clan.
384. James Cranford, born Bef. 1699 in Baltimore, Calvert County, Maryland.

Notes for James Cranford:

« James is listed in the index of Maryland Colonial Wills. This may be the same James that was
transported to Maryland in 1678 as an indentured servant. He rented land called "Poppey Grey
from 1678 through 1733. He also bought land called "Potts Folly" in 1688 which he owned until
his death. The Cranfords have their roots in the North Carolina Counties of Randolph, Davidson,
Montgomery, Iredell, Stanly, Rowan, Cabarrus, and Calvert County in Maryland.

Child of James Cranford is:

« 192 i. Jonas Cranford, born 1720 in Hagerstown, Frederick County, Maryland; died 1768 in
Frederick County, Maryland.
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Generation No. 10

728. Amatoya Moytoy, born Abt. 1640 in Chota, Blount Co., TN "Peace Town" or "Mother Town"
Overhill region Cherokee Nation (Now TN). He married 729. Quatsy.

729. Quatsy.
Notes for Amatoya Moytoy:

Notes for AMATOYA MOYTOY:

« There has been a lot of confusion about the descendants of Moytoy. That is a result of the fact
that some people are not aware that there were two Chief Moytoys. The first was Chief Amatoya
Moytoy of Chota, b abt 1640, who married Quatsy of Tellico (of the Wolf Clan). The second is
Chief Moytoy, aka the Pigeon of Tellico, b abt 1687. The second Moytoy is believed to be either
the son or grandson of Amatoya Moytoy.

« Itis believed that Amatoya Moytoy had 3 sons and 8 daughters. These include Chief
Kanagatoga "Old Hop", Nancy Moytoy, and two daughters with unknown names. Nancy Moytoy
is believed to have been the mother of Chief Attakullakulla "Little Carpenter"”, Killaneca the Buck,
Betsy and Tame Doe. Tame Doe was the mother of Tsistuna-Gis-Ke (Nancy Ward), and
Longfellow of Chistatoa.

More About AMATOYA MOYTOY:

« Blood: Full Blood Cherokee

More About QUATSY:
« Blood: Full Blood Cherokee
« Clan: Wolf Clan (Quatsy)

Children of Amatoya Moytoy and Quatsy are:
« i. Tistoe, born Abt. 1680.
« ii. Oukah-Ulah, born Abt. 1681; died 1755.

Notes for Oukah-Ulah:
» Attended: 1730, Delegation to King George Il
« Blood: Full Blood Cherokee
« Clan: Wolf Clan (Quatsy)

« lii. Nancy Moytoy, born Abt. 1683; married White Owl Raven.

Notes for White Owl Raven:
» Blood: Algonquin Tribe?

364 iv. Moytoy "Supreme Chief of the Cherokee", born Abt. 1687 in Tellico; died Abt. 1741 in Cherokee
Nat East; married Sister of Old Hop.

v. Old Hop " Ostenaco”, born Abt. 1690 in Chota, on Little Tennessee River; died August 1761 in Chota,
on Little Tennessee River; married Su-Gi.

Notes for Old Hop " Ostenaco":
Notes for OLD HOP:
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Kana-gatoga "Standing Turkey"
Caneecatee

Old Hop

the Fire King of Chota

kkkkkkhkkkhkkkhkkkhkkhkkhkkhkkhkkhkhkkhhkkhhkkhhkkhhkkhkkhkkhkkikk

Old Frontiers, pg 46;

"old Hop had a nephew, also named Standing Turkey, an active warrior who at his uncle's
death served a short time as his successor. It was the younger Standing Turkey who conducted
a four day assault upon Fort Loudoun in 1760, and who signed the articles of capitulation of the
stronghold.

*kkhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhiiikx

Old Frontiers, pg 67;
Old Hop in his talk to Demere, gave his unusual evidence of patriotism. He said:

"I am now old and lie upon a bad bearskin. My life is not more than an inch long, and | know not
when a bullet may cut it short. | want my brothers Captains Demere and Stuart to remember
that the Great Warrior, Oconostota, and his brother [Amo-Scossite?], are the only two men in the
nation that ought to be thought of after my death. "It is true that Willenawah and the Little
Carpenter are my nephews, but | do not know how they would behave. If | had not remembered
what | owe to a country | love, and had in mind to behave like a father, | would recommend my
two sons, but | know them to be incapable, and biased by every lie that comes. | do not know
how they will turn out, but | do know the others, for drunk or sober, they always admonish the
Indians to love the white people.”

More About OLD HOP:

Blood: Full Blood Cherokee
Clan: Wolf Clan (Quatsy)

More About SU-GI:

Blood: Full Blood Cherokee

« Ostenaco was a war chief who, in 1756, joined the English in a campaign against the

French-allied Shawnee during the Seven Years War ("French and Indian War). His warriors
were abandonned by the British troops when their provisions were lost while crossing a swollen
river. His band "confiscated" horses from the ungrateful Virginians who retaliated by killing 24
of his party. A period of retaliatory raids begain between the Cherokee and colonists. In 1762,
the Cherokee captured Fort Loundon (near present Venore TN). Eventually, devastation of the
Cherokee country by large colonial armies forced the Cherokee to sue for peace. Lt. Henry
Timberlake volunteered to stay with the Cherokee to improve Cherokee-English relations.
Ostenaco, along with Stalking Turkey and Pouting Pigeon, visited London in 1762 to see King
George Il accompanied by Lt. Henry Timberlake and interpreter, William Shorey, who died in
route.

Cumnacatogue (also known as Cunne Shote, Stalking Turkey or Standing Turkey) was one of
three Cherokee chiefs who travelled to London in 1762 to see King George lll. He was the
nephew of the Chief "Old Hop" who was also know as Standing Turkey.
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